' Request for Amendment to a ES(C) HCBS Waiver |
Living Choices Assisted Living

Request for an Amendment to a §1915(c)

Home and Community-Based Services Waiver

I Request Information

A,  The State of e requests approval for an amendment to the following

Medicaid home and community-based services waiver approved under authority of §1915(c) of the
Social Security Act.

B. Waiver Title (optional): | Living Choices Assisted Living |
C. CMS Waiver Number: | AR.0400 |
D. Amecndment Number (dssigned by CMS):: [ | R E C E EVE D
E.1 Proposed Effective Date: | 01-01-2019 | NOV 15 2018
E2 Approved Effective Date (CMS BUREAU OF
Use): LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH

I1. Purpose(s) of Amendment

Purpose(s) of the Amendment. Describe the purpose(s) of the amendment;

The Living Choices Assisted Living waiver is being amended as follows:

1. Section 1.F is amended to clarify that the State does not enroll individuals who need a skilled
level of nursing care. Conforms to current State administrative rules.

2. For assessments and re-assessments, transition from (a) independent assessments performed by
DHS registered nurses (DHS RNs) using the ArPath assessment instrument to (b) independent
assessments performed by RNs of the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor using the
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument.

3. Increases the maximum number of unduplicated participants who are served in Waiver Years 4
and 3 to 1,723 each year.

4. Provides for a new reimbursement rate determination methodology for Assisted Living Facility
services and a one-year phase-in of the uew raie, beginning Japuary 1, 2019, and culminating on
January 1, 2020.

5. Various technical revisions are being made to reflect responsibilities of the new IDHS Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (a new operating agency), a new name of the
Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (former] y Division of

State: Request for Amendment: 1
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

(OLTC) in DPSQA.

Aging and Adult Services, an operating agency), and the location of Office of Long-Term Care

11l Nature of the Amendment

A. Component(s) of the Approved Waiver Atfected by the Amendment. This amendment aftects the
following component(s) of the approved waiver. Revisions to the affected subsection(s) of these

componeni(s) are being submitted concurrently fcheck each that applies):

Component of the Approved Waiver

Subsection(s)

x| Waiver Application

I.F
2

X | Appendix A — Waiver Administration and Operation

A-1

A-2-b

A-3

A-5

A-6

A-7

Quality Improvement

X | Appendix B — Participant Access and Eligibility

B-6-c.d, e, f.i. and j
B-3-a

Quality [mprovement
B-7-a

B-8

X | Appendix C — Participant Services

C-1/C-3

C-1:20f2
C-2:1of3-ab
C-2:3 of 3-f

Quality improvement

X | Appendix D — Participant-Centered Service Planning and Delivery

D-1:3 0f8, 4 0f 8, 5 of
8. 6018, 70f8, §of8.
D-2-a

Quality [mprovement

O | Appendix E — Participant Direction of Services

X | Appendix F — Participant Rights F-1
F-3-b, ¢

X | Appendix G — Participant Safeguards G-l-b.c.d. e
G-2-a

Quality lmprovement

X | Appendix H — Quality Improvement Strategy

H-l-a. b

X | Appendix I — Financial Accountability

{-1
Quality Improvement

State: Request for Amendment: 2

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver

Living Choices Assisted Living,

Component of the Approved Waiver

Subsection(s)

1-2-a
I-2-d

X | App

endix J - Cost-Neutrality Demonstration

J-1

J-2: 1 0f9,40f9, 5 0f9
(d.i.), 6 of 9(di.), 7of 9
(d.i.), 8 of 9 (di.), 9 of 9
(d.i)

B. Nature of the Amendment. Indicate the nature of the changes to the waiver that are proposed in the
amendment (check each that applies):

Modify target group(s)

Modify Medicaid eligibility

Add/delete services

Revise service specifications

Revise provider qualifications

Increase/decrease number of participants

Revise cost neutrality demonstration

Add participant-direction of services

= ol =|=| ol =] ol <] o

1.

Other (specify):

Transition independent assessment process from (a) DHS RNs using the ArPath
instrument to (b) RNs of independent assessment contractor using the Arkansas
Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument. DHS RNs will gather additional
information from individuals in connection with developing the person-centered service

plan (PCSP).

Provide for a new reimbursement rate determination methodology for Assisted Living

Facility services.

Technical edits to reflect changes in operating divisions (names, responsibilities).

State: o
Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 3




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Iv. Contact Person(s)

A. The Medicaid agency representative with whom CMS should communicate regarding this amendment
is:

First Name: Dave

Last Name Mills

Title: Business Operations Manager. Office of Policy Coordination & Promulgation
Agency: Arkansas Department of Human Services

Address 1: P. O. Box 1437, Slot §-295

City Little Rock

State AR

Zip Code 72203-1437

Telephone: (501) 320-6306

E-mail dave.milisi@dhs.arkansas.gov

Fax Number

(501) 682-1197

B. [f applicable, the operating agency representative with whom CMS should communicate regarding

this amendment is:

First Name: Mark

Last Name White

Title: Deputy Director

Agency: Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Aging. Adult. and

Behavioral Health Services

Address 1:

P. O. Box 1437, Slot 8-530

City Little Rock

State AR

Zip Code 72203-1437

Telephone: (501) 320-6009

E-mail mark.white@dhs.arkansas.gov

Fax Number

(501) 682-8155

State:

Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 4




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

This document, together with the attached revisions to the affected components of the waiver, constitutes
the State's request to amend its approved waiver under §1915(c) of the Social Security Act. The State
affirms that it will abide by all provisions of the waiver, including the provisions of this amendment when
approved by CMS. The State further attests that it will continuously operate the waiver in accordance with
the assurances specified in Section V and the additional requirements specified in Section VI of the
approved waiver. The State certifies that additional proposed revisions to the waiver request will be
submitted by the Medicaid agency in the form of additional waiver amendments.

Signature: Date:

State Medicaid Director or Designee

First Name: Jay

Last Name Hill

Title: Director, Division of Aging. Adult. and Behavioral Health Services
Agency: Atkansas Department of Human Services
Address 1: P.O. Box 1437. Slot §-330

Address 2:

City Little Rock

State Arkansas

Zip Code 72203-1437

Telephone: (501) 320-6009

E-mail jay hili@@dhs.arkansas.gov

Fax Number (501) 682-8135

| State: | Request for Amendment: 5
Effective Date | [




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

REQUESTED AMENDMENT TO WAIVER INFORMATION

1. Request Information

F. Level(s) of Care

This waiver is requested in order to provide home and community-based waiver services to individuals
who. but for the provision of such services, would require the following level(s) of cate. the costs of
which would be reimbursed under the approved Medicaid State plan (check each that applies):

X Nursing Facility
X Nursing Facility as defined in 42 CFR 440.40 and 42 CFR 440.155

If applicable, specify whether the State additionally limits the waiver to subcategories of
the nursing facility level of care:

Individuals requiring a skilled level of care are not eligible for the Living Choices
program.

2. Brief Waiver Description

Brief Waiver Description. [n one page or less, briefly describe the purpose of the waiver, including its
goals, objectives, organizational structure (e.g., the roles of state, local and other entities). and service
delivery methods.

The Living Choices Assisted Living waiver program allows individuals to live in apartment-style living
units in licensed level 1I assisted living facilities and receive individualized personal, health and social
services that enable optimal maintenance of their individuality, privacy, dignity, and independence. The
assisted living environment actively encourages and supports these values through effective methods of
service delivery and facility or program operation. The environment promotes participants’ personal
decision-making while protecting their health and safety. The major goal of this program is to delay or
prevent institutionalization of these individuals. However, assisted living services are not intended as a
substitute for nursing facility or hospital care for individuals needing skilled care, and room and board
services are not covered per federal law.

Living Choices includes 24-hour on-site response staff to assist with participants' known physical
dependency needs or other conditions, as well as to manage unanticipated situations and emergencies.
Assisted living facility staff will perform their duties and conduct themselves in a manner that fosters and
promotes participants' dignity and independence. Supervision, safety and security are required
components of the assisted living environment. Living Choices includes therapeutic, social and
recreational activities suitable to the participants' abilities, interests, and needs. Assisted living
participants' living units are separate and distinct from all others. Laundry and meal preparation and
service are in a congregate setting for participants who ¢choose not to perform those activities themselves.
The principles of negotiated service plans and managed risk are applied.

Extended Prescription Drug Coverage is available for Living Choices participants who are eligible for
regular Medicaid drug benefits, plus three additional prescriptions. Participants dually eligible for
Medicare and Medicaid must obtain prescribed medications through the Medicare Part D Prescription
Drug Plan, or for certain prescribed medications excluded from the Medicare Part D Prescription Drug
Plan, through the Arkansas Medicaid State Plan Pharmacy Program.

State: Request for Amendment: 6
Eftective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

The Living Choices waiver is administered by two state operating agencies, the Division of Aging, Adult,
and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) and the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA). DAABHS and DPSQA operate under the authority of the Division of Medical Services
(DMS), the Medicaid Agency. DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS are all under the umbrella of the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS). DMS is responsible for all policy decisions concerning the
waiver, promulgation of provider manuals and regulations governing the waiver, reimbursement of
certified waiver providers, and oversight of all waiver-related functions delegated to DAABHS and
DPSQA. DAABHS is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the waiver, establishing waiver
program policies and procedures, and overseeing the development and management of person-centered
service plans, among other functions. DPSQA, through its Office of Long Term Care (OLTC), is
responsible for determination of level of care. DPSQA is also responsible for provider certification,
compliance, and quality assurance. DMS and DAABHS share the responsibility for monitoring and
overseeing the performance of the Independent Assessment Contractor and the Arkansas Independent
Assessment (ARIA) system.

Functional eligibility for the waiver is determined using assessments and reassessments performed by the
State’s Independent Assessment Contractor using a new electronic instrument, the Arkansas Independent
Assessment (ARIA) system and the contractor’s team of registered nurses. The assessment is sent to the
Office of Long-Term Care (OLTC) in the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA)
to determine if the applicant’s functional need is at the nursing home level of care. If an applicant is
determined both financially and functionally eligible, the DHS county office approves the application.

Attachment #1: Changes from Previous Approved Waiver That May Require a Transition Plan.
Instructions: If applicable, check the box next to any of the following changes from the current

approved waiver that you are making with this application. Check all of the boxes that apply. If
you check any of the boxes, you will be prompted to complete a transition plan.

T

Replacing an approved waiver with this waiver.

Combining waivers.

Splitting one waiver into two waivers,

Eliminating a service.

Adding or decreasing an individual cost limit pertaining to eligibility

X | Adding or decreasing limits to a service or a set of services, as specified in Appendix C

Reducing the unduplicated count of participants (Factor C).

Adding new, or decreasing, a limitation on the number of participants served at any point
in time.

X Making any changes that could result in some participants losing eligibility or being
transferred to another waiver under 1915(c) or another Medicaid authority.

Making any changes that could result in reduced services to participants.

Similarities and differences between the services covered in the approved waiver and those covered
in the amended waiver:

All types of services covered in the approved waiver continue to be covered in the amended waiver.

State: Request for Amendment: 7
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

When services in the approved waiver will not be offered in the new or renewed/amended waiver or
will be offered in lesser amount, how the health and welfare of persons who receive services
through the approved waiver will be assured:

No service covered by the approved waiver and received by any participant is discontinued undet the
amended waiver.

How persons served in the existing waiver are eligible to participate in the amended waiver:

Individuals served in the existing waiver may continue to participate in this HCBS program under the
amended waiver, provided they (1) continue to meet financial eligibility and (2) meet the functional level
of care criteria for the program as defined in the state rule and determined following their reassessment
under the new Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) process.

The level of care criteria for waiver and nursing facility services are established by state rule and are
unchanged. The amended waiver includes a clarification that under the existing functional level of care
criteria that persons requiring skilled care (as defined in the state rule) are not eligible for the waiver. This
re-states existing policy and is incorporated in the assessment and eligibility determination processes.

The approved waiver provides for assessments using the ArPath system, which is based primarily on the
interRAI instrument. The ArPath system includes two algorithms that gather necessary information to
ascertain whether an applicant or participant needs the state’s level of care criteria related to Alzheimer’s
or related dementia (Cognitive Performance Scale) and daily skilled menitoring of a life-threatening
medical condition (Changes in Health, End-Stage Disease and Symptoms and Signs [CHESS]). Under the
new Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system, the necessary information for these criteria are
built into the ARIA instrument. Assessment instruments involve a complex array of questions asked by
registered nurses during the face-to-face evaluation meetings with applicants and participants. As with the
implementation of any new assessment instrument and routinely in the course of each assessment or re-
assessment, new or additional information directly relevant to level of care criteria, and therefore a
person’s functional / non-financial eligibility, may be received.

How new limitations on the amount of waiver services in amended waivers will be implemented:

Before implementation of the amended waiver, the state will promulgate the new/revised provider
manual. In Arkansas, manual promulgation includes a public comment period and legistative committee
review. Also, the state will provide for a series of regional training sessions and webinars for providers
and other stakeholders.

Re-assessments of existing participants will be performed through the new ARIA independent assessment
process on a revolving basis as previously approved person-centered service plans near expiration or
earlier if appropriate (such as in the event of care transitions).

State: Request for Amendment: 8
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

If persons served in approved waiver will not be eligible to participate in the new or
renewed/amended waiver, the plan describes the steps that the state will take to facilitate the
transition of affected individuals to alternate services and supports that will enable the individual to
remain in the community:

The amended waiver makes no changes to waiver eligibility policy, other than a technical change to
Section 1.F, Levels of Care, to clarify that individuals requiring a skilled level of care are not eligible for
the Living Choices program. This change aligns Section 1.F with the current Brief Waiver Description,
which states that the waiver eligibility is limited to “persons aged 21 to 64 years of age with a physical
disability, or 65 and older who require an intermediate level of care in a nursing facility The new
assessment process and instrument and eligibility determination process are based on the existing level of
care.

In the event that a person in the approved waiver is, for whatever reason, not eligible for the amended
waiver, they will be referred to other, alternative services, including, as appropriate, other waivers,
Medicaid State Plan services, Medicare services, and community services,

Includes the timetable for transitioning individuals to the new waiver (i.e., will participants in the
existing waiver transition to the new waiver all at the same time or will the transition be phased
in?),

As described above, existing participants will be transitioned to the amended waiver on a revolving basis
according to the expiration date of their current person-centered service plan and the timing of their next
re-assessment. Existing participants requiring earlier-than-planned re-assessments as a result of care
transitions or other life changes will be phased into the amended waiver during that re-assessment and
new service plan.

How participants are notified of the changes and informed of the opportunity to request a Fair
Hearing:

Participants may request a Fair Hearing concerning eligibility determinations and person-centered service
plans.

Current notification processes, including letters with information on how to request a Fair Hearing, will
continue, with information updated as necessary.

Relevant beneficiary materials will be updated to describe policy changes.

Additionai public and stakeholder notification are achieved through the state’s formal public comment
and promulgation process for the waiver program manual,

State: Request for Amendment: 9
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

REQUESTED AMENDMENTS TO WAIVER APPENDICES

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation

A-1. State Line of Authority for Waiver Operation. Specify the state line of authority for the operation
of the waiver:

X The waiver is operated by a separate agency of the State that is not a division/unit of Medicaid
agency

Department of Human Services, Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS)
and Division of Provider Setvices and Quality Assurance (DPSQA).

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation

A-2. Oversight of Performance,

b. Medicaid Agency Oversight of Operating Agency Performance. When the waiver is not operated
by the Medicaid agency, specity the functions that are expressly delegated through a memorandum of
understanding (MOU) or other written document, and indicate the frequency of review and update for that
document. Specify the methods that the Medicaid agency uses to ensure that the operating agency
performs its assigned waiver operational and administrative functions in accordance with waiver
requirements. Also specify the frequency of Medicaid agency assessment of operating agency
performance:

The Arkansas Department of Human Services (DHS) uses an Interagency Agreement to define the
responsibilities of the three DHS divisions — the Division of Medical Services (DMS, the Medicaid
agency), DAABHS, and DPSQA — charged with responsibility for administering both the ARChoices in
Homecare (ARChoices) and Living Choices Assisted Living (Living Choices) HCBS waiver programs.
This agreement is reviewed annually and updated as needed. DMS, as the Medicaid agency, monitors
this agreement on a continuous basis to assure that the provisions specified are executed.

DMS is responsible for all policy decisions concerning the waiver, promulgation of provider manuals and
regulations governing the waiver, reimbursement of certified waiver providers, and oversight of all
waiver-related functions delegated to DAABHS and DPSQA, including monitoring compliance with the
Interagency Agreement.

DAABHS is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the waiver, establishing waiver program
policies and procedures, overseeing the development and management of person-centered service plans,
and overseeing the Independent Assessment Contractor.

DPSQA is responsible for provider certification, compliance, and quality assurance. Through its Office of
Long Term Care {OLTC), DPSQA is responsible for level of care determinations. DMS and DAABHS
share the responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the performance of the Independent Assessment
Contractor and the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system.

State: Request for Amendment: 10
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

To oversee and monitor the functions performed by DAABHS and DPSQA in the administration and
operation of the waiver, DMS wili conduct team meetings as needed with DAABHS and DPSQA staff to
discuss compliance with the performance measures in the programs, results of chart reviews performed by
DMS and DAABHS, corrective action plans, remediation, and systems improvements to maintain
effective administration of the programs.

A-3. Use of Contracted Entities.
Specify whether contracted entities perform waiver operational and administrative functions on behalf of
the Medicaid agency and/or the operating agency (if applicable)

X Yes, Contracted entities perform waiver operational and administrative functions on behalf
of the Medicaid agency and/or operating agency (if applicable).

Specify the types of contracted entities and briefly describe the functions that they perform. Complete
Items A-5 and A-6.

A contractor (“Independent Assessment Contractor”) will perform independent assessments that gather
functional need information about each Living Choices waiver applicant and participant using the
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument. The information gathered is used to determine the
individual’s level of care and the tier level (which is intended to help inform waiver program oversight
and administration and person-centered service planning).

A-5 Responsibility for Assessment of Performance of Contracted and/or Local/Regional Non-State
Entities.

Specify the state agency or agencies responsible for assessing the performance of contracted and/or
local/regional non-state entities in conducting waiver operational and administrative functions:

As described in the Interagency Agreement between the Division of Medical Services (DMS, the
Medicaid agency), the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS), and the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA), DAABHS and DMS will jointly share
responsibility for oversight of the performance of the Independent Assessment Contractor, with DMS
being ultimately accountable. The contract provides for performance measures the Independent
Assessment Contractor is required to meet.

A-6 Assessment Methods and Frequency.

Describe the methods that are used to assess the performance of contracted and/or local/regional non-state
entities to ensure that they perform assigned waiver operational and administrative functions in
accordance with waiver requirements. Also specify how frequently the performance of contracted and/or
local/regional non-state entities is assessed:

The state assesses the performance of the Independent Assessment Contractor on a monthly and annual
basis through review and assessment of the monthly and annual Program Performance Reports submitted
by the Independent Assessment Contractor to the Contract Monitor. The state’s contract with the
Independent Assessment Contractor includes performance standards and requirements for a quality
monitoring and assurance program.

The Independent Assessment Contractor’s quality monitoring and assurance process must include (1) the
staff necessary to perform quality monitoring and assurance reviews for accuracy, data consistency,
integrity, and completeness of assessments and (2) procedures for assessing the performance of the staff
conducting the assessments, include a desk review of assessments, tier determinations, and recommended

State: Request for Amendment: 11

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

attendant care services hours according to the Task and Hour Standards for a statistically significant
number of cases. The Independent Assessment Contractor is required to include the results of the quality
monitoring and assurance process in the monthly reports submitted to the Contract Monitor in the format
required by DHS.

The monthly reports include the following:

1. Demographics about the beneficiaries who were assessed,;

2. An activities summary, including the volume, timeliness and outcomes of all Assessments and
Reassessments; and

3. A running total of the activities completed.

The annual report includes the following:

1. A summary of the activities over the prior year;

2. A summary of the Independent Assessment Contractor’s timeliness in scheduling and performing
assessments and reassessments;

3. A summary of findings from Beneficiary feedback research conducted by the Independent
Assessment Contractor; _

4. A summary of any challenges and risks perceived by the Independent Assessment Contractor in the
year ahead and how the Independent Assessment Contractor proposes to manage or mitigate those;
and

5. Recommendations for improving the efficiency and quality of the services performed.

The Contract Monitor and senior staff from DAABHS and DPSQA review the monthly and annual
reports submitted by the Independent Assessment Contractor within 15 days after they have been
submitted, and determine whether the Independent Assessment Contractor has submitted the required
information, following its quality monitoring and assurance process, and meeting the performance
standards in the contract. If not, the state will initiate appropriate corrective and preventive actions, which
may include, for example, further analysis and problem solving with the contractor, root cause analysis to
identify the cause of a discrepancy or deviation, enhanced reporting and monitoting, improved
performance measures, requiring development and execution of corrective action plans, reallocation of
staff resources, data and systems improvements, consultation with stakeholders, and/or sanctions under
the contract.

A-7 Distribution of Waiver Operational and Administrative Functions.

In the following table. specify the entity or entities that have responsibility for conducting each of the
waiver operational and administrative functions listed (check each that applies):

In accordance with 42 CFR §431.10. when the Medicaid agency does not directly conduct a function. it
supervises the performance of the function and establishes and/or approves policies that affect the
function. All functions not performed directly by the Medicaid agency must be delegated in writing and
monitored by the Medicaid Agency. Note: More than one box may be checked per item. Ensure that
Medicaid is checked when the Single Stute Medicaid Agency (1) conducts the function directly; (2)
supervises the delegated function; and or (3) establishes and'or approves policies related to the function.

State: Request for Amendment: 12
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

-

| Medicaid | Other State Operating | Contracted
Agency |

Function

P - Agency |

Level of care |~ ~
evaluation i

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation

Doy

~
I

Quality Improvement: Administration Authority of the Single State Medicaid Agency

a. Methods for Discovery: Administrative Authority
i.  Performance Measures

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of policies and/or procedures developed by DAABHS, in
consultation with DPSQA, that are reviewed and approved by the Medicaid Agency
prior to implementation. Numerator: Number of policies and procedures by
DAABHS Medicaid before implementation; Denominator: Number of policies and
procedures developed,

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of LOC assessments completed using the approved instrument
according (o the agreement with the Medicaid Agency. Numerator; Number of LOC
assessments completed using the approved instrument; Denominator: Number of
LOC assessments reviewed.

Medicaid Quarterly QA Report (Chart Reviews)

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS
during the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of participant service plans completed by DAABHS in the time
frame specified in the agreement with the Medicaid Agency. Numerator: Number of
service plans completed by DAABHS in time frame; Denominator: Number of
service plans reviewed.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS
during the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of LOC assessments completed by the Independent Assessment
Contractor in the time specified in the agreement with the Medicaid Agency.
Numerator: Number of LOC assessments completed by the Independent
Assessment Contractor in time frame; Denominator: Number of LOC assessments
reviewed.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

State: -
Efective Date

l Request for Amendment: 13




Request for Amendment o a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS
during the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of LOC assessments completed by an Independent Assessment
Contractor qualified evaluator according to the agreement with the Medicaid
Agency. Numerator: Number of LOC assessments completed by an Independent
Assessment Contractor qualified evaluator; Denominator: Number of LOC
assessments reviewed.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach {check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS
during the Chart Record Review process.

Performance Measure:

Number and percent of providers licensed by the Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance. Numerator: Number of current providers licensed by the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance; Denominator: Number of
providers participating in the waiver program.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Other

Specify: DMS performs a validation review of 20% of charts reviewed by DAABHS
during the Chart Record Review process.

Appendix A: Waiver Administration and Operation
Quality Improvement: Administrative Authority of the Single State Medicaid Agency
b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems
I.  Describe the State's method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
correction. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency), the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (operating agency), and the Division of
Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency) participate in team meetings to discuss and address
individual problems associated with administrative authority, as well as problem correction and
remediation. DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS have an Interagency Agreement for measures related fo
administrative authority of the waiver.

In cases where the numbers of active participants and unduplicated participants served in the waiver are
not within approved limits, remediation includes waiver amendments and possibly implementing a
waiting list. DMS reviews and approves all policy and procedures (including waiver amendmenis)
developed by DAABHS or DPSQA prior to implementation, as part of the Interagency Agreement. In
cases where policy or procedures were not reviewed and approved by DMS, remediation includes DMS
reviewing the policy upon discovery, and approving or removing the policy.

In cases where there are problems with level of care determinations completed within specified time
frames and by a qualified evaluator, additional staff training, staff counseling or disciplinary action may

State: _ Request for Amendment: 14
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBﬁaiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

be part of remediation. In addition, if these problems arise, the 1.OC determination is completed upon
discovery, the LOC determination may be redone and payments for services may be recouped. Similarly,
remediation for service plans not completed in specified time frames includes completing the service plan
upon discovery, additional training for staff and staff counseling or disciplinary action. DAABHS
conducts all remediation efforts in these areas,

Remediation to address participants not receiving at least one waiver service a month in accordance with
the service plan and the agreement with DMS includes closing a case, conducting monitoring visits,
revising a service plan to add a service, checking on provider billing and providing training. DAABHS
conducts remediation efforts in these areas, and the tool used for case record review documents and tracks
remediation.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-3. Number of Individuals Served (1 of 4)

a. Unduplicated Number of Participants, The following table specifies the maximum number of
unduplicated participants who are served in each vear that the waiver is in effect. The State will
submit a waiver amendment to CMS to modify the number of participants specified for any
vear(s). including when a modification is necessary due to legislative appropriation or another
reason. The number of unduplicated participants specified in this table is basis for the cost-
neutrality calculations in Appendix J:

S MbleiBss ]
Waiver YearlUnduplicated Number of Participants!

Year 1 | 1300
Year2 1300
Year 3 | 1300
Year 4 1725
Year 5 1725

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

¢. Qualifications of Individuals Performing Initial Evaluation: Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)1), specify
the educational/professional qualifications of individuals who perform the initial evaluation of level of
care for waiver applicants:

These activities are performed by registered nurses (RNs) licensed by the State of Arkansas under the
rules and standards of the State Board of Nursing. Arkansas is a participant in the multi-state Nurse
Licensure Compact.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

| State: | Request for Amendment: 15
Effective Date ' ]




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

d. Level of Care Criteria. Fully specify the level of care criteria that are used to evaluate and reevaluate
whether an individual needs services through the waiver and that serve as the basis of the State's level of
care instrument/tool. Specify the level of care instrument/tool that is employed. State laws, regulations,
and policies concerning level of care criteria and the level of care instrument/tool are available to CMS
upon request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable), including the
instrument/tool utilized.

Level of Care Criteria:

The functional level of care criteria for Living Choices Assisted Living waiver eligibility are established
in administrative rules and the Living Choices Assisted Living manual, as promulgated by the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS). Please see DHS rule 016.06 CARR 057 (2017) (Procedures for
Determination of Medical Need for Nursing Home Services).

As specified in the rule, to meet functional (non-financial) eligibility for the waiver program an individual
must:

1. Fully meet at least one of the following three level of care criteria:
a. The individual is unable to perform either of the following:

A. At least one (1) of the three (3) activities of daily living (ADLSs) of transferring/locomotion,
eating or toileting without extensive assistance from or total dependence upon another person; or,

B. At least two (2) of the three (3) activities of daily living (ADLs) of transferring/locomotion,
eating or toileting without limited assistance from another person; or,

b. The individual has a primary or secondary diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease or related dementia
and is cognitively impaired so as to require substantial supervision from another individual
because he or she engages in inappropriate behaviors which pose serious health or safety hazards
to himself or others; or,

¢. The individual has a diagnosed medical condition which requires monitoring or assessment at
least once a day by a licensed medical professional and the condition, if untreated, would be life-
threatening; and

2. Not require a skilled level of care, as defined in the rule.

For administration of this waiver, the term ‘life-threatening” means the probability of death from the
diagnosed medical condition is likely unless the course of the condition is interrupted by medical
treatment.

Instrument/Tool Used:

Currently, ArPath is the instrument approved for used by registered nurses (RNs) from DHS to collect
information used to determine (or re-determine) each applicant’s or participant’s level of care. The
ArPath instrument, which is based primarily on the interRAI toolset, was federally approved for use in the
current waiver.

Beginning on the effective date of this amended waiver, Arkansas will instead use a new instrument — the
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) — to collect information to evaluate level of care. Registered

State: Request for Amendment: 16
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

nurses from the Independent Assessment Contractor will use the ARIA instrument to conduct face-to-
face, in-home assessments and reassessments. Using the information collected during the assessment, the
Office of Long Term Care in DPSQA will evaluate whether an individual meets the State’s level of care
criteria.

All State laws, regulations, and policies conceming level of care criteria and the assessment
instrument/tool (including the current ArPath instrument, the new ARIA instrument, the Living Choices
waiver program manual, and the ARIA manual) are available to CMS upon request through DAABHS.

Note that the Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system is also being used to help determine
medical necessity and help adjudicate prior authorization requests for State Plan personal care services
and IndependentChoices self-directed personal assistance.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

e. Level of Care Instrument(s). Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(2), indicate whether the instrument/tool used
to evaluate level of care for the waiver differs from the instrument/tool used to evaluate institutional level
of care (select one):

The same instrument is used in determining the level of care for the waiver and for institutional
care under the State Plan.

X A different instrument is used to determine the level of care for the waiver than for institutional
care under the State plan.

Describe how and why this instrument differs from the form used to evaluate institutional level of
care and explain how the outcome of the determination is reliable, valid, and fully comparable.

Level of Care Instrument for Institutional Care:

The instrument used to evaluate institutional level of care is form DHS-703 (Evaluation of Medical Need
Criteria). The DHS-703 is completed by a registered nurse (RN) and includes information obtained from
the participant, family members, caregivers, and others. The DHS-703 was designed based on the
minimum data set (MDS) and the State’s nursing home admission criteria. It includes the nurse's
professional assessment of the participant and observations and evaluation of the participant's ability to
perform activities of daily living, along with other relevant information regarding the individual’s medical
history.

Level of Care Instrument for Waiver Program:

The level of care instrument for the Living Choices waiver program will be the Arkansas Independent
Assessment (ARIA) system will be used to support the level of care determination process.

Data needed for determining whether the State’s level of care criteria are met are gathered by both
instruments. The State’s level of care criteria are the same for the waiver and institutional care, with the
exception that individuals needing skilled nursing care are excluded from the waiver,

State: Request for Amendment: 17
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Both the ARIA instrument (as with the current ArPath instrument) and the DHS-703 assess needs, are
used by registered nurses and are person-centered, focusing on the participant's functioning and quality of
life. Both are used through independent, conflict-free assessment processes staffed by registered nurses.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

f. Process for Level of Care Evaluation/Reevaluation: Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(1). describe the
process for evaluating waiver applicants for their need for the level of care under the waiver. If the
reevaluation process dilfers from the evaluation process, describe the differences:

The new process for evaluating waiver applicants and re-evaluation of waiver program participants for
their respective needs for the level of care under the waiver is described below.

Under the new process, each waiver applicant needing an evaluation and each waiver participant needing
a re-evaluation will receive an individual assessment performed by the Independent Assessment
Contractor. Each assessment or re-assessment is performed by a licensed registered nurse (RN) using the
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument. The Office of Long Term Care (OLTC) in
DPSQA will use the assessment results to evaluate level of care. Functional need eligibility is valid for
one year, unless a shorter period is specified by OLTC.

As described in B-6-e, the Independent Assessment Contractor’s RNs will complete the ARIA instrument
for each initial evaluation and subsequent re-evaluation, drawing upon information from a face-to-face
meeting with the applicant/participant and, if necessary, information from other parties familiar with the
individual’s conditions, functional limitations, and circumstances.

Re-evaluations will continue to be performed on at least an annual basis, with the level of care re-affirmed
or revised and a written determination issued by the Office of Long Term Care. A re-evaluation may also
be performed anytime upon request the participant (or their legal representative or physician), if requested
by the DHS RN responsible for the participant’s person-centered service plan, or in cases a participant has
experienced a significant change in circumstances, such as a inpatient hospital or skilled nursing facility
admission or the loss of a primary caregiver.

The ARIA instrument is a comprehensive tool to collect detailed information to determine an individual’s
functional eligibility; identify needs, current supports, some of the individual’s preferences, and some of
the risks associated with home and community-based care for the individual; and inform the development
of the person-centered service plan. The ARIA instrument is used to gather information on the
applicant’s (or participant’s in the case of a re-evaluation) demographics; health care providers; current
services and supports received (including skilled nursing, therapies, medications, durable medical
equipment, and human assistance services), housing and living environment; decision-making and
designated representatives; emergency contacts; Activities of Daily Living (ADLs) needs; Instrumental
Activities of Daily Living (IADLSs) needs; health status (including symptoms, conditions, and diagnoses);
psychosocial status (including assessment of behavioral health impairments and risk factors); memory and
cognition; mental status; sensory and functional communication skills; self-preservation capabilities and
supports; family and other caregiver supports; participation in work, volunteering, or educational
activities; and quality of life (including routines, preferences, strengths and accomplishments, and goals
for future).

Once ARIA is operational, using assessment results and a DAABHS-approved tiering methodology, the
ARIA system will assign tiers designed to help further differentiate individuals by need. Each waiver

State: Request for Amendment: 18
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

applicant or participant will be assigned a tier level (0, 1, 2, or 3) following each assessment or re-
assessment. The tiers are intended to help inform waiver program oversight and administration and
person-centered service planning. The tiers do not replace the Level of Care criteria described in B-6-d,
waiver eligibility determinations, or the person-centered service plan process.

In summary:

1. Tier 0 (zero) and Tier 1 (one) indicate the individual’s assessed needs, if any, do not support the need
for either Living Choices waiver services or nursing facility services.

2. Tier 2 (two) indicates the individual’s assessed needs are consistent with services available through
either the Living Choices waiver program or a licensed nursing facility.

3. Tier 3 (three) indicates the individual needs skilled care available through a licensed nursing facility
and not through the waiver program.

These indications notwithstanding, the final determination of Level of Care and waiver eligibility is made
by the Office of Long-Term Care (OLTC).

(Note that ARIA-based assessments are also used to help determine whether Medicaid enrollees meet the
minimum ADL needs-based criteria for State Plan coverage of Medicaid personal care services or self-
directed personal assistance services. Tier 1 (one) and Tier 2 (two) each indicate that the Medicaid
enrollee meets the minimum criteria for personal care or self-directed personal assistance service
coverage. Coverage of these State Plan services for Medicaid enrollees is further subject to medical
necessity and prior authorization.)

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

i. Procedures to Ensure Timely Reevaluations. Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(4), specify the procedures that
the State employs to ensure timely reevaluations of level of care (specify):

DAABHS has established and maintains procedures for tracking review dates and initiating timely re-
evaluations prior to cach participant’s respective level of care review date and prior to the expiration of
the participant’s current person-centered service plan. This process ensures timely reevaluations prior to
the level of care review date and the expiration of the service plan (of care) so that no lapse in service
occurs,

Specifically, DAABHS uses a “tickler” file system approach that DAABHS registered nurses (DHS RNs)
and RN supervisors use to monitor upcoming review data and service plan expirations. The process of
reassessment begins two months prior to the expiration date of the current person-centered service plan or
two months prior to the annual anniversary date of the last independent assessment, whichever is earlier.
The case is added to the assessment schedule of the independent contractor. Once the re-assessment is
completed and the level of care revised as appropriate, the DHS RN begins development of the new
person-centered service plan.

The DHS RN supervisory staff, through the record review process and through routine monitoring and
auditing procedures, notifies the appropriate DHS RN, RN supervisor, and independent Assessment
Contractor if a re-assessment has not been completed within the specified DAABHS policy timeframes.

State: Request for Amendment: 19
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

The ACES report produced by the Division of County Operations is used as a tool by the DHS RN and
RN supervisor to determine if the assessment is current or has expired. Patterns of noncompliance are
documented and disciplinary action is taken if necessary.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-6. Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care

j. Maintenance of Evaluation/Reevaluation Records. Per 42 CFR §441.303(c)(3), the State assures that
writien and/or electronically retrievable documentation of all evaluations and reevaluations are
maintained for a minimum period of 3 years as required in 45 CFR §92.42. Specify the location(s) where
records of evaluations and reevaluations of level of care are maintained:

Records of evaluations and reevaluations of level of care are maintained by both the Division of Aging,
Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS), the primary autbority for the daily operation of the
waiver program, and the Office of Long Term Care (OLTC) in the Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance (DPSQA), which is responsible for the final level of care evaluations and
reevaluations. DAABHS maintains records for a period of six years from the date of closure/denial or
until all audit questions, appeal hearings, investigations, or court cases are resolved for a participant,
whichever is longer.

Appendix B: Evaluation/Reevaluation of Level of Care
Quality Improvement: Level of Care

a. Methods for Discovery: Level of Care Assurances/Sub-assurances
The state demonstrates that it implements the processes and instrument(s) specified in its
approved waiver for evaluating/reevaluating an applicant’srwaiver participant’s level of care
congsistent with level of care provided in a hospital, NF or ICFTID.
i.  Sub-Assurances:
a. Sub-ussurance: An evaluation for LOC is provided to all applicants for whom there is
reasonable indication that services may be needed in the future,
Performance Measure: Number and percentage of applicants who had a LOC
indicating need for nursing facility LOC prior to receipt of services. Numerator:
Number of applicants who received level of care prior to service; Denominator:
Total number of applicants.
Case Record Review
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence [nterval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence Jevel and a +/- 5%
margin of error.
b. Sub-assurance: The levels of care of enrolled participants are reevaluated at least
annually or as specified in the approved waiver.
Performance Measure: Number and percentage of waiver participants who
received an annual redetermination of LOC eligibility within 12 months of their
initial LOC evaluation or within 12 months of their last annual LOC re-
evaluation. Numerator: Number of participants receiving annual
redeterminations within 12 months; Denominator: number of records reviewed.

State: ) Request for Amendment: 20
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Case Record Review
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence Interval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

¢. Sub-assurance: The processes and instruments described in the approved waiver
are applied appropriately and according to the approved description to determine
participant level of care.
Performance Measures:
Number and percentage of participants LOC determinations made by a
qualified evaluator. Numerator: Number of participants with LOC made by a
qualified evaluator; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Number and percentage of participants annual re-evaluation LOC
determinations that were completed as required by the state. Numerator:
Number of participants with LOC determinations completed correctly;
Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Case Record Review
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence Interval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

if applicable, in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/identify problems/issues within the waiver
program, including frequency and parties responsible.

The state currently implements a system of monitoring that assures timeliness, accuracy,
appropriateness and quality. Data is collected from individual participant records, ageregated
1o produce summation reports, and compared with periodic randomly sampled record reviews
and sampled Program Integrity reviews.

Participant records undergo record reviews performed by DHS RN supervisors. Monthly
activity reports track assessments and reassessments performed by the Independent
Assessment Contractor. DHS RN reports are submitted to program RN supervisors and the
Nurse Manager, who then review for timefiness and accuracy. The 45 Day Report tracks all
waiver applications and identifies applicattons pending for more than 45 days. In addition, the
Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency)
maintains a daily log of assessments and reassessments sent to the Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (operating agency) Office of Long Term Care for
medical determination. Data from all assessment and review activity is aggregated to produce
an annual Record Review Summary, and Level of Care Monthly Report.

Level of Care is provided to all applicants for whom there is reasonable indication that
services may be needed. DHS RN supervisors perform record reviews of individual

participanis and results are aggregated for the Record Review Summary Report. Enrolled
participants are re-evaluated at least annually. The same record review process, described

State:

Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 21




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

above, is utilized for the re-evaluation process. Cases are identified for re-evaluation through
alerts in the ARIA assessment tool.

The assessment process and instruments described in the waiver are applied appropriately and
according to the approved description to determine participant level of care. Record reviews
include a review of assessment and reassessment functions, and their alignment with waiver
guidelines and timeframes. Findings are aggregated and included in the annual Record
Review Summary.

The DHS RN supervisory staff conducts random record reviews, in which all aspects of
Living Choices policy are reviewed. The Annual Report is a compilation of the results of the
review of the random record selection. The record review allows reviewets to evaluate trends
and identify where additional training for DHS RN is needed. Some measures have multipie
factors that are reviewed to determine if the area is in compliance. These measures are
directly related to the CMS waiver assurance areas, including level of care determinations.
DHS RN supervisory staff use the Raosoft calculation system to determine appropriate
sample size for Record Review. This system provides a statistical valid sample based on a
95% confidence level with a margin of error of +/- 5%. A systematic random sampling of the
active cases includes every “nth” name in the population.

The Division of Medical Services (DMS) QA review process inciudes review of the billing
process by Living Choices Medicaid providers. The DMS QA review process reviews 20% of
the records reviewed by DAABHS.

In addition to the record review process, an office review is completed by the DIIS RN
supervisor, at a minimum, annually for each DHS RN. Office reviews include, but are not
limited to: Documentation maintained appropriately; Processing system clearly defined and
office organized; Forms completed properly; and Required follow-up for any problems or
concerns documented.

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

i. Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered. Include
information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem correction. In
addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to document these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency,
with primary responsibility for waiver program operations and day-to-day oversight of the
independent assessment process), the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA) (operating agency with responsibility for level of care determinations), and the
Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency) — all three of which are part of the Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS) — participate in team meetings as needed to discuss and
address individual problems associated with leve! of care determinations, assessments, and
system improvements, as well as problem correction and remediation. DAABHS, DPSQA, and
DMS have an Interagency Agreement that includes measures related to level of care
determinations for the waiver.

The system currently in place for new applicants to enter the waiver program does not allow for
services to be delivered prior to an initial level of care assessment. Also, DAABHS requires that
all initial assessments and reassessments of level of care are completed by a registered nurse.

State:

Request for Amendment: 22

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Level of Care assessments are required annually using the approved assessment instrument
(currently, ArPath instrument, and upon the effective date of this Amendment, the Arkansas
Independent Assessment (ARIA) instrument) and applying the level of care criteria. The DHS RN
supervisors complete a regional monthly activity report, which lists the number of level of care
evaluations and re-evaluations conducted. Remediation efforts are included on the DHS RN
supervisors’ monthly report.

The DHS RN supervisors complete a review to evalvate trends and identify where additional
training is needed for the RNs and the OLTC staff performing level of care determinations.
Remediation in these areas includes ongoing training by DAABHS for the Independent
Assessment Contractor’s RNs who perform these assessments conducted correctly, consistent
with the assessment instrument and level] of care criteria, and that initial and annual re-evaluation
of level of care are completed within the required timeframes. DHS RN supervisors develop a
corrective plan when remediation in this area is needed.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility
B-7: Freedom of Choice

a.

Procedures. Specify the State's procedures for informing eligible individuals (or their legal
representatives) of the feasible aiternatives available under the waiver and allowing these
individuals to choose either institutional or waiver services. Identify the form(s) that are
employed to document freedom of choice. The form or forms are available to CMS upon request
through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable).

At the time of assessment and re-assessment of the waiver participant, the DHS RN explains the
services available through the Living Choices waiver, discusses the qualified assisted living
providers in the state and develops an appropriate person-centered service plan. As part of the
service plan development process, the participant (or representative) documents their choice to
have services provided in the community setting through the HCBS waiver as opposed to
receiving services in an institutional setting. In addition, freedom of choice is expiained through a
Freedom of Choice form and the applicable qualified provider listing; both are signed by the
waiver participant or their representative. This is documented on the service plan, which inciudes
the signature of the waiver participant (or representative) and the DHS RN, and included in the
participant's electronic record. NOTE: For reassessments, the Freedom of Choice form is utilized
showing if changes are requested by the participant. If no changes are requested, no signatures are
required on the provider listing; however, the Freedom of Choice form is signed and dated by the
participant or representative. The participant's signature on the service plan, as entered by the
participant or representative, documents that the participant (or representative) has made an
informed decision to receive HCBS rather than services in an institutional setting and that HCBS
are based on the participant's assessment of needs. Freedom of Choice documentation is tracked
through the record review process, all staff performance evaluations and monthly reporting.

If necessary, the DHS RN will read ail relevant information to the participant. If this is done, it
will be documented in the participant's record. Ail forms and information will be provided in
alternate formats upon request. If an alternate format is requested and/or provided, the DHS RN
will document the format requested and/or provided in the participant's record.

Maintenance of Forms. Per 45 CFR §92.42, written copies or electronically retrievable
facsimiles of Freedom of Choice forms are maintained for a minimum of three years. Specify the
locations where copies of these forms are maintained.

State:

Request for Amendment: 23

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Copies of the waiver participant's service plan are maintained with the Division of Aging, Adult,
and Behavioral Health Services (operating agency) and with the providers chosen by the
participant and included on the service plan. Freedom of Choice forms and person-centered
service plans are maintained for a period of six years from the date of closure/denial or until all
audit questions, appeal hearings, investigations or court cases are resolved for a participant,
whichever is longer.

Appendix B: Participant Access and Eligibility

B-8: Access to Services by Limited English Proficiency Persons

Access to Services by Limited English Proficient Persons. Specify the methods that the State uses to
provide meaningful access to the waiver by Limited English Proficient persons in accordance with the
Department of Health and Human Services "Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients
Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting I.imited English
Proficient Persons” (68 FR 47311 - August 8, 2003}):

All accommodations are provided on an individualized basis according to the participant's needs. DHS
has a contract with an interpreter to accommodate applicants/participants who are hearing impaired. DHS
RNs provide written materials to participants and will read any information to participants if needed. DHS
RNs may ufilize assistance from other divisions within the Arkansas Department of Human Services,
such as the Division of Services for the Blind, in these instances. When this occurs, it is documented in
the participant record.

Appendix C: Participant Services
C-1/C-3: Provider Specifications

Provider Type - Licensed Level 11 Assisted Living Facility

Provider Qualifications

License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a Level T1 Assisted Living Facility.

Other Standard

Living Choices waiver providers must meet the provider participation and enrollment requirements
contained within the Medicaid provider manual as well as be licensed by the Arkansas Department of
Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) as an Assisted Living
Level IT facility to be eligible to participate in the Arkansas Medicaid Program. A copy of the ALF’s
current license must accompany the provider application and Medicaid contract.

Providers must also be enrolled in the Arkansas Medicaid program as an Assisted Living Waiver Services
Provider before reimbursement may be made for services provided to Living Choices clients. Provider
participation requirements included training for provider staff. Training provisions include purpose and
philosophy of the program; agency’s written code of ethics; activities which shall or shall not be
performed by the provider; record keeping; plan of care; procedure for reporting changes in a client’s’
condition; and, a client’s right to confidentiality. This training must be provided prior to the delivery of
waiver services.

The facility must be located within the state of Arkansas.

Consistent with the authority and requirements of 42 CFR 455.470 (b) and (c) and with the concurrence
of the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), DPSQA may temporarily impose a
moratoria, numerical caps, or other limits on the certification and enroliment of new assisted living
facility providers in the Living Choices HCBS waiver program. If DPSQA determines temporary caps,

State: | Request for Amendment: 24
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver -
Living Choices Assisted Living

limits, or moratoria are appropriate and would not adversely impact beneficiaries' access to assisted living
facility services, it will initiate the process through filing a Request for State Implemented Moratorium
(CMS-10628 Form) with CMS.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance?]
Frequency of Verification:

Annual

Provider Type - Licensed Class A Home Health Agency

Provider Qualifications

License (specify)

Licensed by the Arkansas Department of Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance, as a Class A Home Health Agency.

Other Standard

Living Choices waiver providers must meet the provider participation and enrollment requirements
contained within the Medicaid provider manual as well as be licensed by the Arkansas Department of
Human Services, Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance as a Class A Home Health Agency
to be eligible to participate in the Arkansas Medicaid Program. A copy of the Class A Home Health
Agency’s current license must accompany the provider application and Medicaid contract.

Providers must also be enrolled in the Arkansas Medicaid program as an Assisted Living Waiver Services
Provider before reimbursement may be made for services provided to Living Choices clients. Provider
participation requirements included training for provider staff. Training provisions include purpose and
philosophy of the program; agency’s written code of ethics; activities which shall or shall not be
performed by the provider; record keeping; plan of care; procedure for reporting changes in a client’s
condition; and, a client’s right to confidentiality. This training must be provided prior to the delivery of
waiver services.

The facility must be located within the state of Arkansas.

Provider qualifications, licenses, training, education and experience for the staff of Home Health
Agencies are the same as Medicaid enrolled Home Health Agencies.

Verification of Provider Qualifications

Entity Responsible for Verification:

Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

Frequency of Verification:

Annual

Appendix C: Participant Services
C-2: General Services Specifications (1 of 3)

a. Criminal History and/or Background Investigations. Specify the State's policies concerning
the conduct of criminal history and/or background investigations of individuals who provide
waiver services (select one):

Specify: (a) the types of positions (e.g., personal assistants, attendants) for which such
investigations must be conducted; (b) the scope of such investigations (e.g., state, national); and,
{c) the process for ensuring that mandatory investigations have been conducted. State laws,
regulations and policies referenced in this description are available to CMS upon request through
the Medicaid or the operating agency (if applicable):

A criminal history record check is required for employees of long-term care facilities, according
to Ark. Code Ann. §20-33-213. The Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

State: Request for Amendment: 25
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

(DPSQA), Office of Long-Term Care, requires state and national criminal history record checks
on employees of long-term care facilities, including assisted living facilities. Employees include
any person who has unsupervised access to participants; provides care to participants on behalf of
a service provider, under supervision of, or by arrangement with the assisted living facility; is
employed by the facility to provide care to participants; or, is a temporary employee placed by an
employment agency with the facility to provide care to participants. Before making an offer of
employment, the assisted living facility shall inform an applicant that employment is contingent
on the satisfactory results of criminal history record checks.

When a facility operator applies for licensure to operate a long-term care facility, the operator
shall complete a criminal record check form (DMS-736) and FBI fingerprint card obtained from
the Office of Long Term Care. The forms and appropriate fees shall be submitted to the Office of
Long Term Care attached to the application for licensure of the facility. Upon the determination
that an applicant has submitted all necessary information for licensure, the Office of Long Term
Care shall forward the criminal record check request form to the Arkansas State
Police/Identification Bureau. Upon completion of the state and national record checks, the Bureau
shall issue a report to the Office of Long Term Care for a determination whether the operator is
disqualified from licensure. The determination results shall be forwarded to the facility seeking
licensure.

Facilities are required to conduct initial criminal history record checks at the time of the first
application and undergo periodic criminal record checks at least once every five years. Periodic
criminal record checks shall be performed on all applicable employees on an ongoing basis. Each
long-term care facility shall implement a schedule to conduct criminal record checks on
applicable employees so that no applicable employee exceeds five years without a new criminal
record check.

Facilities are required to comply with AR DHS Policy 1088.2.3, DHS Participant Exclusion Rule.

In addition, the Arkansas Medicaid Program requires criminal background checks on all
Medicaid providers, regardless of provider type, prior to Medicaid enrollment. This process is
accomplished through the state’s claims processing contractor.

Home Health Agencies that contract with the ALF's must meet the same requirements for initial
criminal history record checks.

Criminal history/background investigations in LTC/NF facilities are monitored through the Office
of Long Term Care Licensing and Surveying Unit.

Abuse Registry Screening. Specify whether the State requires the screening of individuals who
provide waiver services through a State-maintained abuse registry (select one):

The Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA), Office of Long-Term Care,
requires that assisted living facilities conduct adult abuse registry checks on employees prior to
licensure. The facility must provide documentation that employees have not been convicted or do
not have a substantiated report of abusing or neglecting residents or misappropriating resident
property. The facility shall, at a minimum, prior to employing any individual or for any
individuals working in the facility through contract with a third party, make inquiry to the
Employment Clearance Registry of the Office of Long Term Care and the Adult Abuse Register
maintained by the Adult Protective Services Unit within the Division of Aging, Adult, and
Behavioral Health Services. Employees must be re-checked every five years. The Office of Long

State:

Request for Amendment: 26

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Term Care requires that each facility have written employment and personnel policies and
procedures, which include verification that an adult abuse registry check has been completed.

Employees include any person who has unsupervised access to participants; provides care to
participants on behalf of a service provider, under supervision of, or by arrangement with the
assisted living facility; is employed by the facility to provide care to participants; or, is a
temporary employee placed by an employment agency with the facility to provide care to
participants,

The OLTC Licensing and Surveying Unit ensures that mandatory screenings have been
conducted.

When a facility operator applies for licensure to operate a long-term care facility, the operator
shall complete a criminal record check form (DMS-736) and FBI fingerprint card obtained from
the Office of Long Term Care. The forms and appropriate fees shall be submitted to the Office of
Long Term Care attached to the application for licensure of the facility, Upon the determination
that an applicant has submitted all necessary information for licensure, the Office of Long Term
Care shall forward the criminal record check request form to the Arkansas State
Police/Identification Bureau. Upon completion of the state and national record checks, the Bureau
shall issue a report to the Office of Long Term Care for a determination whether the operator is
disqualified from licensure. The determination results shall be forwarded to the facility seeking
licensure.

Facilities are required to conduct initial criminal history record checks at the time of the first
application and undergo periodic criminal record checks at least once every five years. Periodic
criminal record checks shall be performed on all applicable employees on an ongoing basis. Each
long-term care facility shall implement a schedule to conduct criminal record checks on
applicable employees so that no applicable employee exceeds five years without a new criminal
record check.

Facilities are required to comply with AR DHS Policy 1088.2.3, DHS Participant Exclusion Rule.

In addition, the Arkansas Medicaid Program requires criminal background checks on all
Medicaid providers, regardless of provider type, prior to Medicaid enrollment. This process is
accomplished through the state’s claims processing contractor.

Home Health Agencies that contract with the ALF's must meet the same requirements for initial
criminal history record checks.

Criminal history/background investigations in LTC/NF facilities are monitored through the Office
of Long Term Care Licensing and Surveying Unit.

Other State Policies Concerning Payment for Waiver Services Furnished by Relatives/Legal
Guardians. Specify State policies concerning making payment to relatives/legal guardians for the
provision of waiver services over and above the policies addressed in Item C-2-d. Select one:
Specify the specific circumstances under which payment is made, the types of relatives/legal
guardians to whom payment may be made, and the services for which payment may be made.
Specify the controls that are employed to ensure that payments are made only for services
rendered. 4lso specify in Appendix C-1/C-3 each waiver service for which payment may be made
to relatives/legal guardians

State:

Request for Amendment: 27

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

All Living Choices waiver services may be provided by a family member of the participant when
the family member is employed by the assisted living facility. Legally responsible family
members or caregivers (spouse or legal guardian of the person) are prohibited from receiving
reimbursement for direct provision of covered services for the Living Choices participant.

Living Choices waiver providers must meet the provider participation and enrollment
requirements contained within the Medicaid provider manual and be licensed as an Assisted
Living Level II facility or Class A Home Health Agency.

Open Enrollment of Providers. Specify the processes that are employed to assure that all
willing and qualified providers have the opportunity to enroll as waiver service providers as
provided in 42 CFR §431.51:

Living Choices provider enrollment is open and continuous. Prospective Living Choices Assisted
Living Providers may contact the Medicaid program’s Provider Enrollment Unit for information
about becoming a provider. There are no restrictions applicable to requesting this information.
This process is open and available to any interested party.

The website of the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) lists
information for potential Living Choices providers. In addition, the Office of Long Term Care
within DPSQA provides information about becoming a waiver provider during the process of
licensing facilities, upon request.

Appendix C: Quality Improvement

Quality Improvement: Qualified Providers
a. Methods for Discovery: Level of Care Assurances/Sub-assurances

The state demonstrates that it implements the processes and instrument(s) specified in its
approved waiver for evaluating veevaluating an applicant's waiver participani's level of care
consistent with level of care provided in a hospital. NF or [CF/HD.
i.  Sub-Assurances:
b. Sub-assurance: The State monitors non-licensed/non-certified providers to assure
adherence to waiver requirements.
Performance Measure: Number and percent of qualified providers will be licensed
by the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance. Qualified providers will
be offered using the freedom of choice list. Numerator: Number of providers with
maintained license; Denominator: Total number of providers.

ii.  Ifapplicable, in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/identify problems/issues within the waiver
program, including frequency and parties responsible.

The state identifies and rectifies situations where providers do not meet requirements.
This is accomplished by monitoring certification/license expiration dates within
MMIS and continuing communication with the Medicaid fiscal agent responsible for
provider enroliment functions, and reviewing monthly reports that identify providers
whose participation is terminated for inactivity or violations. Participation in provider
training is documented and monitored through monthly activity reports.

State:

Request for Amendment: 28

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

The state verifies that providers meet required licensing or certification standards and
adhere to other state standards. License expiration dates are maintained in the MMIS
and tracked for all participating and active providers.

Each month the DHS RN receives a provider list for each county included in their
geographical area. This provider list may be used at each assessment and
reassessment to give the participant a choice of providers for each service included
on the service plan. In addition, this list is used to identify the providers who are new
or who have been reinstated in the program.

Providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider Manual
related to provider training of employees and staff orientation, including
documentation requirements, provider participation requirements, and any penalties
or sanctions applicable for noncompliance.

DPSQA and DAABHS work collaboratively to train providers on program policy,
including documentation requirements, reporting, claims processing and billing, the
Medicaid Provider Manual and other areas. This training is scheduled, at 2 minimum,
two times per year based on training needs.

Training requirements are explained in the provider manual, In addition, DPSQA is
responsible for contacting new providers according to program policy. These
contacts provide information regarding proper referrals, eligibility criteria,
documentation requirements, forms, reporting, general information about the
program, Section Il of the Medicaid provider manual, and claims processing
problems, etc. Within three months of appearing on the provider list, each new
provider must meet with the DHS RN face-to-face to discuss ali of the above, plus
any problems noted in the first three months of participation,

Evaluations from in-services are used to address strengths and weaknesses in the
training process, topics for future in-services and policy enhancements. As a result of
in-services, policy clarifications have been issued; forms have been revised; training
topics have been chosen; documentation requirements have been revised; training
sessions have been redesigned.

The Medicaid fiscal agent provides DPSQA access to Provider License/Certification
Status. 1f needed, this provides a second monitoring tool for monitoring licensure
compliance.

The mandatory Medicaid contract, signed by each waiver provider, includes
compliance with required enrollment criteria. Failure to maintain required licensure
results in loss of their Medicaid provider enrollment. Each provider is notified in
writing at least two months prior to the licensure expiration date that renewal is due
and failure to maintain proper licensure will result in loss of Medicaid enrollment.

In accordance with the Medicaid provider manual, the provider must require staff to
attend orientation training prior to allowing the employee to deliver any waiver
services. This orientation shall include, but not be limited to, descriptions of the
purpose and philosophy of the Living Choices program; discussion and distribution
of the provider agency’s written code of ethics; activities which shall and shall not be
performed by the employee; instructions regarding Living Choices record keeping

State:

Request for Amendment: 29

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

requirements; the importance of the service plan; procedures for reporting changes in
the participant’s condition; discussion, including potential legal ramifications, of the
participant's right to confidentiality.

All waiver providers are responsible for all provider requirements, penalties and
sanctions as detailed in the Medicaid provider manual.

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing [ndividual Problems

i,  Describe the State’s method tor addressing individual problems as thev are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
cotrection. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items.

To continue Medicaid enrollment, a waiver provider must maintain certification by DPSQA.
In cases where providers do not maintain certification, DPSQA’s remediation may include
requesting termination of the provider’s Arkansas Medicaid enrollment, recouping payment
for services provided after certification/licensure has expired, and allowing the participant to
choose another provider.

Appendix D: Participant -Centered Planning and Service Delivery
D-1: Service Plan Development

D-1: Service Plan Development (3 of 8) - Supporting the Participant in Service Plan Development

When scheduling the person-centered service plan development visit, the DHS Division of Aging, Adult,
and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) registered nurse (DHS RN) explains to the participant or
authorized representative the process and informs the participant that they may invite anyone they choose
to participate in the service plan development process. Involved in this assessment visit is the participant
and anyone they choose to have attend, such as their family, their representative, caregivers, and any other
persons identified by the participant or family as having information pertinent to the assessment process
or service plan development process. It is the participant or family member’s responsibility to notify
interested parties to attend the service plan development meeting.

During the service plan development, the DHS RN explains to the participant the services available
through the Living Choices waiver.

When developing the person-centered service plan, all services and any applicable benefit limits are
reviewed, as well as the comprehensive goals, objectives and appropriateness of the services. The
participant and their representatives participate in all decisions regarding the type of services, amount and
frequency of the services included on the service plan. All services must be justified, based on need and
available support services. This information is recorded on the service plan, which is signed by the
participant.

D-1: Service Plan Development (4 of 8) — Service Plan Development Process

a) DHS RNs will develop initial person-centered service plans for Living Choices participants based on
the Independent Assessment Contractor’s assessment of the participant's needs and information gathered

State: Request for Amendment: 30
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

during the service plan development meeting with the participant. The DHS RN will inform participants
that they may invite anyone that they choose to participate in the service plan development process.
Involved in this service plan development visit is the participant, their family, their representative,
caregivers, and any other persons identified by the participant or family as having information pertinent to
the assessment or service plan development process. It is the participant or family member’s
responsibility to notify interested parties to attend the service plan development meeting. The DHS RN
will assist in notifying interested parties if requested by the participant or the representative.

The development of the person-centered service plan will begin with an in-person independent
assessment conducted by the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor. The Independent Assessment
Contractor will contact the waiver participant to schedule a convenient time and location for the
assessment. The assessment will be scheduled and completed by the Independent Assessment Contractor
within 10 working days of the Independent Assessment Contractor receiving a referral from DHS,
Following the assessment and assignment of a tier level by the Independent Assessment Contractor, a
DHS RN will schedule a meeting with the participant to develop the service plan. Reassessments, which
will be conducted by the Independent Assessment Contractor, will be completed annually or more often,
if deemed appropriate by the DHS RN. Following the reassessment by the Independent Assessment
Contractor, the DHS RN will develop a person-centered service plan. The service plan may be revised at
any time, based on information relevant to the participant's condition or circumstances. Service plans are
developed and sent to all providers before services may begin.

(b) The Independent Assessment Contractor will assess the participant’s needs. The DHS RN will assess
the participant’s comprehensive goals and objectives related to the participant’s care and reviews the
appropriateness of Living Choices services. 1f necessary, the DHS RN will read any of the information
provided during the assessment to the participant. If this is done, it is documented in the participant’s
record. All forms and information will be provided in an alternate format upon request. If an alternate
format is requested and/or provided, the DHS RN will document in the participant’s record the format
requested and/or provided.

All accommodations are provided on an individualized basis according to the participant's needs. DHS
has a contract with an interpreter to accommodate applicants/participants who are hearing impaired. The
Independent Assessment Contractor and the DHS RNs will provide written materials to participants and
will read any information to participants if needed. DHS RNs may utilize assistance from other divisions
within the Arkansas Department of Human Services, such as the Division of Services for the Blind, in
these instances. When this occurs, it is documented in the participant's record.

The results of the Independent Assessment Contractor’s functional assessment using the ARTA
assessment tool will be used by the Office of Long Term Care to evaluate the level of care and by the
DHS RN to develop the person-centered service plan. Information collected for the Independent
Assessment Contractor’s functional assessment using the ARIA tool will include demographic
information and information on the waiver participant’s ability to perform the activities of daily living;
transferring and ambulation; continence status; nutritional status; hearing, vision, speech and language;
skin condition; behavior and attitude; orientation level; other medical conditions; psychosocial and
cognitive status; and, medications/treatments.

The assessment is a complete functional assessment and includes a medical history. The Independent
Assessment Contractor will evaluate the participant's physical, functional, mental, emotional and social
status, and will obtain a medical history to ensure that the service plan addresses the participant's
strengths, capacities, health care, and other needs. The DHS RN will assess the participant’s preferences,
goals, desired outcomes, and risk factors. Support systems available to the participant are identified and

State: Request for Amendment: 31
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

documented, along with services currently in place. Based on this assessment information, the DHS RN
will discuss the service delivery plan with the participant.

When the service plan development process results in an individual being denied the services or the
providers of their choice, the state must afford the individual the opportunity fo request a Fair Hearing.

Provisional (Temporary Interim) Service Plan Policy: A provisional person-centered service plan may be
developed by the DHS RN prior to determination of Medicaid eligibility, based on informatton obtained
during the in-home functional assessment if the applicant is functionally eligible based on the
Independent Assessment Contractor’s assessment AND if the DHS RN believes, in his or her professional
judgment, the individual meets the level of care criteria. The DHS RN must discuss the

Provisional Service Plan Policy and have approval from the applicant prior to completing and processing
a provisional service plan, which will then be signed by the applicant or the applicant's representative and
the DHS RN. The provisional service plan will be provided to the waiver applicant and each provider
included on the service plan. The provider wili notify the DHS RN via form AAS-9510 (Start of Care
Form), indicating the date services begin. No provisional service plans will be developed if the waiting
list process has been implemented.

Provisional person-centered service plans expire 60 days from the date signed by the DIIS RN and the
participant. A comprehensive service plan that has been approved with a Medicaid number and waiver
eligibility date must be in place no later than the expiration date of the provisional service plan. Prior to
its expiration date, the DHS RN will provide a signed, comprehensive service plan to the Living Choices
provider,

The Independent Assessment Contractor will complete a face-to-face functional assessment within 10
working days of receiving a referral from DHS. The DHS RN meets with the participant and develops a
Living Choices person-centered service plan. Once the service plan is signed by the DHS RN and the
applicant, it is considered a provisional service plan.

If services are started based on the provisional service plan, providers will send the Start of Care (AAS-
9510) form to the DHS RN indicating the date services started. ‘No additional notitication to the DHS RN
is required when the comprehensive service plan is received.

(c) During the person-centered service plan development process, the DHS RN explains the services
available through the Living Choices waiver to the participant, including any applicable benefit limits. All
services the participant is currently receiving are discussed and documented on the person-centered
service plan. This includes all medical and non-medical services, such as diapers, under pads,
nonemergency medical transportation, family support or other services that are routinely provided.

(d) The DHS RN develops the person-centered service plan based on the information gathered through
the assessment process and the discussion of available services with the participant. The service plan
addresses the participant's needs, goals and preferences. The participant may invite anyone they choose
to participate in the assessment and service plan development process, including family members and
caregivers. Also, the DHS RN may contact anyone who may be able to provide accurate and pertinent
information regarding the participant's condition and functional ability.

If there is any indication prior to or during the assessment or person-centered service plan development
process that the participant is confused or incapable of answering the questions required for a proper
assessment and service plan development, the assessment or service plan development will not be
conducted without another person present who is familiar with the participant and his or her condition.
This may be a family member, friend, neighbor, caregiver, etc. If unavailable for the interview, this

State: Request for Amendment: 32
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

person may be contacted by phone. These individuals' participation in the service plan development
process also helps to ensure that the participant's goals, preferences and needs are met.

When developing or updating the person-centered service plan, the participant and their representatives
participate in all decisions regarding the types, amount and frequency of the services included on the
service plan. All services must be justified, based on need and available support services.

{e)- The participant must choose a provider for cach waiver service selected. During the service plan
development process, the DHS RN informs the participant or their legal guardian or family member of the
available services. The participant or guardian/family member may choose the providers from which to
receive services. Documentation verifying freedom of choice was assured is included in the participant's
record on the person-centered service plan, and on the provider list. Both documents reflect freedom of
choice was given to the participant. The freedom of choice form and all related documents are included in
the participant's record and reviewed during the DHS RN supervisory review process. Each service
included on the service plan is explained by the DHS RN. The amount, frequency, scope and provider of
each service is also discussed and entered on the service plan. The DHS RN sends a copy of the service
plan to the waiver provider, as well as the participant, The DHS RN tracks the implementation of each
service through the Start of Care form, which includes the date services begin.

()- Implementation, compliance, and monitoring of the person-centered service plan is the responsibility
of DAABHS (Operating Agency), DMS (Medicaid Agency), and providers of Living Choices Assisted
Living waiver services.

Service providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider Manual related to
monitoring, including types of monitoring, timeframes, reporting and documentation requirements.
Providers are required to report any change in the participant's condition to the DHS RN, who is the only
authorized individual who may adjust a participant's service plan. Providers agree to render all services in
accordance with the Arkansas Medicaid Living Choices Assisted Living Home & Community Based
Services Waiver Provider Manual; to comply with all policies, procedures and guidelines established by
DAABHS; to notify the DHS RN immediately of any change in the participant's physical, mental or
environmental needs the provider observes or is made aware of that may affect the participant's eligibility
or necessitate a change in the participant's person-centered service plan; to continually monitor participant
satisfaction and quality of service delivery; and, to notify the DHS RN in writing within one week of
services being terminated, documenting the termination effective date and the reason for the termination.

Providers assure DPSQA that adequate staffing levels are maintained to ensure timely and consistent
delivery of services to all participants for whom they have accepted a Living Choices Assisted Living
service plan. Providers acknowledge that they may render and pursue reimbursement for services
delivered in accordance with the service plan developed by the DHS RN. Providers acknowledge that the
DHS RN is the only authorized individual who may adjust a Living Choices Assisted Living waiver
participant’s service plan. Providers will implement the service plan with the flexibility to schedule hours
to best meet the needs of the participant and will be monitored by DAABHS for compliance.

Service plans are revised by DHS RNs as needed between assessments. based on reports secured through
providers, waiver participants and their support systems,

(g)- Each reassessment and person-centered service plan development is completed annually or more
often, if deemed appropriate by the DHS RN. The service plan may be revised at any time, based on
information relevant to the participant’s condition or circumstances. Changes are reported to the DHS RN
by the participant. the participant's family or representatives, and service providers. The DHS RN has sole

State: Request for Amendment: 33
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

authority for all development and revisions to the waiver service plan. Service plan updates must be
based on a change in the participant's status or needs.

D-1: (5 of 8) Risk Assessment and Mitigation

The Independent Assessment Coniractor will assess a participant's needs, functional abilities, and
performance of activities of daily living during the assessment. The DHS RN assesses a participant’s
preferences, risks, dangers, and supports during the meeting with the participant to develop a person-
centered service plan. In addition, the service plan development process includes assessment of risk
factors and strategies to mitigate risk conducted in a manner that is sensitive to the waiver participant's
preferences and the responsibilities required to reduce risk. The risk mitigation includes factors regarding
the participant’s functioning ability, ADL performance, support systems in place, risk of falls,
environmental factors, and other dangers. This information is included on the person-centered service
plan and in the participant's record. Services are started as soon as possible in order to mitigate risk.

The person-centered service plan also includes contact information for emergency care and backup plans.
The name of a backup caregiver, or the person responsible for the participant, must be included on the
person-centered service plan. Backup caregivers are often family members, neighbors or others familiar
with the participant.

Routine monitoring of Living Choices Assisted Living participants also helps to assess and mitigate risk.
DHS RNs make at least annual contact with participants and take action to mitigate risks if an issue
arises.

Also, providers, family members and others who have regular contact with participants are required to
report any change in participant condition, or perceived risk or other problem concerning the participant.
The DHS RNs also re-evaluate potential participant risks during each reassessment and during monitoring
visits. DHS RNs refer any high-risk participants to Adult Protective Services immediately if it is felt that
the participant is in danger. DHS RNs also provide patient education on safety issues during the
assessment and annual reassessment. The annual contact by the DHS RN is a minimum contact standard.
Visits are made as needed during the interim.

Service providers are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider manual related to
emergencies, including the emergency backup plan process and contact information for emergencies. The
provider assures DAABHS all necessary safeguards and precautions have been taken to protect the health
and welfare of the participants they serve. Providers agree to operate and provide services in full
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local standards including, but not limited to, fire, health,
safety and sanitation standards prescribed by law or regulations. Providers assure DAABHS that
conditions or circumstances which place a person, or the household of a person, in imminent danger will
be brought to the attention of appropriate officials for follow-up. Providers agree to inform the DHS RN
immediately of any change in the participant's physical, mental or environmental needs the provider
observes or is made aware of that may affect the participant's eligibility or would necessitate a change in
the participant's service plan.

Also, participants, family members or the participant's representative may also contact the DHS RN any

time a change is needed or a safety issue arises. Additional monitoring is performed by DMS as part of

the validation review, by Office of Medicaid Inspector General audits, and in response to any complaints
received.

State: Request for Amendment: 34
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

D-1: (6 of 8) Informed Choice of Providers

The participant must choose a provider for each waiver service selected. When a person-centered service
plan is developed, the DHS RN must inform the individual, their representative, or family member of all
qualified Living Choices Assisted Living qualified providers in the individual's service delivery area. The
participant, representative, or guardian/family member may choose the providers from which to receive
services. The name of the providers chosen by the participant, representative, or family
member/representative must be included on the person-centered service plan prior to securing the
individual's signature. Along with signing the service plan, and the Freedom of Choice form, an up-to-
date provider listing from DPSQA must be signed and initialed. 1f a family member/representative
chooses a provider for the participant, the DHS RN must identify the individual who chose the providers
on the service plan and on the Freedom of Choice form. Documentation is also included in the
participant’s record and reviewed during the DHS RN supervisory review process.

For reassessments, the participant or representative must sign the Freedom of Choice form to show that
no change in providers was made. The provider listing does not need to be initialed if there are no
changes in providers. However, if a participant wishes to change providers at reassessment, both the
Freedom of Choice form and provider listing must be signed and initialed indicating this change.
Participants may request a change of providers at any time during a waiver year.

The participant chooses the provider. However, the participant may invite his or her family members or
representative to participate in the decision-making process. Any decision made by a family member or
representative is done at the participant's request and is documented.

DHS RN leave contact information with participants at each visit. The participant may contact the DHS
RN at any time to find out more information about providers.

D-1: Service Plan Development (7 of 8)
& Process for Making Service Plan Subject to the Approval of the Medicaid Agency. Describe
the process by which the service plan is made subject to the approval of the Medicaid
agency in accordance with 42 CFR §441.301(b)(1)(i):

All waiver service plans are subject to the review and approval by both the Division of Aging,
Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating agency) and the Division of
Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency).

DMS does not review and approve all service plans prior to implementation; however, all are
subject to the Medicaid Agency’s approval. DAABHS reviews a statistically valid random
sampling of participant records which includes the service plan, and DMS reviews 20% of the
records reviewed by DAABHS. Reviewed service plans are compared to policy guidelines, the
functional assessment, and the narrative detailing the participant's living environment, physical
and mental limitations, and overall needs. All service plans are subject to the approval of the
Medicaid Agency and are made available by the operating agency upon request. DMS randomly
reviews scrvice plans through several authorities within the Medicaid Agency, such as Program
Integrity and the Quality Assurance unit.

A statistically valid random sample of service plans is determined, using the Raosoft software
calculations program, for review monthly by the DHS RN supervisory staff to assess the
appropriateness of the service plan, to validate service provision, to ensure that services are
meeting the waiver participant's needs and that necessary safeguards have been taken to protect

State: Request for Amendment: 35
Effective Date




Request tor Amendment to a §1915(cy HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

the health and welfare of the participant and to profile provider billing practices. In the event the
service plan is deemed inappropriate or service provision is lacking, the DHS RN addresses any
needed corrective action. In the event provider billing practices are suspect, all pertinent
information is forwarded to the DPSQA Program Integrity Unit or DPSQA QA Unit.

Each year, DAABHS reports to the DPSQA Waiver Quality Management Administrator the
findings of the service plan review process.

Information reviewed by both DAABHS and DMS during the record review process includes
without limitation: development of an appropriate individualized service plan, completion of
updates and revisions to the service plan and coordination with other agencies as necessary to
ensure that services are provided according to the service plan.

D-1: Service Plan Development (8 of 8)

i

Maintenance of Service Plan Forms. Written copies or eiectronic facsimiles of service plans are
maintained for a minimum period of 3 vears as required by 45 CFR §92.42. Service plans are
maintained by the following rcheck each that applies):

X Operating ugency

Specity:

The service plan is maintained by the DHS RN in the participant's record and by the Living
Choices waiver provider.

D-2: Service Plan Implementation and Mouitoring

a.

Service Plan Implementation and Monitoring. Specifv: (a) the entity (entities) responsible tor
monitoring the implementation ot the service plan and participant bealth and welfare; (b) the
monitoring and follow-up method(s) that are used: and, (c) the frequency with which monitoring
is performed.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) employs Registered
Nurses (DHS RNs) who are responsible for monitoring the implementation of the person-centered
service plans (PCSP). When the DHS RN sends the person-centered service plan to the provider
for implementation, he/she also sends a start of care form along with the PCSP. The provider is
required to document the date the service began and return the form to the DHS RN. If the start of
care form is not returned to the DHS RN within 10 business days, the DHS RN contacts the
provider about the status of implementation. If the provider is unable to provide the service, the
DHS RN contacts the participant and offers other qualified providers for the service. The DHS
RN is only required to have one start of care form per service in the participant record if services
remain at the same level by the same provider when reassessed. If the amount of service changes
or the provider of the service changes a new start of care form is required.

DHS RNs monitor each waiver participant's status on an as-needed basis for changes in service
need, reassessment, if necessary, and reporting any participant complaints of violations of rules
and regulations to appropriate authorities for investigation. If participants are unable to participate
in a monitoring contact, the participant may invite anyone they choose to participate in the visit.
Most often this is the participant's legal representative, guardian or family member.

At each assessment and reassessment, the DHS RN provides the participant with their business
card with contact information, an Adult Protective Services (APS) brochure to provide
information and the toll-free APS hatline for reporting abuse, maltreatment or exploitation. This
information may be utilized by the participant or guardians/family members to report any issues
tHey deem necessary, sa that DAABHS can ensure prompt follow-up to problems.

State:

Request for Amendment: 36

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

INFORMATION EXCHANGE:

Both DMS and DAABHS perform regular reviews to support proper implementation and
monitoring of the service plan. Record reviews are thorough and include a review of all required
documentation regarding compliance with the service plan development assurance. Reviews
include, but are not limited to, completeness of the service plan; timeliness of the service plan
development process; appropriateness of all medical and non-medical services; consideration of
participants in the service plan development process; clarity and consistency; and, compliance
with program policy regarding ail aspects of the service plan development, changes and renewal.

The Division of Medical Services QA review reflects internal review of the billing process by
Living Choices Medicaid providers. DAABHS conducts a record review on a monthly basis to
monitor accuracy and completeness of the record, service plan implementation, service delivery,
and the health and welfare of the participant, and DMS reviews 20% of the records reviewed by
DAABHS. The DAABHS review completes a systematic random sampling of the active case
population whereby every "nth" name in the population is selected for inclusion in the sample.
The sample size, based on a 95% confidence level with a margin of error of +/- 5%, is drawn. An
online calculator is used to determine the appropriate sample size for this waiver population. To
determine the "nth" integer, the sample is divided by the population. Those names are drawn until
the sample size is reached.

Appendix D: Participant-Centered Planning and Service Delivery
Quality Improvement: Service Plan
a. Methods for Discovery: Service Plan Assurance/Sub-Assurances
i.  Sub-Assurances
a. Sub-Assurance: Service plans address all participants’ assessed needs
(including health and safety risk factors) and personal goals, either by the
provision of waiver services or through other means.
Performance Measures:
Number and percent of participants reviewed who had service plans that
were adequate and appropriate to their needs as indicated by the
assessment(s). Numerator: Number of participants with service plans that
address needs; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Number and percent of participants reviewed who had service plans that
addressed personal goals. Numerator: Number of participants® service plans
that address personal goals; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Number and percent of participants reviewed who had service plans that
addressed risk factors. Numerator: Number of participants’® service plans
that address risk factors; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence Interval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

b. Sub-Assurance: The State monitors service plan development in accordance
with its policies and procedures.
Performance Measures:

State: i Request for Amendment: 37
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1913(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Number and percent of service plan development procedures that are
completed as described in the waiver application. Numerator: Number of
participants’ service plans completed according to waiver procedures;
Denominator: Number of records reviewed.

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size, The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

¢, Sub-Assurance: Service plans are updated/revived at least annually or yhen
warranted by changes in the waiver participant’s needs.

Performance Measures:

Number and percent of service plans that were reviewed and updated by the
DHS RN according to changes in participants' needs before the waiver
participants' annual review date. Numerator: Number of participants’
service plans that were reviewed and revised by the DHS RN before annual
review date; Denominator: Number of records reviewed,

Sampling Approach {check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

d.Sub-Assurance: Services are delivered in accordance with the service plan,
including the type, scope, amount, duration and frequency specified in the
service plan. Performance Measures:
Number and percent of participants reviewed who received services in the
type, scope, amount, frequency and duration specified in the service plan.
Numerator: Number of participants’® service plans who received services
specified in the service plan; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Sampling Approach (check each that applies)
X Representative Sample
Confidence Interval =
DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

e. Sub-Assurance: Participants are afforded choice: Between waiver services and
institutional care,; and between/among waiver services and providers.
Performance Measures:

Number and percent of waiver participant records reviewed with
appropriately completed and signed freedom of choice forms that specified
choice of providers was offered. Numerator: Number of participants with
freedom of choice forms with choice of providers; Denominator: Number of
records reviewed.

Number and percent of waiver participant records reviewed with an
appropriately completed service plan that specified choice was offered
between institutional care and waiver services and among waiver services.

State: Request for Amendment: 38
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Numerator: Number of participants' service plans with a choice between
institutional care and waiver services and among waiver services;
Denominator: Number of records reviewed.

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calcuiation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a
+/- 5% margin of error.

If applicable. in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/idemify problems/issues within the waiver
program, including frequency and parties responsible.

The state currently operates a system of review that assures completeness.
appropriateness, accuracy and freedom of choice. This system focuses on participant-
centered service planning and delivery, participant rights and responsibilities, and
participant outcomes and satistaction.

Individual records are reviewed monthly by the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral
Health Services (DA ABTIS) (operating agency) for completeness and accuracy and
resulting data is made available for the production of the Record Review Summary
Report. A Division of Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency) QA audit is also
conducted from a review of 20% of the records reviewed by DAABHS, to conlirm that
service plans are updated and revised as warranted by changes in participants' needs.

Start of Care forms are reviewed to confirm the appropriateness of service delivery.

Finally, records are reviewed to assure that a Freedom of Choice form was presented to
the participant and that a complete, up-to-date list of providers has been made available
to the participant.

The state monitors service plan development in accordance with its policies and
procedures, and takes appropriate action when it identifies inadequacies in the
development process. Revisions and updates to records are made as changes in
participant needs necessitate. Monthly chart reviews check for the presence of
justification for requested changes and proper documentation and data is summarized for
the Chart Review Summary.

Participants are atforded choice between waiver services and institutional care, and
between/among waiver services and providers.

Remediation is performed on service plans that require correction or revision. This is
accomplished as discrepancies or inadequacies are identified. Confirmation of
remediation is verified by the RN supervisor and is a part of the chart review process.

The Division of Medical Services (DMS) QA review reflecis internal review of the
billing process by Medicaid providers of ALF. DMS conducts a record review on a
monthly basis of 20% of the records reviewed by DAABHS to monitor accuracy and
completeness of the record, service plan implementation, service delivery, and the health
and welfare of the participant.

. State:

Request for Amendment: 39

| Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

DAABHS supervisory staff uses the Raosoft calculation system to determine appropriate
sample size for Chart Review and selects every "nth" name on the list to be included in
the sample.

Record reviews of the overall program files are thorough and include a review of all
required documentation regarding compliance with the service plan development
assurance and service plan delivery. Reviews include, but are not limited to completeness
of the service plan; timeliness of the service plan development process; appropriateness
of all medical and non-medical services; consideration of participants in the service plan
development process; clarity and consistency; and, compliance with program policy
regarding all aspects of service plan development, changes and renewal.

Some measures have multiple factors that are reviewed to determine if the area is in
compliance. These measures are directly related to the CMS waiver assurance areas,
including service plan development and delivery of services. Initial verification of service
delivery is verified via the Start of Care form. This documentation is a part of every
record review.

The Stale Medicaid Agency assures compliance with the service plan subassurances
through the review of 20% of the records reviewed by DAABHS. DAABHS provides
DMS with copies of any data analysis of the findings and plans for remediation of data
analysis, including trend identification. DMS and DAABHS participate in team meetings
to review findings and discuss resolution.

b. Vlethods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

Describe the State's method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
correction. In addition. provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating
agency), the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) (operating
agency), and the Division of Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency) participate in team
meetings to discuss and address individual problems related to service plans, as well as
problem correction and remediation. DAABHS, DPSQA, and DMS have an Interagency
Agreement that includes measures related to the service plans as part of the waiver.

If a participant record lacks required documentation regarding this assurance, DAABHS’s
remediation includes completing the required documentation according to policy and
additional staff training in this area.

The tool used to review waiver participants' records captures and tracks remediation in these
areas,

Appendix I': Participant Rights

Appeudix F-1: Opportunity to Request a Fair Hearing

Procedures for Offering Opportunity to Request a Fair Heavring. Describe how the individual (or
his/her legal representative) is informed of the opportunity to request a fair hearing under 42 CFR Part
431, Subpart E. Specify the notice(s) that are used to offer individuals the opportunity to request a Fair

| Request for Amendment: 40

. State:
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Hearing. State laws, regulations, policies and notices referenced in the description are available to CMS
upon request through the operating or Medicaid agency.

Appeals are the responsibility of the Department of Human Services Appeals and Hearings section.
Waiver applicants are advised on the DCO-707 (Notice of Action) or the system-generated Notice of
Action by the County Office of their right to request a fair hearing when adverse action is taken to deny,
suspend or terminate eligibility for Living Choices. The notice is issued by the LTSS caseworker, and
explains the participant's right to a fair hearing, how to file for a hearing and the participant's right to
representation. Notices of adverse actions and the opportunity to request a fair hearing are kept in the
participant's case record. Applicants must make their request for an appeal no later than 30 days from the
date on the DCO-707.

The DCO-707 Notice of Action is kept in the participant's county office case record. 1f the DCO-707 is a
request for information only, the form may be discarded when all the needed information is received. If
the information requested is not received, the form may be discarded five years from the month of origin.
Otherwise, the DCO-700 will be retained for five years from the date of last approval, closure or denial.

Participants also have the right to appeal if they disagree with a revision to their service plan, which
reduces or terminates services, while their eligibility remains active. Information regarding hearings and
appeals is included with the participant's service plan. The DHS Appeals and Hearings section is also
responsible for these types of appeals. Requests for appeals must be received by the DHS Appeals and
Hearings section no later than 30 days from the business day following the postmark on the envelope with
the service plan that contains a revision which the participant wishes to appeal.

Living Choices participants have the option of continuing Medicaid eligibility and services during the
appeal process. They are informed of their options when notified by the DHS county office of the pending
adverse action. If the findings of the appeal are not in the participant's favor, and the participant has
elected the continuation of benefits, the participant is liable for payment to the provider. If Medicaid has
paid the provider, DHS will consider the services that were provided during the period of ineligibility a
Medicaid overpayment and will seek reimbursement from the participant.

Participants have the right to appeal if they were not provided a choice in institutional care or waiver
services, or a choice of providers.

The assisted living facility and the Department of Human Services county office inform the participant of
their potential payment liability if a participant has been denied eligibility for the program and if an
appeal of a denial is not in the participant's favor.

During the assessment and service plan development process, the DHS RN explains these rights to the
participant, family member or representative. Signatures on the service plan verify that the choice
between waiver services or institutional care was exercised. Also, during this process, participants choose
a provider from a list provided by the DHS RN. Choices of provider are documented on the Freedom of
Choice form, and the participant signs the list of providers showing that the choice was made. At
reassessments, if no change in provider is requested, the provider list is not signed by the participant.

State: ] Request for Amendment: 41
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Appendix F-3: State Grievance/Complaint System

b.

Operational Responsibility. Specify the State agency that is responsible for the operation of the
grievance/complaint system:
Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services

Description of System: Describe the grievance/complaint system, including: () the types of
grievances/complaints that participants may register; (b) the process and timelines for addressing
grievances/complaints; and, (c) the mechanisms that are used to resolve grievances/complaints.
State laws, regulations, and policies referenced in the description are available to CMS upon
request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable).

Any dissatisfaction written or verbalized regarding a HCBS program or service is to be
considered a complaint. Participants wishing to file a complaint or report any type of
dissatisfaction should contact the DAABHS Central Office or their DHS RN. When a DHS RN is
contacted regarding a complaint or dissatisfaction, the DHS RN explains the complaint process to
the participant, and completes the HCBS Complaint Intake Report (AAS-9505). Any DAABHS
staff receiving a complaint must complete the HCBS Complaint Intake Report.

The HCBS Complaint Intake Report (AAS-9505), along with the complaint database, is used to
track any dissatisfaction or complaint, including complaints against DAABHS staff and DPSQA
providers. The record of complaint includes the date the complaint was filed.

The complaint database was designed to register different types of complaints. Based on the data
entered, the complaint can be tracked by type of complaint (service, provider, DAABHS, etc.)
and complaint source (participant, county office, family, etc.), and monitored for trends, action
taken to address the complaint, access, quality of care, health and welfare. The complaint
database provides a means to address any type complaint filed by any source. The complaint
database also tracks resolution.

Information entered into the database includes the complaint source and contact information,
participant information, person or provider for whom the complaint is being made against, the
person who received the complaint, the person to whom the complaint is assigned for
investigation, the complaint being made, and the action taken relative to investigation findings.
Complaints concerning abuse and neglect are routed to Adult Protective Services immediately for
appropriate action.

The HCBS Complaint Intake Report (AAS-9505) must be completed within five working days of
receiving the complaint. Complaints must be resolved within 30 days from the date the complaint
was received. If a complaint cannot be resolved by an RN supervisor, the information is
forwarded to the DAABHS central office administrative staff to resolve.

DHS RNs and RN supervisors work to resolve any complaints. This involves contacting all
parties involved to obtain all sides of the issue, a participant home visit and a review of the
participant's service plan, if necessary. The Nurse Manager at the DAABHS central office may
also be asked to assist. Based on the nature of the complaint, the Nurse Manager will use their
professional judgment on issues that must be resolved more quickly, such as instances where the
participant's health and safety are at risk. Compliance with this policy is tracked and reported
through the database. This issue continues to be fracked and reviewed by the RN Supervisors and
the Medicaid Quality Assurance staff during the chart review process.

State:

Request for Amendment: 42

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

A follow-up call or correspondence is made to the reporter, if appropriate, to discuss how the
issue was resolved without violating confidentiality rules. The participant or representative is
informed of the right to appeal any decision and that filing a complaint is not a prerequisite or
substitute for a fair hearing.

If'a participant is dissatisfied with the resolution of a complaint, a fair hearing request may be
made at the local DHS county office. The DHS RN explains the hearings and appeals process to
the participant at this time.

DHS RNs follow-up with participants after a complaint has been made at each reassessment or
monitoring contact. DHS RN supervisors may also participate in follow up. Depending on the

type of complaint, the DHS RN may take action to assure continued resolution by revising the

participant's service plan or assisting the participant in changing providers.

A complaint received on a DHS RN is reported to his or her supervisor, who investigates the
complaint.

The Complaint Intake Report must be completed within five working days from when DAABHS
staff receives the complaint. Complaints must be resolved within 30 days. To ensure that
participants are safe during these time frames, the DHS RN may put in place the backup plan on
the participant's service plan or report the situation to Adult Protective Services, if needed.

Appendix G: Participant Safeguards
Appendix G-1: Response to Critical Events or Incidents

b. State Critical Event or Incident Reporting Requirements. Specify the types of critical
events or incidents (including alleged abuse, neglect and exploitation) that the State requires
to be reported for review and follow-up action by an appropriate authority, the individuals
and/or entities that are required to report such events and incidents and the timelines for
reporting. State laws, regulations, and policies that are referenced are available to CMS
upon request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if applicable)

Arkansas state law requires that suspected abuse, neglect, and exploitation of endangered and
impaired adults be reported to the Adult Maltreatment Hotline for investigation, The method of
reporting is primarily by phone to the Hotline; written reports of allegations will be entered into
the Adult Protective Services system or routed to the appropriate investigative department.

Ark. Code Ann. § 12-12-1708(a) specifies mandatory reporters who are required to report
suspected adult maltreatment, including abuse, exploitation, negiect, or self-neglect of
endangered or impaired adults, Mandated reporters include all physicians, nurses, social workers,
case managers, home health workers, DHS employees, facility administrators or owners,
employees of facilities, and any employee or volunteer of a program or organization funded
partially or wholly by DHS who enters the home of, or has contact with an elderly person. Living
Choices waiver staff, providers, and DAABHS contractors are mandatory reporters, The statute
requires immediate reporting to Adult Protective Services when any mandated reporter has
observed or has reasonable cause to suspect adult maltreatment.

According to the statute, adult abuse includes intentional acts to an endangered or impaired adult
which result in physical harm or psychological injury; or credible threats to inflict pain of injury
which provoke fear or alarm; or unreasonable confinement, intimidation or punishment resulting
in physical harm, pain or mental anguish. Exploitation includes illegal or unauthorized use of the

State: Request for Amendment: 43
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

person's funds or property; or use of the person's power of attorney or guardianship for the profit
of one's own self; or improper acts or process that deprive the person of rightful access to
benefits, resources, belongings and assets. Neglect is an act or omission by the endangered or
impaired person (self-neglect), or an act or omission by the person's caregiver (caregiver neglect)
constituting failure to provide necessary treatment, care, food, clothing, shelter, supervision or
medical services; failure to report health problems and changes in health condition to appropriate
medical personnel; or failure to carry out a prescribed treatment plan.

Reporting requirements for providers:

In addition to statutory requirements, the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance,
the licensing and certification agency, requires home and community-based services
(HCBS)/non-institutional providers to report the following incident types:

(a) Abuse

() Neglect

(c) Exploitation or Misappropriation of Property

(d) Unnatural Death

(e) Unauthorized use of restrictive interventions

63 Significant Medication Error

(2) Elopement/Missing Person

(h) Other: Includes without limitation abandonment, serious bodily injury, incidents
that require notification to police or fire department.

In accordance with DPSQA Policy 1001, the above events must be reported to the Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance by facsimile transmission to felephone number 501-
682-8551 of the completed Incident & Accident Intake Form (Form DPSQA-731) no later
than 11:00 am. on the next business day following discovery by the provider. In addition to the
requirement of a facsimile report by the next business day, the provider must conduct a
thorough investigation of the alleged or suspected incident and complete an investigation
report and submit it to DPSQA on Form DPSQA-742 within five working days.

Reporting requirements for DHS employees and contractors:

DHS employees and contractors are required to report incidents in accordance with DFHS Policy
1090 (Incident Reporting). Under this policy, any incident requiring a report to the DIIS
Communications Director must be reported by telephone within one hour of the incident. All
other reports must be filed with the Division Director or Designee and the DIIS Client Advocate
no later than the end of the second business day following the incident. Any employee not filing
reports within the specified time is subject to disciplinary action unless the employee can show
that it was not physically possible to make the report within the required time.

Telephone notifications and informational e-mails to Division Directors or Designees, the DHS
Client Advocate and other parties as appropriate for early reporting of unusual or sensitive
information are welcomed. All such reports must be followed with completion and submission of
Form DHS-1910.

If the incident alleges maltreatment by a hospital, a copy of the report will be sent to the Arkansas
Department of Health by the Division Director or Designee, who should note the notification in the
appropriate space on the Form DHS-1910, and forward the information to the DHS Client Advocate
as a follow up Incident Report.

State:

Request for Amendment: 44

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(¢) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

¢. Participant Training and Education. Describe how training and/or information is
provided to participants (and/or families or legal representatives, as appropriate)
concerning protections from abuse, neglect, and exploitation, including how participants
(and/or families or legal representatives, as appropriate) can notify appropriate authorities
or entities when the participant may have experienced abuse, neglect or exploitation.

The DHS RN provides waiver applicants and their families with an Adult Protective Services
{APS) brochure when initial contact is made. The brochure includes information on what
constitutes abuse, neglect or exploitation, as well as the signs and symptoms, the persons required
to report abuse and how to report suspected abuse, including to the Adult Maltreatment Hotline
number. The Adult Maltreatment Hotline is accessible 24 hours a day, seven days a week. DHS
RNs review this information with participants and family members at the initial assessment and at
each annual reassessment. In addition, providers are required to post information abeut how to
report a complaint to APS and the Adult Maltreatment Hotline in a visible area on their premises.

d. Responsibility for Review of and Response to Critical Events or Incidents. Specify the
entity (or entities) that receives reports of critical events or incidents specified in item G-1-a,
the methods that are employed to evaluate such reports, and the processes and time-frames
for responding to critical events or incidents, including conducting investigations.

For incidents involving alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation regarding adult clients, Adult
Protective Services (APS) receives, investigates, evaluates, and resolves reports. Additionally, all
incidents defined in DPSQA Policy 1001 must be reported to Division of Provider Services and
Quality Assurance (DPSQA). These include alleged abuse, neglect, and exploitation, unnatural
death, unauthorized use of restrictive interventions, significant medication error,
elopement/missing person, abandonment, serious bodily injury, and incidents requiring
notification to the police or fire department.

Adult Protective Services (APS) Responsibilities

APS visits clients within 24 hours for emergency cases or within five working days for non-
emergency cases, Emergency cases are instances when immediate medical attention is necessary
or when there is imminent danger to health or safety which means a situation in which death or
serious bodily harm could reasonably be expected to occur without intervention, according to
Ark, Code Ann. § 12-12-1703(8). Non-emergency cases refer to situations when allegations do
not meet the definition of imminent danger to health or safety.

As required by law, investigations are completed and an investigative determination entered
within 60 days. APS notifies the client and other relevant parties, including the offender, of the
determination.

APS communicates with the waiver program staff, as needed, on all appropriate and relevant
information. APS investigations include site visits and interviews with the client, offender,
reporter, doctors, family, police and other collateral witnesses that can be found. Operating
agency and waiver staff are also interviewed by APS and asked to provide any necessary
documentation for the investigation. Reports to APS are logged into a database, and DPSQA uses
this resource to monitor participants of the waiver for critical incidents.

State:

Request for Amendment: 45

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

APS communicates with the Living Choices waiver program staff, as needed, on all appropriate
and relevant information. APS investigations include site visits and interviews with the client,
offender, reporter, doctors, family, police and other collateral witnesses that can be found.
DPSQA and Living Choices staff are also interviewed by APS and asked to provide any
necessary documentation for the investigation.

Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) Responsibilities

DPSQA receives and triages incidents to appropriate divisions for investigation. DPSQA will
investigate those incidents that relate to providers licensed and/or certified by DPSQA and
forwards incidents regarding clients to the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health
Services.

Reports to DPSQA are entered into a tracking system which DPSQA uses to determine if further
investigation is needed in the event of multiple complaints at one provider locations or facility.
DPSQA uses this resource to monitor active participants of the waiver for critical incidents.

As required by statute, investigations are completed and an investigative determination entered
within 60 days.

Unexpected client deaths must be reported immediately to the DPSQA contact using the DHS
Client Unexpected Death Report. The DPSQA contact investigates the report within two days of
receiving the notice of the occurrence and prepares a report of the investigation within 30 days of
receiving the notice of the occurrence. The investigation includes reviewing a written report of
the facts and circumstances of the unexpected death and documentation listing the client’s
condition, including diagnoses, prescriptions and service plan.

The DPSQA contact will determine the facts and circumstances of the occurrence. DPSQA's role
includes performing a thorough investigation, reviewing current policy, making corrections if
necessary and identifying patterns during the process. Final results of investigations are
glectronically made available to the Division of Medical Services (DMS).

All reports to the Adult Maltreatment Hotline and instances of unexpected client deaths are
investigated and addressed by DPSQA. Incidents reported to the DHS Incident Reporting
Information System (IRIS), a system which enables online submission and transmittal of incident
reports, are investigated depending on the type of incident reported.

e. Responsibility for Oversight of Critical Incidents and Events. Identify the State agency
(or agencies) responsible for overseeing the reporting of and response to critical incidents or
events that affect waiver participants, how this oversight is conducted, and how frequently.

The Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance assumes responsibility for compiling all
incident reports from providers for review and action. [ncidents are reported to DPSQA staff
through submission of Form DPSQA-731.

DPSQA staff review the reports as incidents occur and identify patterns and make systematic
corrections when necessary. Current policy is reviewed at each occurrence and revisions may be
made if necessary.

The Adult Protective Services unit tracks APS incidents. Operating agencies and the Medicaid
agency, Division of Medical Services (DMS) are informed of the outcomes of incidents reported

State:

Request for Amendment: 46

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

to APS applicable to waiver participants. There is a Memorandum of Understanding between the
operating agency waiver units and the APS unit detailing the relationship and activities of each
unit, as they relate to the waiver program.

Final results of APS investigations, final results of unexpected death findings, and results of
incident reports are electronically made available to the Medicaid agency, Division of Medical
Services (DMS).

Appendix G-2: Safeguards Concerning Restraints and Restrictive Interventions

a.

Use of Restraints. (Select one): (For waiver actions submitted before March 2014, responses in
Appendix G-2-a will display information for both restraints and seclusion. For most waiver
actions submitted afier March 2014, responses regarding seclusion appear in Appendix G-2-c.)
X The state does not permit or prohibits the use of restraints

Specify the State agency (or agencies) responsible for detecting the unauthorized use of restraints
and how this oversight is conducted and its frequency:

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) is responsible for
detecting unauthorized use of restraints or seclusion. This oversight is conducted through incident
reports received and monitoring of the participant by the DHS RN, if needed.

Use of Restrictive Interventions, (Select one):

X The state does not permit or prohibits the use of restraints

Specify the State agency (or agencies) responsible for detecting the unauthorized use of
restrictive interventions and how this oversight is conducted and its frequency:

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) is responsible for
detecting unauthorized use of restrictive interventions. This oversight is conducted through
incident reports received and monitoring of the participant by the DHS RN, if needed.

Use of Seclusion. (Select onel: (This section will be blank for waivers submitted before Appendix
G-2-c was added to WMS in March 2014, and responses for seclusion will display in Appendix
G-2-a combined with information on restraints.)

X The state does not permit or prohibits the use of seclusion

Specify the State agency (or agencies) responsible for detecting the unauthorized use of seclusion
and how this oversight is conducted and its frequency:

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) is responsible for
detecting unauthorized use of seclusion. This oversight is conducted through incident reports
received and monitoring of the participant by the DHS RN, if needed.

Quality Improvement: Health and Welfare

a.

Methods for Discovery: Health and Welfare
i.  Sub-Assurances
a. Sub-Assurance: The state demonstrates on an ongoing basis that it identifies,
addresses and seeks 1o prevent instances of abuse, neglect, exploitation and
unexplained death. (Performance measures in this sub-assurance include all Appendix
G performance measures for waiver actions submitted before June 1, 2014.)
Performance Measures:
Number and percent of critical incidents reviews/investigations that were initiated
and completed according program policy and state law, Numerator: Number of
critical incident investigations initiated/completed according to policy/law;
Denominator: Number of critical incidents reviewed.

State:

| Request for Amendment: 47

Effective Date |




Request for Amendment to 2 §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Asgisted Living

ii.

Number aud percent of critical incidents requiring rveview/investigation where the
state adhered to the foliow-up methods as specified. Numerator: Number of
critical incident reviews/investigations that had appropriate follow-up;
Denominator: Number of ¢ritical incidents reviewed.

Number and percent of participant records reviewed where the participant and/or
family or legal guardian received information about how to report abuse, neglect,
exploitation and other critical incidents as specified in the waiver application.
Numerator; Number of participants receiving information on abuse, neglect,
exploitation and critical incidents; Denominator: Number of records reviewed.
Number and percent of critical incidents that were reported within required time
frames. Numerator: Number of critical incidents reported within required time
frames; Denominator: Number of critical incidents reviewed.

Case Record Review

Sampling Approach (check each that applies)

X Representative Sample

Confidence Interval =

DAABHS uses the Raosoft Calculation System to determine the sample size. The
system provides a statistically valid sample with a 95% confidence level and a +/- 5%
margin of error.

It applicable, in the textbox below provide any necessary additional information on the
strategies employed by the State to discover/identity problems/issues within the waiver
program, including frequency and parties responsible.

Arkansas addresses this assurance with a three-step process that involves record review,
ongoing communication with Adult Protective Services (APS} and Division of Medical
Services (DMS) audits of waiver participants' records. Monthly record reviews are
performed by DHS RN supervisors to assure that DHS RNs report incidences of abuse or
neglect, and that safety and protection are addressed at each assessment and reassessment
and reported in the Record Review Summary Report. APS reports specific cases of abuse
and neglect affecting waiver participants to DAABHS waiver staff. Findings are reported
to the DPSQA QA Unit.

DAABHS staff are required to review the APS information with participants and other
interested parties at each assessment and reassessment. This must include providing APS
brochures, as well as information on how to identify possible abuse and neglect and a
toll-free number for reporting abuse. Compliance with this requirement is documented in
the participant record and reviewed by RN supetvisors during each record review.
Compliance is a part of the record review and annual reporiing process.

Policy requires compliance and mandates the DHS RN to report alleged abuse to APS
and/or the Office of Long Term Care (OLTC). All reports of alleged abuse, follow-ups
and actions taken to investigate the alleged abuse, along with all reports to APS or OLTC
must be documented in the nurse narrative. Record reviews include verification of this
requirement and are included on the annual report.

The process for reporting abuse as established in Ark. Code Ann. § 12-12-1701 ¢t seq
(the Adult and Long-Term Care Facility Resident Maltreatment Act) is as follows: The
Department of Human Services (DHS) maintains a single statewide telephone number
that all persons may use to report suspected adult maltreatment and long-term care
facility resident malircatment. Upon registration of a report, the Adult Maltreatment

State:

Request for Amendment: 48

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Hotline refers the matter immediately to the appropriate investigating agency. Under this
statute, a resident of an assisted living facility is identified as a long-term care facility
resident, and for the purposes of the statute is presumed to be an impaired person. A
report for a long-term care facility resident is to be made immediately to the local law
enforcement agency for the jurisdiction in which the long-term care facility is located,
and to OLTC under the regulations of that office, DHS has jurisdiction to investigate all
cases of suspected maltreatment of an endangered person or an impaired person. The
APS unit of DHS shall investigate all cases of suspected adult maltreatment if the act or
omission occurs in a place other than a long-term care facility; and all cases of suspected
adult malireatment if a family member of the adult person is named as the suspected
offender, regardless of whether or not the adult is a long-term care facility resident. The
OLTC unit of DHS shall investigate all cases of suspected maltreatment of a long-term
care facility resident.

The DPSQA QA audit reflects internal review of the billing process by Living Choices
Medicaid providers. The DPSQA QA audit completes a systematic random sampling of
the active case population whereby every "nth" name in the population is selected for
inclusion in the sample. The sample size, based on a 95% confidence level with a margin
of error of +/- 5%, is drawn. An online calculator is used to determine the appropriate
sample size for this waiver population. To determine the "nth" integer, the sample is
divided by the population. Those names are drawn until the sample size is reached.

b. Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

i.  Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered.
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
correction. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to
document these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (operating agency) and the
Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency) participate in team meetings to discuss
and address individual problems related to participant health and welfare, as well as
problem correction and remediation. DAABHS and DMS have an Interagency
Agreement that includes measures related to participant health and welfare for the
waiver.

DAABHS’s remediation ¢fforts in cases where participants or their family members or
legal guardians have not received information about how to report abuse, neglect,
exploitation or critical incidents include providing the appropriate information to the
participant and family member/legal guardian upon discovery that this information was
not provided, providing additional training for DHS RNs and considering this
remediation as part of RNs’ performance evaluations.

In cases where critical incidents were not reported within required time frames,
DAABHS provides remediation, including reporting the critical incident immediately
upon discovery, and providing additional training and counseling to staff.

If critical incident reviews and investigations are not initiated and completed according to
program policy and state law, DAABHS’s remediation includes initiating and completing
the investigation immediately upon discovery, and providing additional training and
counseling to staff. When appropriate follow-up to critical incidents is not conducted

State: Request for Amendment: 49

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

according to methods discussed in the waiver application, DAABHS provides immediate
follow-up to the incident and staff training as remediation.

DAABHS provides remediation in cases of investigation and review of unexplained,
suspicious and untimely deaths that did not result in identification of preventable and
unpreventable causes to include staff and provider training, implementing additional
services and imposing provider sanctions. The Unexpected Death Report ensures that
remediation of preventable deaths is captured and that remediation data is collected
appropriately.

The DAABHS complaint database coliects complaints, the outcomes and the resolution
for substantiated complaints. Remediation for complaints that were not addressed during
the required time frame includes DAABHS addressing the complaint immediately upon
discovery, and providing additional staff training and counseling.

All substantiated incidents are investigated by the DAABHS Deputy Director or his/her
designee. DAABHS plans to continue this process and reviewing remediation plans
remains in development.

Appendix H: Quality Improvement Strategy (2 of 2)
H-1: Systems Improvement
a, System Improvements
i, Describe the process(es) for wending, prioritizing, and implementing system
improvements (i.e., design changes) prompied as a result of an analysis of discovery and
remediation information.

DPSQA analyzes all discovery and remediation results to determine if a system
improvement is necessary, 1f a possible system improvement is identified, DPSQA will
meet with the operating agency (DAABHS) to discuss what system or program changes
are necessary, if any, based on the nature of the problem (health and safety issue, etc.),
complexity of the solution (does it require an amendment to the waiver application), and
the financial impact. If it is determined that a system change is needed, a computer
service request will be submitted to the Medicaid Management Information and
Performance Unit (MMIP) within DPSQA and a priority status is assigned. MMIP
prioritizes system changes to MMIS and coordinates implementation with the state fiscal
agent. An action plan is developed and information is shared with the appropriate
stakeholders for comment. Implementation of the plan is the final step. The MMIP Unit
and the DPSQA QA Unit monitor the system changes.

As aresult of the discovery processes:

The interagency agreements were revised to provide a more visible product to clarify
roles and responsibilities between the Division of Medical Services (Medicaid agency)
and the Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (operating agency).

The agreement between the two divisions has been modified and is updated at least
annually.

Medicaid related issues are documented by DAABHS waiver siaff and reviewed by
DPSQA QA staff, and recorded on a monthly report to identify, capture and resolve
billing and ¢laims submission problems. Error reports are worked and billing issues are

State: Request for Amendment: 50
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

resolved by the DPSQA QA staff. DPSQA QA staff reviews reports for proper
resolution. These activities occur on a daily basis, and reviews occur monthly by DPSQA
QA staff,

A separate Quality Assurance Unit was formed within DPSQA to monitor and advise the
operating agency for Home and Community-Based Waiver Programs.

b. System Design Changes

1.

ii.

Describe the process for monitoring and analyzing the effectiveness of system design
changes. Include a description of the various roles and responsibilities involved in the
processes for monitoring & assessing system design changes. If applicable, include the
State's targeted standards for systems improvement.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) and the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) both employ staff to
assist in system design. When an issue arises that requires development of a Computer
Service Request (CSR), meetings with the DHS information technology consultants,
DPSQA Program Development and Quality Assurance staff, DPSQA Program Integrity
staff, and DAABHS waiver staff are held to address needs and resolve issues, including
developing new elements and testing system changes. Meetings are scheduled on an as-
needed basis with the assigned DHS information technology consulting firm, the
Medicaid program’s fiscal agent, the DAABHS Deputy Director, DPSQA QA staff and
others as may be appropriate depending on the issue for discussion.

Describe the process to periodically evaluate, as appropriate, the Quality Improvement
Strategy.

DAABHS and DPSQA monitor the Quality Improvement Strategy on an ongoing basis
and review the Quality Improvement Strategy annually. A review consists of analyzing
reports and progress toward stated initiatives, resolution of individual and systematic
issues found through discovery and notating desired outcomes. When change in the
strategy is indicated, a collaborative effort between DPSQA and DAABHS is set in
motion to complete a revision to the Quality Improvement Strategy which may include
submission of a waiver amendment. DPSQA QA staff utilizes the Quality Improvement
Strategy during all levels of QA reviews.

Appendix I: Financial Accountability

I-1: Financial Integrity and Accountability
Financial Integrity. Describe the methods that are employed to ensure the integrity of payments
that have been made for waiver services, including: (a) requirements concerning the independent
audit of provider agencies; (b} the financial audit program that the state conducts to ensure the
integrity of provider billings for Medicaid payment of waiver services, including the methods,
scope and frequency of audits; and, (c) the agency (or agencies) responsible for conducting the
financial audit program. State laws, regulations, and policies referenced in the description are
available to CMS upon request through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if
applicable).
In accordance with waiver participants’ service plans, sampling is pulled on a random basis as
described in the waiver.

An independent audit is required annually of the provider agency when:

State expenditures are $100,000 or more;

- State:

Request for Amendment: 51

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

o Federal expenditures are $300,000 or more; or
o The contract the Department of Human Services (DHS) has with the provider agency
requires an independent audit, regardless of funding level.

If the federal expenditures are $300,000 or more, the audit must be performed in accordance with
OMB Circular A133, which implemented the Single Audit Act as amended. A Government
Auditing Standards (GAS) audit must be performed if DHS funding provided is $100,000 or
more of federal, state, or federal and state combined.

The DHS Office of Chief Counsel, Audit Section is responsible for reviewing all independent
audits. The provider's audit report is reviewed by the Audit Section to determine whether
requirements of applicable authorities and those contained in agency policy were met; material
weaknesses in internal control exist; material noncompliance with the provision of grants,
contracts, and agreements occurred; and the report included findings, recommendations, and
responses thereto by management.

Material weaknesses and non-compliance, other findings, recommendations and responses are
recorded and communicated to the DAABHS Deputy Director, who will take appropriate action
1o resolve audit findings within 90 days of the referral of the finding from the Audit Section.

If applicable, through audit requirements regarding provider organizations and thresholds of
funding, the DHS Office of Quality Assurance (OQA) maintains a database of audit due dates.
Each provider selects an independent auditor. The auditor completes a report and submits the
report to the provider and to the DHS OQA. The DHS OQA submits a monthly report indicating
findings to the DHS Executive Stafl,

DPSQA Quality Assurances also reviews the services billed compared to the services listed on a
participant's service plan. DPSQA record reviews include a review of the billing by LCAL
providers. A systematic random sampling of the active case population is drawn whereby every
nth name in the population is selected for inclusion in the sample. The sample size, based on a
95% confidence level with a margin of error of +/~ 5%, is drawn. An online calculator is used to
determine the appropriate sample size for this waiver population. To determine the nth integer,
the sample is divided by the population. Those names are drawn until the sample size is reached.
DAABHS receives a report from DPSQA on a monthly basis with overpayments. DAABHS
verifies all overbilling and sends out for recoupment. DAABHS also receives a quarterly
overlapping report and no service report. DAABHS reviews and verifies the report for
overlapping of services or no services being billed within 30 days.

Cuality Improvement: Financial Acceuntability

b.

Methods for Remediation/Fixing Individual Problems

Describe the State’s method for addressing individual problems as they are discovered. -
Include information regarding responsible parties and GENERAL methods for problem
correction. In addition, provide information on the methods used by the State to document
these items.

The Division of Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS) (operating
agency) and the Division of Medical Services (DMS) (Medicaid agency) participate in
regular team meetings to discuss and address individual problems related to financial
accountability, as well as problem correction and remediation. DAABIIS and DPSQA have a

State:

Request for Amendment: 52

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that includes measures related to financial
accountability for the waiver.

The performance measure for number and percent of waiver claims paid using the correct rate
specified in the waiver application will always result in 100% compliance because the rates
for services are already set in MMIS; theretfore, claims will not be paid at any other rate.
DAABHS’s remediation for failed MMIS checks not corrected to assure appropriate payment
includes correcting the issue upon discovery, making system changes and training staff.
DAABHS’s remediation for claims for services not specified in the participant's service plan
includes revising the participant's plan of care if necessary, recouping payment to the
provider, imposing provider sanctions, training providers and conducting a participant
monitoring visit to possibly reconsider consumer direction.

1-2: Rates, Billing and Claims (1 of 3)

Rate Determination Methods. In two pages or less, describe the methods that are employed to
establish provider payment rates for waiver services and the entity or entities that are responsible
for rate determination. Indicate any opportunity for public comment in the process. If different
methods are employed for various types of services, the description may group services for which
the same method is employed. State laws, regulations, and policies referenced in the description
are available upon request to CMS through the Medicaid agency or the operating agency (if

Assisted Living Facility Rate Determination Methods: This amended waiver reforms the
payment rate determination method for assisted living facilities (ALFs) serving waiver
participants. For purposes of this waiver, “assisted living facility” means a Medicaid-certified

Methods Employed to Determine Rates: To establish the new assisted living facility payment

1. An actuarial analysis by the Arkansas Medicaid program’s contracted actuaries. This
included a cost survey of assisted living facilities and consideration of other states’ federally-
approved rate methods and rate levels, direct care cost factors (e.g., direct care work wages
and benefits, direct care-related supervision and overhead), Arkansas labor market wage
levels, rate scenarios, and Arkansas’ minimum and prevailing assisted living facility staffing
levels. The actuary’s report is available to CMS upon request through the Division of Aging,

2. Negotiations with representatives of the State’s participating assisted living facilities.

The rate methodology excludes reimbursement ot room and board costs.

The new methodology and resulting new per diem rates provide for payments are consistent with
efficiency, economy, and quality of care and are sufficient to enlist enough assisted living facility

providers, as required under 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)30(A) and 42 CFR §447.200-205.

Uniform, Statewide Rate Methodology: The rate methodology is uniform and applies
statewide to all Level I licensed assisted living facilities serving waiver participants.

a.
applicabie).
and enrolled assisted living facility with a Level 11 license.
methodology, the State employed two methods:
Adult, and Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS).
State:

Request for Amendment: 53

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Opportunities for Public Comment: Before submitting this amended waiver to CMS for
federal review and approval, DHS engaged in various opportunities for public comment and
consultations with assisted living facility providers and other interested stakeholders. This
includes webinars and regional public meetings. These are in addition to the public comment
process for this amended waiver and the revised provider manual. Further, both the amended
waiver and the revised provider manual undergo prior review by Arkansas legislative committees.

Entities Responsible for Rate Determination and Oversight of Rate Determination Process:
The assisted living facility rate methodology is determined by the Division of Aging, Adult, and
Behavioral Health Services (DAABHS), in consultation with the Division of Provider Services
and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) and the contracted actuaries, and with oversight by the Division
of Medical Services (DMS). As the Medicaid agency, DMS is responsible for oversight of all
Medicaid rate determinations and for ensuring that provider payments are consistent with
efficiency, economy, and quality of care and are sufficient to enlist enough providers. DAABHS
(as the operating agency responsible for day-to-day waiver administration, service planning, and
access and care delivery in the waiver) and DPSQA (as the operating agency responsible for ALF
licensure, ALF Medicaid certification, provider accountability, quality of care, inspections, and
auditing) jointly monitor to ensure that assisted living facility payments are consistent with the
requirements of 42 U.5.C. § 1396a(a)30(A) and 42 CFR § 447.200-205.

Implementation of New Assisted Living Facility Rates:

Effective after January 1, 2019, assisted living facilities are reimbursed on a fee-for-service basis
according to a new single statewide per diem rate, determined by DAABHS according to the rate
determination methods (actuarial analysis and negotiations) described in this Appendix.

On the effective date of this amended waiver, the four-tier payment model provided for under the
current waiver is discontinued. Thereafier, assisted living facilities will be reimbursed according
to the new single, statewide per diem rate method. For purposes of assisted living facility
payments, waiver patticipants will no longer be assigned a rate tier level. The discontinued four-
tier payment model was initially developed in 2002 prior to the use of comprehensive assessment
instruments, is inconsistent with the new assessment system, is administratively cumbersome and
unnecessary, and may foster unintentional incentives misaligned with the objectives of
appropriate access and service use, facility efficiency, active and independent living, and optimal
medication therapy management.

DAABHS will review the rate methodology on a triennial basis, with the next review in CY 2021,
During the last two years of the current S-year waiver term (CY 2019-2020), as data from the new
Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) system and use of the Task and Hour Standards for
personal care-type services are accumulated and assessed, DAABHS will consider whether an
acuity-adjusted methodology is appropriate. If a methodology change is determined appropriate,
it will be addressed in a subsequent waiver amendment or the waiver renewal application.

I-2: Rates, Billing and Claims (3 of 3)

d.

Billing Validation Process. Describe the process for validating provider billings to produce the
claim for federal financial participation, including the mechanism(s) to assure that all claims for
payment are made only: (a) when the individual was eligible for Medicaid waiver payment on
the date of service; (b) when the service was included in the participant's approved service plan;
and, (c) the services were provided:

The MMIS verifies participant waiver eligibility and current provider Medicaid enrollment for the
date of service prior to paying a waiver claim. DPSQA staff verifies services were provided

State:

Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 54




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

according to the person-centered service plan through an internal monthly monitoring system.
Adjustments are made or cases referred to the Office ot Medicaid Inspector General when claims

are paid incorrectly.

All waiver claims are processed through the MMIS, using all applicable edits and audits. to
assure claims are processed appropriately, timely, and compared to the Medicaid maximum
allowable.

State: Request for Amendment: 55

Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Appendix J: Cost Neutrality Demonstration
J-1: Composite Overview and Demonstration of Cost-Neutrality Formula

Composite Overview. Complete the fields in Cols. 3, 5 and 6 in the following table for each waiver year.
The fields in Cols. 4, 7 and 8 are auto-calculated based on entries in Cols 3, 5, and 6. The fields in Col. 2
are auto-calculated using the Factor D data from the J-2-d Estimate of Factor DD tables. Col. 2 fields will
be populated ONLY when the Estimate of Factor D tables in J-2-d have been completed.

Level(s) of Care: Nursing Facility

Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 | Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8§
Year Factor D Factor D' | Total: D+D* Factor G Factor G’ Total: G+G’ Dii ference (Col 7
ess Columnd)
I 1 20112.22 . 2249.00 22361.22 40826.00 2249.00 43075.00 20713.78
2_ 20119.88 2316.00 22435.88 42046.00 2316.00 44362.00 21926.12
il 3 20127.91 2385.00 2251291 43303.00 2383.00 45688.00 23175.09
P 19354.58 2457.00 21811.58 44598.00 2457.00 47055.00 25243 42
8 16041.93 2530.00 18571.93 45931.00 2530.00 48461.00 29889.07

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (1 of 9)

1. Number Of Unduplicated Participants Served. Enter the total number of unduplicated
participants from ltem B-3-a who will be served each year that the waiver is in operation. When
the waiver serves individuals under more than one level of care, specify the number of
unduplicated participants for each level of care:

[ables):2za: Unduplicated Participants =

' Distribution of Unduplicated Participants by
— - j Level of Care (if applicable)

Waiver Total Unduplicated Number of: Le‘eloi'Carem

Year |Participants (from Item B-3-a) . Numll“s“l«nmgdl‘:ai;:llultu\ =

i

i ; ! Year 1

 Year2 {1300 [0 300 | ta00,

Year3 1300 Fwo 1300 | 1300
Yeard (1725 Ii 1725 1725 | 1725
Year5 [1725 R 1725 1728

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (4 of 9)

Component management for a waiver service. Enter the component name in the text box
provided and click “4dd.” Multiple components can be added 10 each service. To return to the
previous screen select “Refurn to List of Services.”

State: ' Request for Amendment: 56
Effective Date




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Living Choices Assisied Living Services

Component Name?‘

—Tierlevel2 Lg‘_-E____E:_
r_;:I'ic-z-r Level3 delete
' TierLevel 4 deleie
Composite Tier _EQI_EJ

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (5 of 9)

d. Estimate of Factor D.

i. Non-Concurrent Waiver. Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into the Unit,
# Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component items.
Select Save and Calculate to automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs
fields. All fields in this table must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1

Composite Qverview table,

Waiver Year: Year 1

Waiver Service/ Component Unit # Users A;fr E;ei:s Av%lﬁ:)stl ComC[:‘ 4;11ent Total Cost
Extended Medicaid State Plan
Prescription Drugs Total: 9300000
P e = 1 Month 100 15.00 6200 | 530000
Living Choices Assisted Living
Services Total: - = 26052883.3i
Tier Level 2 1 Day 455 25%.00 75.48 875756700
A 1 Day 481 |  255.00 81.89 | 10044217.95
Tier Level 4 1 Day 182 255.00 85.35 | 3961093.50
Tier Level 1 1 Day 182 255.00 70.89 | 3290004.90
GRAND TOTAL: 26145883.35
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants: 1300
Factor D (Divide total by
number of participants): 20112.22
Average Length of Stay on
the Waiver: 255

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (6 of 9)

d. Estimate of Factor D.

i. Non-Concurrent Waiver, Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into the Unit,
# Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component items.
Select Save and Calculate to automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs

State:

_ Effective Date

S—

Request for Amendment: 57




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

fields. All fields in this table must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1

Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year: Year 2

Waiver Service/ Component Unit # Users A]:;gr E:::s l A %n(i::w ("on;g:l[lent Total Cost
Extended Madicaid Stace Plan
Prescrijition Drugs Total: | [ _102960'00
Extended Medicaid Smre Plar ;
Prescriplion Diugs ! Month 104 15.00 66.00 102960.00
Living Choices Assisted Liviag 26052883.35
Servives Total: -
Tier Level 2 1 Day 455 255.00 7548 | 8757567.00
Tier Level 3 | Day 481 | 255.00 81.89 | 1004421795
Tier Level 4 | Day 182 255.00 85.35 | 3961093.50
Tier Level 1 1 Day 182 255.00 70.89 | 3290004.90
GRAND TOTAL: 87698432.4 26155843.35
Total Estimated
Unduplicated 11350
Participants: 1300
Factor D (Divide total by
number of participants): 7726.73 20119.88
Average Length of Stay en
the Waiver: 255

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (7 of 9}

d. Estimate of Factor D.

i. Non-Concurrent Waiver. Complete the following table for each waiver yvear. Enter data into the Unit,
# Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component items.
Select Save and Calculate to automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs
fields. All fields in this table must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1

Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year: Year 3

Avg, Units

Avg. Cost/

Component

Effective Date

Waiver Sevvices Component Unit # Users Per User Unit Cost Total Cost
Extended Medicaid State Plan
Preseription Dvugs Total: 113850
Exiended Medicaid State Plan
Preseription Drugs 1 Month 108 15.00 70.00 113400.00
Liviag Choices Assisted Living 26052883.35
Services Totak: )
Tier Leval 2 1 Day 455 255.00 7548 8757567.00
Tier Level 3 | Day 481 255.00 81.89 | 1004421795
Tier Level 4 1 Day 182 255.00 85.35 | 3965093.50
Tier Level | 1 Day 182 255.00 70.89 | 3290004.90
GRAND TOTAL: 26166283.35
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants: 1300
State:

Request for Amendment: 58




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver
Living Choices Assisted Living

Factor D (Divide total by
number of participants):

Average Length of Stay on
the Waiver:

20127.91

255

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (8 of 9)
d. Estimate of Factor D,

i. Non-Concurrent Waiver. Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into the Unit,
# Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component items.
Select Save and Calculate to automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs

fields. All fields in this table must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1

Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year: Year 4

Waiver Service/ Component

Unit

# Users

Avg,
Units Per
User

Avg, Cost/
Unit

Component Cost

Total Cost

Extended Medicaid State
Plan Prescription Drugs
Total:

Extended Medicaid State Plan
Prescription Druys

1 Month

!

124320.00

112

15.00

74.00

124320.00

Living Choices Assisted
Living Services Total:

20848035.00

Tier Level 2

1 Day

(.00

006

75.48

0.00

Tier Lewvel 3

1 Day

10,00

0.00

#1.89 |

Tier Level 4

1 Day

.00

0.00

8333

0.00

0.00

Tier Level 1

1 Day

0.00

0.00

Tin A

0.00

Composite Tier

1 Day

1717

25500

T507

JI6I31495

GRAND TOTAL:
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants:
Factor D (Divide
total by number of
participants):
Average Length of
Stay on the Waiver:

33386644.95

1725

19354.58

255

J-2: Derivation of Estimates (9 of 9)
d. Estimate of Factor D.

i. Non-Concurrent Waiver. Complete the following table for each waiver year. Enter data into the Unit,
# Users, Avg. Units Per User, and Avg. Cost/Unit fields for all the Waiver Service/Component items.
Select Save and Calculate to automatically calculate and populate the Component Costs and Total Costs

fields. All fields in this table must be completed in order to populate the Factor D fields in the J-1

Composite Overview table.

Waiver Year: Year 5

‘Whaiver Service/ Component

Unit

| # Users

Avg. Units | Avg. Cost/
Per User |  Unit

Component Cost

Total Cost

Extended Medicaid State Plan
Prescriptior Drugs Total:

1368%0.00

State:

Effgctiv_e Date.

|

Request for Amendment: 59




Request for Amendment to a §1915(c) HCBS Waiver

Living Choices Assisted Living

i i 1 Month 117 15.00 | 78.00 136890.00
Living Choices Assisted Living 20848035.00
Services Total:
Tier Level 2 1 Day 0 0,00 0.00 7548 L
Tier Level 3 { Day 0 0.0 (.00 §1.89 a,im
Tier Level 4 1 Day 0 .00 0.00 85.35 .1
Tier Level 1 1 Day 0 0,00 0.00 1,84 0.00
Composite Tiel | Dy 1717 255.00 G285 ITRIAINS
GRAND TOTAL: 26672333.15
Total Estimated
Unduplicated
Participants: 1725
Factor D (Divide total
by number of
participants): 16041.93
Average Length of Stay
on the Waiver: 255

State:

Effective Date

Request for Amendment: 60




Living Choices Assisted Living

RECEIVER

200.100

OCT 09 2018

BUREAU CF
Qualifying Criteria for Living Choices Assisted Living Prokidéed S LATIVE BIE@EARC H

Living Choices providers must meet the Provider Participation and enrollment requirements
contained within Section 140.000 of this manual as well as the criteria below to be eligible to
participate in the Arkansas Medicaid Program.

A

200.105
A.

Assisted living facilities (ALF) are licensed and regulated by the Office of Long Term Care
in the Division of Medical Services (DMS), which is the division of the Arkansas
Department of Human Servnces (DHS) that admmlsters the Arkansas Meajeeld Program

met.

Home health agencies in Arkansas are licensed and regulateﬁ by th
Department of Health. Llcensed Class A home health agencT" ] ay C”eﬁigact with Level Il

A licensed home health agency may qu
enroliment only by first contractlng Wi
bundled services to Living G é

ve[ Il ALF to provide Living Choices
aries wha Teside in the ALF.

it Gertification’ and Enroliment of New Assisted Living Facilities:
ty and requirements of 42 CFR 455 470 (b) and (c) and with the
fer

|sted living facility services, it will initiate the process through fi Img a Request

'f',rStafe mﬁ’temented Moratorium (Form CMS~10628) with CMS.

P‘ifOVider Assurances 2-1-16
Staffing

The Provider agrees that he or she will maintain adequate staffing levels to ensure timely
and consistent delivery of services to all beneficiaries for whom they have accepted a
Living Choices Assisted Living Waiver Plan of Care.

The Provider agrees:

1. Personnel responsible for direct service delivery will be properly trained and in
compliance with all applicable licensure requirements. The Provider agrees to
require personnel to participate in any appropriate training provided by, or requested

Section II-1



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

by, the Department of Human Services. The Provider acknowledges the cost of
training courses for certification and/or licensure is not reimbursable through DHS.

2.  Each service worker possesses the necessary skills to perform the specific services
required to meet the needs of the beneficiary he/she is to serve.

3.  Staff is required to attend orientation training prior to aliowing the employee to
deliver any Living Choices Assisted Living Waiver service(s). This orientation shall
include, but not be limited to, a:

a.  Description of the purpose and philosophy of the Living Choices Assisted
Living Waiver Program;

Discussion and distribution of the provider agency's written gpcje of ethics;

Discussion of activities which shall and shall not be performed
employee; .

d.  Discussion, including instructions, regarding lemg'.Ch ices Assnsted Living
Waiver record keeping requirements; e

e. Discussion of the importance of the Plan of Care;™;

{ Discussion of the agency’s procedure, far reporting ch

es indhe beneficiary’s
condition; g

g.  Discussion, including potenhal legal ramtf‘c i

neficiary’s right to
confidentiality.

B. Quality Controls

The Provider agrees to contlnuaﬂy moni beneflmary satisfaction and quality of service
delivery and fo document hlS or her ﬁﬁ ing :

nding eficiary’s record. every-rinety-days

Provuder must lmmedlateff re ~n_!ha'lg“ rin a benef iciary’s condition to the DHS

The Prov:deruag[ees to deveiap. dlstrlbute and enforce a written code of ethics with each
employee prg uag serv:ces to: a__lemg Choices Assisted Living Waiver beneficiary that
shall include, Hut nott }

jon of the 'E”é‘heficiary’s food or drink;
6 | eneficiary‘s telephone for perscnal calls;

3. N@r dlseu”smn m‘ one’s personal problems, religious or poiitical beliefs with the
benef cuary‘

Mo :cceptance of gifts or tips from the beneficiary or their caregiver;

No fnends or relatives of the employee or unauthorized individuals are to accompany
:iﬁe employee to the beneficiary’s assisted living facility apartment unit;

6. No consumption of alcoholic beverages or use of non-prescribed drugs prior to or
during service delivery nor in the beneficiary's assisted living facility apartment unit;

7. No smoking in the beneficiary’'s assisted living facility apartment unit;
8.  No solicitation of money or goods from the beneficiary;
9.  No breach of the beneficiary's privacy or confidentiality of records.

D. Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Settings

All Level || Assisted Living Facilities licensed by the OLTC and participating in the
Arkansas Medicaid waiver must meet the following Home and Community Based Services

Section II-2



Living Choices Assisted Living Section l

(HCBS) Settings regulations as established by CMS. The federal regulations for the new
rule is 42 CFR 441.301(c) (4)-(5). Facilities who enroll in the waiver on or after the date of
this policy change must meet these HCBS settings requirements prior to certification.
Those facilities already enrolled in the waiver before this policy change must comply with
the HCBS settings requirements under the timeframe established by the HCBS settings
transition plan.

Settings that are HCBS must be integrated in and support full access of beneficiaries
receiving Medicaid HCBS to the greater community, including opportunities to seek
employment and work in competitive integrated settings, engage in community life, control
personal resources, and receive services in the community, to the same degree of access
as beneficiaries not receiving Medicaid HCBS. ;

HCBS settings must have the following characteristics:

non—_dasablllty specific
rvate unitin a

1. Chosen by the individual from among setting options inclu
settings (as well as an independent setting) and an ojataon fore
residential setting.

a.  Choice must be |dent|f|edhncluded in the person-centgred seﬁﬁge plan.
b.

3. Optimizes, but does not regiment, [__gglwdual initiative, autonomy and independence
in maklng life chmces rnclud‘j;g buf" otllmlted 1o, daily activities, physical

lential setting (e.g., Assisted Living Facilities),
above the following additional conditions must

& reement or other form of written agreement will be in place for each HCBS

Sar paﬁ’f and that the document provides protections that address eviction
eésses and appeals comparable to those provided under the jurisdiction’s
andlord tenant law.

Each individual has privacy in their sleeping or living unit:

i. Units have entrance doors lockable by the individual, with only
appropriate staff having keys to doors.

ii. Beneficiaries sharing units have a choice of roommates in that setting.

iii. Beneficiaries have the freedom to furnish and decorate their sleeping or
living units within the lease or other agreement.

c. Beneficiaries have the freedom and support to control their own schedules and
activities, and have access to food at any time.

Beneficiaries are able to have visitors of their choosing at any time.
e.  The setling is physically accessible to the individual.

f. Any modification of the additional conditions specified in items a through d
above must be supported by a specific assessed need and justified in the

Section 113



Living Choices Assisted Living i Section |l

person-centered service plan. The following requirements must be
documented in the person-centered service plan:

i Identify a specific and individualized assessed need.

ii. Document the positive interventions and supports used prior to any
modifications to the person-centered service plan.

iii.  Document less intrusive methods of meeting the need that have been
fried but did not work.

iv.  Include a clear description of the condition that is directly proportionate to
the specific assessed need.

V. Include regular collection and review of data to measure the ongoing
effectiveness of the modification. L ]

vi.  Include established time limits for periodic rev:ews to deter; ne if the
modification is still necessary or can be termmaied

vii.  Include the informed consent of the individual.

200.110 Arkansas Medicaid Participation Requirements for Livin
Assisted Living Facilities .

Level Il ALF located within the state of Arkansas, licensed
Services;Office-of LongFerm-Care; and certifigd by the Officé%it: ong Term Care DPSQA, are
gligible to apply for Medicaid enroliment as Llwng Choices prowdeﬁl:thf ied Level |l Assisted
Living Facility providers contract with Medicaid@s Living Choices Assisted Living Facility
providers to provide and claim reimburgsement i@g Living Choices bundled services instead of
contracting with another entity (e.g., a ||ce?ased health agency) that is enrolled with
Medicaid to provide and receive payment f@ ﬁﬁ'“ 3 kiving Choices includes provisions
for alternative methods of delivefing s&rvice use assisted living facilities have different
business and staffing arrangements and the M id authority—the Social Security Act—
stipulates that Medicaid mg rmake p ent only fo-the provider of a service. Additional details
in this regard are provided i ; o

200.120 Arkansa%Med‘lcza[ﬂ Partlclpatlon Requirements for Living Choices 1-1-13
.Assisted” L}vmg Agengies

Che cés bundled semc‘:es The Medicaid authority—the Social Security Act—stipulates that
Medlcaid must m_k_‘ke payment only to the provider of a service.

A Llcensed Class A Home Health Agency is eligible to enroll in the Arkansas Medicaid Program
as an Assistéd Living Agency provider only if it has a contract with a Level Il Assisted Living
Facility fo deliver all Living Choices bundled services furnished in that facility. A home health
agency must have a separate Medicaid provider number for each ALF in which it is the Living
Choices provider.

To enroll as a Living Choices Assisted Living Agency, the agency must comply with certain
procedures and criteria. This section describes those criteria and procedures, as well as the
actions DMS takes to facilitate enrollment.

A.  The provider must be ficensed by the Division of Health Facility Services, Arkansas
Department of Health, as a Class A Home Health Agency.

Section -4



Living Choices Assisted Living

Section I

B.  The provider must submit to the Medicaid program’s Provider Enroliment Unit and to
DPSQA the following items, in addition to the other documentation required in this section.

1.

202.100

A.  Living Choices Assisted Living facility and agenc;}%

A copy of its contract with the ALF (financial details may be omitted). The contract
must describe in detail the agency's contractual obligations to provide Living Choices
bundled services to the ALF’s Living Choices beneficiaries.

Copies of contracts (financial details may be omitted) with any entities or individuals
the agency has sub-contracted with to provide components of Living Choices
bundled services.

Records that Living Choices Assisted Living Facilitie
Agencies Must Keep

2-1-15

; performed by the provider's nursing staff
s plan ‘of care. Records must include:

" e‘rvs prowders are required to follow all guidelines in the Medicaid Provider
*.. Manuat related to monitoring, including types of monitoring, timeframes, reporting
" énd documentation requirements. Providers are required to report any change in the

Benefi iciary’s condition to the BAASDHS RN, who is the only authorized individual
who may adjust a beneficiary’s plan of care. Providers agree to render all services in
accordance with the Arkansas Medicaid Living Choices Assisted Living Home &
Community-Based Services Waiver Provider Manual; to comply with all policies,
procedures and guidelines established by BAASDAABHS; to notify the BAASDHS
RN immediately of any change in the beneficiary’s physical, mental or environmental
needs the provider observes or is made aware of that may affect the beneficiary's
eligibility or necessitate a change in the beneficiary’s plan of care; to continually

monltor beneﬁcuary satlsfactlon and qualrty of service éelweﬁhand—te—reeerd-ﬂaew
and to notlfy the BAASDHS RN in wr:tlng W|th|n one week of services bemg

Section I-5



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

terminated, documenting the termination effective date and the reason for
termination.

210.000 PROGRAM COVERAGE 1-1-13

Living Choices Assisted Living is a home and community-based services waiver program that is
administered jointly by the Division of Medical Services (DMS, the state Medicaid agency) and
the Division-of-Aging-and-Adult-Services-(DAAS) Division of Aging, Adult, 2adBehavioral Health
Services (DAABHS), under the waiver authority of Section 1915(c) of the: Social Security Act.
Home and community-based services waiver programs cover servicgs d’e&gned to allow
specific populations of individuals to live in their own homes or in cert 1 types Qf“congregate
settings. The Living Choices Assisted Living waiver program setves PETEONS. aged 65 and older
and persons aged 21 through 64 who are determined to be mdtwduais with {:ﬂwysmal disabilities
by the Social Security Administration or the Arkansas DHS Medical Rewew Tea (MRT), and
who are eligible for nursing home admission at the mtermedlate level of ¢ are. <

L S
administered by the Office of Long Term Care within DMS. As agencnes 0%’1118 Arkansas
Department of Human Services (DHS), DMSD“AABHS DMS arﬁ;! the Dmsion of County
Operatlons (DCO) administer the po||C|es and "ocedures and the Fles and regulations

Ind!wduals found eligible for the Living Gﬁoices Emg_ram may participate in the program when
£ as ai_lwringhmces waiver provider in the

1-1-13

ities Rules and Regulations manual defines assisted living as:
“Housing, meals, laundry, social activities, transportation (assnstance with and arranging for

. re,person ‘_'servuces d:rect care servnces health care services, 24-
hour supervxsmn ang? are,and lim
ro@m aﬁd béarﬁ except in nursmg and mtermedlate care facﬂltles Medlcald

h uals parhclpat gin the Living Choices Program reside in apartment-style living units in

i Level 'ALF and receive individualized personal, heatth and social services that enable
ophmaimamtenam;e of their individuality, privacy, dignity and independence. The assisted
living env;ronmenf actively encourages and supports these values through effective methods of
service delwary and facility or program operation. The environment promotes residents’ self-
direction and personal decision-making while protecting their health and safety.

Assisted living includes 24-hour on-site response staff to assist with residents’ known physical
dependency needs or other conditions, as well as to manage unanticipated situations and
emergencies. Assisted living provider staff perform their duties and conduct themselves in a
manner that fosters and promotes residents’ dignity and independence. Supervision, safety and
security are required components of the assisted living environment. Living Choices includes
therapeutic social and recreational activities suitable to residents’ abilities, interests and needs.

Services are provided on a regular basis in accordance with individualized plans of care that are
signed by a DAASDHS registered nurse. Assisted living beneficiaries reside in their own fiving
units, which are separate and distinct from all others. Laundry and meal preparation and service

Section Il-6



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

are in a congregate setting for beneficiaries who choose not to perform those activities
themselves.

211.100 Eligibility for the Living Choices Assisted Living Program 1-1-13

A.  To qualify for the Living Choices Program, an individual must meet the targeted population
as described in this manual and must be found to require a nursing facility intermediate
level of care. Individuals meeting the skilled level of care, as determined by the Office of
Long Term Care, are not eligible for the Living Choices Assisted Living Program.

The Living Choices Program processes for beneficiary mtalse assessment and service

plan development include:

1.  Determination of categorical eligibility;

Determination of financial eligibility;

2
3 Determination of nursing facility Ie\!gl of care;
4.

5

3 (or their representatives) must make

1 the county in which the Level If ALF is located.

y the DHST@unty Office and is based on non-medical
Ej; ;__s compnse the non- -medical criteria. Medically,

‘Seale The mdwndual has a pnmary or secondary dmgnosns of Alzheimer's dlsease or
related dementia and is cognitively impaired so as to require substantial supervision
from another individual because he or she engages in inappropriate behaviors which
pose serious health or safety hazards to himself or others; or,

Symptems—and—Sagns—(GHESS)—seereMmepmeFe—The mdnndual has a

diagnosed medical condition which requires monitoring or assessment at least once
a day by a licensed medical professional and the condition, if untreated, would be
life-threatening.

D. Individuals who require a skilled level of care as defined in Department of Human Services
regulations are not eligible for the Living Choices waiver.

Section II-7



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

E. The Arkansas independent Assessment (ARIA) is the assessment instrument used by registered
nurses of the Independent Assessment Contractor to collect information used in determining
level of care and developing the person-centered service plan. The ARIA system assigns tiers
designed to help further differentiate individuals by need. Each waiver applicant or
participant is assigned a tier level (0, 1, 2, or 3) following each assessment or re-
assessment. The tiers are intended to help inform waiver program oversight and
administration and person-centered service planning. The tiers do not replace the Level of
Care criteria described in Section C above, waiver eligibility determinations, or the person-
centered service plan process.

1. Tier0 (zero) and Tler1 (one) mdlcate tre mdmdual S assessed needs, if any, do not

available through gither the lemg Choices waiver program
facility. :

3. Tier 3 (three) indicates the individual needs skilled care sra
nursing facility and therefere is not eligible for:}

Ewalver services shall have his or her eligibility

dlsquahfg’a‘ng episodic medical condition or

dition that is temporary and expected to last
at md[vrdual shall not receive waiver services or

or change sf condition that would render the individual

Elngibrltty.for thg Llwrrg Choices waiver program is determined as the latter of the date of
aiaphcatloﬁ for the program, the date of admission to the assisted living facility or the date
“:the pldn of Gare is signed by the DAASDHS RN and beneficiary. (If a waiting list is
lmplemenied‘m order fo remain in compliance with the waiver application as approved by
CMS; the eligibility date determination wiil be based on the waiting list process.)

HI.  The Living Choices waiver provides for the entrance of ali eligible persons on a first come,
first-served basis, once individuals meet all medical and financial eligibility requirements.
However, the waiver dictates a maximum number of unduplicated beneficiaries who can
be served in any waiver year. Once the maximum number of unduplicated beneficiaries is
projected to be reached considering the number of active cases and the number of
pending applications, a waiting list will be implemented for this program and the following
process wili apply:

1. Each Living Choices application will be accepted and medical and financial eligibility
will be determined.

Section -8



Living Choices Assisted Living Section I

2. W all waiver slots are filled, the applicant will be notified of his or her eligibility for
services, that all waiver slots are filled, and that the applicant is number X in line for
an available slot.

3.  Entry to the waiver will then be prioritized based on the following criteria:

a.  Waiver application determination date for persons inadvertently omitted from
the waiver waiting list due to administrative error;

b.  Waiver application determination date for persons being discharged from a
nursing facility after a 90-day stay; waiver application determination date for
persons residing in an approved Level ll Assisted Living Facility for the past six
months or lenger,;

c.  Waiver application determination date for persons in thecﬁsfed of DHS Adult
Protective Services (APS);

d.  Waiver application determination date for all otherp.

211.150 Level of Care Determination 1-1-13
A prospective Living Choices beneficiary must require anursing facili

hterméﬁa_;a;gg level of
care. =

The intermediate level of care determination is made by medigal staff w;th e Department of
Human Services (DHS), Office of Long Term Gare. The determﬁailon J&f‘based on the
assessment performed by the BAAS-Independént Assessment Contrﬁcl’fﬁ“r RN, using standard
criteria for functional disability in evaluating an’ iijdlwdual’s need for nursing home placement in
the absence of communlty alternatlves The Ies&l of care determination, in accordance with
pletéd.and the individual deemed eligible for an

rofessi*enéi prior to receiving Living Choices

least annually), and the Off“ iee of Loﬁg‘_ ,
ifration and ﬁ19 i'e-evaluatlon are documented on form DHS-

e ra;! guzgdell ,s require level of care reassessment at least

annua}'i DA&@{ 2| dependent Assessment Contractor may reassess a
_beneficiary’ -
the DWDHS RN to ensure that a benefi clary is approprlately placed in the

2-1-14

Eac' beneficiary in the Living Choices Assisted Living Program must have a person-
centered service plan, also referred to as an individualized Living Choices Plan of Care
(AAS- 9503) The authorlty to develop a Living Choices plan of care is given to the
Medicaid State agency’s designee, the Bivision-ef-Aging-and-Adult-Services Registered
Nurse-{DAASDHS RN). The Living Choices plan of care developed by the PAASDHS RN
includes;-butis-netlimited-te without limitation:

1.  Beneficiary identification and contact information to include full name and address,
phone number, date of birth, Medicaid number and the effective date of Living
Choices Assisted Living waiver eligibility;

Primary and secondary diagnosis;
Fierlevel:

Section H-9



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

4.  Contact person;
45. Physician’s name and address;

56. The amount, frequency and duration of required Living Choices services and the
name of the service provider chosen by the beneficiary or representative to provide
the services;

67. Other services outside the Living Choices services, regardless of payment source
identified and/or ordered to meet the beneficiary’s needs. Living Choices providers
are not required to provide these services, but they may not impede their delivery.

78. The election of community services by the waiver beneficiary; and

80. The name and title of the BAASDHS RN respensible for the deveiepment of the plan
of care.

948. Each beneficiary, or his or her representative, has the rlghﬂo choose ¥ ’fhe pravider of
each non-waiver servrce Non—walver serwces are the servseés listed on the plan of

forwarded to the beneficiary and the Living Choices se ﬁe provrdegisj chosen by the
beneficiary or representative, if waiver eligibility is approVed by the BHS County Office.
Each provider is responsible for developmg an implementation’ p“{eﬁ in accordance with the
beneficiary plan of care. The ongmal pla;n; of care will be maintained by the BAASDHS
RN. i

The implementation plan musi be des ne ensu;geihat services are.

Individualized to tlag bene mary $ unigue circumstances;

Provided in thei st restric 'eenwronment possnble

. u'ia'v;gjiable to the beneflcaary and other factors deemed appropriate by the
BMSDHS RN.

Living Choices services must be provided according fo the beneficiary plan of care.
Providers may bill only for services in the amount and frequency that is authorized in the
plan of care. As detailed in the Medicaid Program provider contract, providers may bill
only after services are provided.

NOTE: Plans of care are updated annually by the BAASDHS RN and sent to the
assisted living provider prior to the expiration of the current plan of care.
However, the provider has the responsibility for monitoring the plan of care
expiration date and ensuring that services are delivered according to a valid
plan of care. At least 30 and no more than 45 days before the expiration of
each plan of care, the provider shall notify the DAASDHS RN via email and
copy the RN supervisor of the plan of care expiration date.

Section 11-10



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

Services are not compensable unless there is a valid and current care plan
in effect on the date of service.

C. The assisted living provider employs or contracts with a Registered Nurse (the “assisted
living provider RN"} who implements and coordinates plans of care, supervises nursing
and direct care staff and monitors beneficiaries’ status. At least once every three months,
the assisted living provider RN must evaluate each Living Choices beneficiary.

D. The BAASDHS RN must reevaluate a beneficiary’s medical condition within fourteen days
of being notified of any significant change in the beneficiary’s condition. The assisted
living RN is responsible for immediately notifying the PAASDHS RN regarding
beneficiaries whose status or condition has changed and who need uation and
reassessment.

REVISIONS TO A BENEFICIARY PLAN OF CARE MAY ONLY BE:
RN.

revised plan of care will be sent to each appropria 3
of when services are provided, unless: ﬂae prowder

authorized on a Living Choices plan of ¢ cq ), j
covered and do not qualify for Medicaid relg}rmgursement leedlcald

care are subject to recoupmeu_

E.  Anindividual may be served in a Level It
of care developed by the beneﬂc;la"" and A

admlss;ﬁn to the assﬁsied living facmty or the date the provisional plan of care is
‘:__QMSDIfFSfuRN and the beneficiary, and a plan of care will be sent to

sices eligibility application has been approved, waiver services must be

egl_‘ln ord‘er_ for e?iglbiliy to contmue Medicaid covers L|V|ng Chmces serwces ona daliy.

serweesu escnbed ‘as a covered ALF service in this manual, when the service is received
between midnight on a given day and midnight of the following day. A day is not a covered date

of service when a beneficiary does not receive any Living Choices services between midnight of
that day and midnight of the following day.

NOTE: The Arkansas Medicaid Program considers an individual an inpatient of a
facility beginning with the date of admission. Therefore, payment to the
inpatient facility begins on the date of admission. Payment to the inpatient
facility does not include the date of discharge.

Living Choices waiver services are not allowed on the same day as an
individual is admitted to an inpatient facility, regardless of the time of day. If
the inpatient facility (hospital, rehab hospital, nursing facility or ICF/ID) is

Section II-11



Living Choices Assisted Living _Section

reimbursed by Medicaid on any given day, the ALF waiver provider is not
allowed reimbursement for Living Choices service on the same day.

For example: If a waiver beneficiary is taken and admitted to the hospital on
6/10/12 at 10 a.m. and discharged on 6/13/12 at 10:00 p.m., the hospital will
be reimbursed by Medicaid for that date of admission, 6/10/12, but will not
be reimbursed for the date of discharge, 6/13/12. in this scenario, the
individual left the ALF I facility, was admitted to the hospital, and was
returned to the ALF Il facility after 3 days of hospitalization.

Date of Admission — 6/10/12 at 16:00 a.m. — Reimbursement to the
hospital

6/11/12 — Reimbursement to the hospital

6/12/12 - Reimbursement to the hospltal )

1o the extentthat such assistance is in accordance with
; Actand interpretations thereto by the Arkansas Board

: he remova{ of Pharmacy Consultant Services as a waiver service does not
N change the provision of the service, as required under the Level Il ALF
B lrcensmg ‘regulations.

lemg Cho;ces wawer beneficiaries are eligible for the same prescription drug benefits of regular
Medicaid, plus three (3) additional prescriptions for a total of nine (9) per month. No prior
authorization is required for the three additional prescriptions. Living Choices waiver
beneficiaries who are dual eligible (receiving both Medicare and Medicaid) must obtain
prescribed medications through the Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Plan, or for certain
prescribed medications excluded from the Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Plan, through the
Arkansas Medicaid State Plan Pharmacy Program.

212.200 Periodic Nursing Evaluations 1-1-13

The assisted living provider RN must evaluate each Living Choices Program beneficiary at least
every three months, more often if necessary. The assisted living provider RN must alert the

Section lI-12



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

BAASDHS RN to any indication that a beneficiary’s direct care services needs are changing or
have changed, so that the BAASDHS RN can reassess the individual.

Each Living Choices beneficiary will be evaluated at least annuaily by a BAASDHS RN. The
PAASDHS RN evaluates the resident to determine whether a nursing home intermediate level
of care is still appropriate and whether the plan of care should continue unchanged or be
revised. Re-evaluations and subsequent plan of care revisions must be made within fourteen
days of any significant change in the beneficiary’s status.

1-1-13

215.000 Living Choices Forms

Living Choices providers are required to utlhzeg,_l program forms a i'opriate and as
instructed by the Division of Medlcal Sepvices f’ d the Division of Aging and Adult Services.
; 't

216.260 In-Setvice Training 1-1-13

Section 1113



Living Choices Assisted Living Section Il

Medicaid requires personal care aides to participate in least twelve (12) hours of in-service
training every twelve (12) months after achieving Personal Care Aide certification.

A.  Each in-service training session must be at least 1 hour in length.

1. When appropriate, in-service training may occur at an assisted living facility when
the aide is furnishing services.

2. In-service training while serving a Living Choices beneficiary may occur only if the
beneficiary or the beneficiary’s representative has given prior written consent for
training activities to occur concurrently with the beneficiary’s care.

B.  The Living Choices provider and the personal care aide must maintain documentatlon that
they are meeting the in-service training requirement. %

C. Providers are required to attend at least one in-service per cale
services are co-sponsored by DMS and DAASDAABHS. O

250.100 Reimbursement of Living Choices Assisted Living Facilit eSand 1-1-13
Agencies £ =%

Medicaid reimbursement to Living Choices assisted living faeﬂiiy and agem;y prowders is based
on a statewide daily (per diem) rate, as determigied by DMS ané Specified’ii the Fee Schedule
under Section 250.210. MM&MM%&QMSBHS—RN&E%&&
bmmmmmmmm
There-arefourtiers-ofneed-The daily rate pays for all direct care services in the beneficiary’s
plan of care. Reimbursement is for direct: ‘care sérvices only, room and board are to be paid by
the beneficiary or his or her legal represents 5

A day is a covered date of seriice whe;a" meg

services described in Sections 212.10¢
midnight of the following déi’?\;.;‘~_ :

oices beneficiary receives any of the
rough 242,500 between midnight of that day and

262.100 Lﬂlngigl_]oiéé%ﬁssisted Living Procedure Codes 1-1-13
Br edu@rg kT
Code 7 Maodifier Description
T2031 U Living Choices Assisted Living Fier+
T2031 U2 Living-Choicos Assisted-Livina Tier 2
T2031 us Living Choicos Assistod-Living Tior 3
T2031 U4 Living-Cheices Assisted Living Tier 4

Section II-14



Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 2
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITRE C E IVE D

State: ARKANSAS »
OCT 02 201

- BUREAU OF
iii. Payment Methodology (Continued) } LEGI SLAL-JI- IVE RESEARC H
B. _X The State will use a different reimbursement methodology for individuaié éelf—direcﬁﬁé_'their PAS

under section 1915(j) than that approved for State plan personal care services or for section 1915(c) Home
and Community-Based waiver services. Amended Attachment 4. 19-B page(s) are atfached.

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

iv. Use of Cash

A. _ X The State elects to disburse cash prospe‘ctiifcly to participants self—direcﬁhg personal assistance
services. The State assures that all Internal Revenue Service (IRS) requirements regarding payroll/tax filing
functions will be followed, including when participants perform the payroll/tax filing functions themselves.

B. The State elects not to disburse cash prospectively participants self-directing personal assistance
services. e T

v. Voluntary Disenrollment o
The State will provide the following s@feguafds to ensure continuity of services and assure participant health and
welfare during the period of transition between self-directed and traditional service delivery models.

When the participant voluntarily elects to discontinue participation in IndependentChoices, the counselorDHS
professional staff will discnss with the individual the reason for disenrollment and assist the individual in resolving
any barriers or problems that may exist in préventing continuation. If the participant wishes to continue with the
option to disenroll, the-ceunselorDHS professional staff will assist by informing the participant of traditional
agency personal care providers in the participant’s area. -Fhe-sounseler DHS professional staff will assist with the
coordination of agency services to the degree requested by the participant,

IndependentChoices can continne until agency services are established or the participant may elect to use informal
supports until agency services are established,

The timeframes discussed under involuntary disenrollment do not apply to voluntary disenrollment. The request of
the participant will be honored whether they ask to be disenrolled immediately or at anytime in the future. The
eounselorDIIS professional staff will coordinate the participant’s wishes to the degree requested by the participant.
This may include self-advocation by the participant and asking the-ceunselor-DHS professional staff to coordinate
agency services with the participant’s preferred provider. In some instances the participant may wish to forego
agency personal assistance services and choose to rely on family or friends. If the participant requests that the
counseler DHS professional staff coordinate the agency services, the-eounselor DHS staff will ascertain when
services can be started. Theeeunseler DHS staff will then close the IndependentChoices case the day before
agency services begin. Regardless of the situation, the State will assure that there will not be an interruption in
delivering necessary services unless it is the preference of the participant to depend on informal supports.







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 3
Revised: January 1, 20169

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j} Self-Directed Personal Assistance Serviees (Continued)

vi. Involuntary Disenrollment

A. The circumstances under which a participant may be involuntarily disenrolled from self-directing
personal assistance services, and returned to traditional Serwce delivery model are noted below.

Participants may be disenrolled for the following reasons: -

| 1.

Health and Welfare: Any time DAASDPSQ feels the health and Waelfare of the participant is
compromised by continued participation in the IndependentChoices Program, the participant
may be returned to the traditional persorial care program. Prior to this point theceunselor
counseling entity’s support cgordinator has worked with the participant offering
suggestions, identifving or changmg representauves or employees to better meet the needs of
the consumer, making in-home visits as needed by APS or HCBS RNs, and working to resolve
these concerns. If no resolution is ava:llaﬁie, meeting the participant’s health and well-being
needs is of most Impoxtance mc]udmg refex:ral back to the fraditional model.

Change in Condltlon “Should the partlclpant”s cognitive ability to direct his/her own care
diminish to a point where the participaiit'can no longer self-direct and there is no responsible
representative available to direct the care the ceunselorc counseling entity’s support
coordinator will seek out sources of support. If no resources are available, the
IndependentChmces case will be closed. The participant will be informed of the pending

_closure by letter. Thé letter will include a list of traditional personal care agencies serving the

participant’s area. If the participant is also a 1915(c) waiver recipient, an e-mail will be auto

\jrgenerated to thﬁ HCBS RN or targeted case manager. The e-mail to the HCBS RN or targeted
case manager is auto generated and populated with the appropriate names once a closure date is

entered in the database. The e-mail will inform the HCBS RN or targeted case manager of the
pending clOSurc of the IndependentChoices case necessitating a change in the HCBS service
plan. Within five days of sending the letter the eounselorcounseling entity’s support
coordinator will follow up with the participant to determine which agency the participant may
wish to choose. The eounselor-counseling entity’s support coordinator will coordinate the
referral with the agency provider. However, if the participant declines agency services, the
eounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator will respect the choice made by the
participant. The participant may choose to have their needs met by informal caregivers.

Misuse of Allowance: A notice will be issued should the participant or the representative who
manages their cash allowance: 1) fail to pay related state and federal payroll taxes; 2) use the
allowance to purchase items unrelated to personal care needs; 3) fail to pay the salary ofa
personal assistant; or 4) misrepresent payment of a personal assistant’s salary. The counselor
counseling entity’s support coordinator will discuss the violations with the participant and
allow the participant to take corrective action including restitution if applicable. The
participant will be permitted to remain in the program, but will be assigned to the fiscal






intermediary, who will provide maximum bookkeeping support and services. The participant
or representative will be notified that further failure to follow the expenditure plan will result in
disenrollment and a report filed with Office of Medicaid Inspector General when applicable.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 4
Revised: January 1, 20169

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
vi. Involuntary Disenrollment (Continued)

Should an unapproved expenditure or oversight ocour a second time, the part1c1pant/
representative will be notified that their IndependentCh{nces case is being closed and the
participant is being returned to traditional personal care. Office of Medicaid Inspector General
is informed of situations as requ1red The State will assure m;erruptlon of services will not
occur while the participant is tran51t10nmg from IndependentChoices to traditional services.

4. Underutilization of Allowance: The ﬁscal intermediary is responsible for monitoring the use
of Medicaid funds received on behalf of the participant. If the participant is underutilizing the
allowance and not using the allowange according to their cash expenditure plan, the fiscal
intermediary will inform the counseling enfities through quarterly reports and monthly reports
upon request. The censiselercounseling éntity’s support coordinator will discuss problems
that are oceurring with the participant and their support network. Together the parties will
resolve the underutilization. The eeaaseler—céimselm; entity’s support coordinator will
continue to monitor the: pammpant’s use of their allowance through both reviewing of reports
and personal contact with the participant. If a pattern of underutilization continues to occur,
future discussions will focus on what is in the best interest of the participant in meeting their
ADLs even if the best solution is a return to agency services. Unused funds are returned to the
Arkansas Medicaid program within 45 days upon disenrollment. Funds accrued in the absence

_of a savings plan will be returned to the Arkansas Medicaid program within a twelve month

+ filing deadline. Exceptions to involuntary disenrollment may be considered if the participant
has been hospitalized for an extended period of time or has had a brief visit out of state with
approval by the participant’s physician. Person-centered planning allows the flexibility of
decision making based on individual needs that best meet the needs of the participant.

5. Tailure to Assume Employer Authority: Failure to Assume Employer Authority occurs when a
participant fails to fulfill the role of employer and does not respond to counseling support.
Participants who fail in their employer responsibilitics but do not have a representative will be
given the opportunity to select a representative who can assume employer responsibilities on
behalf of the participant. Disenrollment will not occur without guidance and counseling by the
eounseler-counseling entity’s support coordinator or by the fiscal intermediary. When this
occurs, the eeunselercounseling entity’s support coordinator will coordinate agency
personal care services to the degree requested by the participant. The participant may wish to
sclf-advocate from a list provided by the eeunselor counseling entity’s support coordinator,
ask the eeunseler-counseling entity’s support coordinator to coordinate, or may simply wish
to receive personal assistance services informally. The participant’s wishes will be respected.







A, The State will provide the following safeguards to ensure continuity of services and assure
participant healih, safety and welfare during the period of transition between self-directed and
traditional service delivery models.







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 5
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

vi. Involuntary Disenrollment (Continued)

When a participant is involuntarily disenrolled, a notice of intent to close the IndependentChmces
case will be mailed to the participant. The notice will allow a minimum of 10 days but no more
than 30 days before IndependentChoices enrollment will be discontinued, dependmg on the
sitnation. During the transition period, the counselor-counseling entitv’s support coordinator
will work with the participant/representative to assure services are provided to help the individual
transition to the most appropriate personal care services available.

vii. Participant Living Arrangement

Any additional restrictions on partlcxpant Iivmg arrangements other than homes or property
owned, operated or controlled by a prowder of semces tot related by blood or marriage to the
participant are noted below

There are no add1t10na1 resmcuons on hvmg arrangements.
viii. Geographic Limitations and Comparablhty
A, _X The State elects to prowde self-directed personal assistance services on a statewide basis.

B. __.. The State elects to prowde self-directed personal assistance services on a targeted
geogaphlc basis. Please describe:

C. ) The State elects to provide self-directed personal assistance services to all eligible
populatlons

D. X The State elects to provide self-directed personal assistance services to targeted populations.
Please describe: Age 18 and older.

E. __ The State elects to provide self-directed personal assistance services to an unlimited number
of participants.

F. _X The State elects to provide self-directed personal assistance services to 7500 participants, at
any given time.






Supplcment 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 8
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915() Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
x. Service Plan

The State has the following safeguards in place, to permit entities providing other Medlca.ld State
Plan services to be responsible for developing the self- dlrected personal assistance services service
plan, to assure that the service provider’s influence on the pia;;mpg process is ﬁ_ﬂly disclosed to the
participant and that procedures are in place to mitigate that inﬂilél‘:{ce :

Not applicable. The state will not allow entities who provide other Medwald State Plan services to
be responsible for developing the self-directed service plan.

xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan

The State’s quality assurance and 1mprovement plan i dcscnbed below, including:

i. How it will conduct aetlvities of dlscovcxy, remediation and quality improvement in order to
ascertain whether the program meets assurances corrects shortcomings, and pursues
opportunities for i 1mprovement and

ii. The system performance measures, -oufcome measures and satisfaction measures that the State
will monitor and evalua{e

Many a‘c_ti'vkitie_s‘ evaluate the overall performance of the IndependentChoices program such as:

e The IndependentChoices program uses a database to track a wide array of data, and uses
all of the data it stores. Data entry drives end user functionality through form and e-mail
generation, field calculation, data cross-referencing, and notices and reports. The

" reporting capabilities can help to monitor every element of operations such as: case
particulars, work reports and management and operational tools. Use of the database
supports discovery, remediation, and quality improvements.

* Using a DMS-DHS-approved assessment too! to determine the resources in time required
to provide care in the home.

¢ Reports received from Financial Management Services provider received on a quarterly
basis used by eeunselors- DHS Independent Choices QA staff to determine why
underutilization of the Cash Expenditure Plan occurs and how underutilization can be
resolved.







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 9
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS
1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xl.  Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)
All individual facets of the program work in a contiruum to identify, remedlaie and improve
the quality of services and the satisfaction of program participants while improving the
overall performance of the program. Each phase of the program is described, detailing how

assurances are met through the Arkansas Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan described
below.

Monitoring and Oversight

The Division of Medical Services (DMS) retains responsibility for the administration and
oversight of all Medicaid programs,. The Division of Agmgand-Adalt-Services
DAAS)Provider Services and Quality Assurance DPSQA) is the operating agency for the
IndependentChoices pmgram and respons1ble for the day-to-day operations. Both Divisions
are part of the Arkansas Depaertment of Human Services. BAASDPSQA will be responsible
for executing the Quahty Assurance and Improvement Plan with monitoring and oversight by
DMS. L F : ,

BAASDPSQA will provide DMS with a monthly report comparing status of current data to
previous year data Examples included in the report may include but are not limited to the
followmg ‘

~» Eorollment activities
* Status of pending applications
Status of active case load
Partacipants who also receive home and community based services (HCBS)
Medicaid Cost for IndependentChoices including participant-directed cost for HCBS
services
* Detailed information for cost data for the most current month including cost of
participant’s budget and support services.
e Year in Progress, count of participants, contact notes, home visits, new enrollments for the
current month, year to date and accumulative prior year experiences.

e e s @

Lines of communication between the two Divisions are established and ufilized to discuss
additional needs and concerns that either Division may have.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1 A
Page 10
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

The IndependentChoices database is designed in such a way that dispovery and remediation
go hand in hand; not only for the eounselersDHS Independent Choices QA staff, nurses and
contractors, but also for management staff. By design, the efficiency of the database enhances

the ee&nseler—s—DHS Independent Choices QA staff’s ability to provide-goed-customer

serviee-monitor the program without being and-net-be-ovéily burdened with-by paperwork.
Examples on the following pages may iticlude but are not limited to:

The database quantifies:
o referrals received during the month
* persons disenrolling,

The database identifies: :

reasons for disenrolling from the program,

IndependentChoices partacipaﬁts who also receive HCBS waiver services,
the HCBS RN a551gned to the participant,

the pa:rt1c1pant’s physician, &

physician’s fax number, -

date of next reassessmenl due.

The database tracks and creates exception reports when standards are not met and quantifies
“ results. Some examples of the reports are:
* time between the date of referral, the nurse’s home visit, and receipt of the assessment
from the HGB-S-RNDHS Inde;:endent Assessment Contractor,

* time between the referral and the actual enrollment
¢ number of home visits made by HCBS RN’s within a timeframe.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 11
Revised: January 1, 20169

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
Xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Each active and pending record contained within the database only includes data fields that
are used in reporting. Each participant record may mclude the followmg
representative information, if applicable, '

participant’s employee,

participant’s back-up worker,

directions to the participant’s home,

nurse tracking,

ecunselor-Independent Chmces DA traekmg,

contact notes,

HCBS ARChoices service plan for persons recewmg both ARChoices and
IndependentChmces

These data elements W1ll ass1st the counselors-DHS Independent Choices QA staff and
nurses in performing the1r dutles by allowmg tn:nely management and momtonng of each
part1c1pant 8 case. +ne- v s used-iae sasisn-efbenet

beﬁeﬁts—The database allows nurses, eeunselers—DHS Inde endent Chmces A staff or
contractors to set health risk indicators identifying program participants who may require
more frequent momtermg

“The data alloWs nurses and counselors DHS Independent Choices QA staff to run reports
from their case load. Automated highlights on specific data elements draw the nurse or
“counseles2s DHS Independent Choices QA staff attention to areas that require special
attention, Highlighted data fields represent the following:
¢ assessinent performed by the nurse DHS Independent Assessment Contractor but not
received by DA:ASDPSQ&

® date enrollment forms sent to a potent1al enrollee but not returned






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 12
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS
1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

xi.  Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Reports are available to management to monitor quality of services provided to program
participants and performance of staff. The reports 1dent1fy program strengths and weaknesses
or individual areas of concern. Reports compare datd elements over periods of time to
measure progress of corrective actions. As issues are 1dent1ﬁed they are addressed with
appropriate staff to determine a new course of action through issuing new policy, enacting
new procedures, clarifying an existing pohcy or procedure, of deveigpmg additional training.
Identified issues continue to be monitored to determine if the corrective action is resolving the
concern and is achieving the expected outcomes.

These reports allow flexibility to gez_ae_rate data based on any specified period of time, by a
nurse, eounselor DHS Independent Chisices QA staff, contractor or by management.
Reporting frequencies raalge from dally, monthly, of annually. Policy dictates a maximum
period of time for eompletloﬂ of specific tasks with the focus on completing necessary tasks
that allow the program partlcipant to direct and meet their own health care needs.

Reporting is used to 1dentsfy and remediate problems, improve program operation and to
evaluate staff performance .

The database stores contact notes documentmg IndependentCh01ces QA staff and contractors’
communication with program participants. Policy requires each contact note to be entered
into the participant’s record to enhance the ability of management to address concerns
expressed by the participant, a legislator, the Governor’s Office, etc., with a quick review of
the contact notes.

Examples of data elements found in the nurse tracking database portion may include, but is
not limited to these data elements describing some of the following characteristics:
MDBS-HCRUG Level of care tier category
‘principal diagnosis,

secondary diagnoses,

participant well cared for,

strong informal supports,

no concerns noted,

need for frequent counselor-counseling entitv’s support coordinator contact.

® & & & o & &







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 13
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved (0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS

19135(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xi.  Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Contact notes may include the following:
person initiating the call,

person receiving the call,

date and time of call,

subject of contact

description of communication,
complaint indicator

whom complaint is directed toward -
date of complaint resolution- -

* & @ o & @& 9 @

Nurses are supported by the Nurse Case L_Qad Réporl: that quantifies the active and pending
caseload for each nurse by describing the following:
* by county, the number of active and pending clients with or without home and

community-based serv1ces-aad—ﬂaese—w%h—e*te&s&en—eilbeaeﬁ-ts
e datais also dlsplayed m the aggregate by nurse per assigned counties.

Nusses The DHS Indenendent Assessment Contractor uses use-a PMSDHS-approved
assessment tool to define the pamcipant s medical needs relative to the amount of resources
required te care for the person in the home. The BMS-DHS-approved assessment tool is
similar to the MDS assessmient performed in nursing homes but is specifically designed for
the community environment. The assessment results in a Resouree Utilization Greup{RUG)
with-an-ADE-Indexlevel of care tier defining the degree of functional impairment. These
results help define the population served in addition to using a scientifically scaled and
validated assessment instrument. The use of this assessment helps to more clearly describe
the medical complexities of program participants as they strive to remain in the community
and avoid-institutionalization.

Monitoring occurs in various other ways such as:

¢ Underutilization of the allowance could be the first indication that a participant may be
experiencing difficulty directing their own care. Tt could indicate the beginning of a
decline in cognitive function, impairing the participant’s ability to direct their care, a need
for a representative or decision making partner; a loss of worker; or it may be nothing
more than not submitting the timesheets in a timely manner. Each esunseloscounseling
entity’s support coordinator works with his or her participants to determine the cause of
the underutilization. The eeunselorcounseling entity’s support coordinator and
participant work together to resolve the problem with the esunselercounseling entity’s
support coordinator providing further assistance, as needed, or by the participant
meeting his or her responsibilities as an employer. The eounselercounseling entity’s







support coordinator follows-up with additional calls to the participant and monitors
future underutilization reports for reoccurrences.







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 14
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS

1915() Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
Xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

»  Site visits to the contractors are made at a minimum bi- annually and more oﬁcn if needed.
The purpose of the site visit may be to provide an in-service, address concefns, or to
evaluate performance, If durmg an evaluation deﬁmcncws are noted, DAASDPSQA may
provide additional in-services, require an acceptabIe corrective action plan, monitor the
corrective action plan, withhold payment or terminate the contract. -

Participant Feedback

The BAAS-DPSQA and its counselmg and fiscal contractors support and encourage
participant communication by prowslon ofa toll-free number. Participants may pose
questions and voice concerns using the toll-free nuaher Incoming calls from participants and
outgoing calls from ecunselors-counselinig entity’s support coordinators or contractors are
entered into the participant’s individual electronic record. If the communication is an
expressed complaint the eounselor-counseling entity’s support coordinator foliows
PAASDPSQA required reportmg procedures for documenting and resolving the complaint.
Resolutions may include pohcy or procedural changes. Momtorlng will continue to determine
if the Change has any 1mpact or if the problem needs additional review.

A DHS appeal process is avallable for decisions made concerning Medicaid eligibility-e¢
extension-ofbenefits. An internal appeal process is available for participants when they are in
disagreement with the nusiber of hours recommended by the HCBS RN, involuntary
disenrollment or if they have disagreements with their eeunselorcounseling entity’s support
coordinator or fiscal agent. The purpose of the internal appeal is to allow the participant a
voice in the decision and a way to mediate any misunderstandings between the participant and
the IndependentChoices program. Additional supporting information may be shared during
this time. DAASDPSQA will issue a Jetter to the participant within five days from the date
the internal appeal is conducted. Most disagreements are resolved prior to a participant
initiating a request for a fair hearing and appeal. A formal Medicaid Fair Hearing is available
when services are reduced, suspended, eliminated, or upon loss of Medicaid eligibility.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 15
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Information and Assistance

Brochures are available for marketing purposes and are promded Lo any of the 75 county
offices upon request. X

Each participant receives a program héﬁdbook to convey prograrﬁ Wguidelines and
expectations. Examples of information provided may include any of the following and is
subject to additions and deletion*s‘as needs arise:

Overview of the IndependentChomes pro gram

Overview of support services

Use of a representative (Demsmn—Makmg Partner)-or-Communications-Manager
Eligibility - ..

Participant rights -

Participant responmbihiles

Personal assistance services

Other Medicald services

Medmald waiver services’

Expectations from éounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator, nurse,
bookkeeper

Participant’s enrollment duties

Confidentiality

When participant-direction begins

Case Expenditure Plan

Record Keeping

Payroll

Timesheets

Hiring, training, conflict resolution, and termination of personal assistant
Adult protective services

Support services monitoring

Reassessments

Appeal rights






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 16
| Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915() Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
X1, Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Participants may also receive in-home visits, newsletters quesnonnalres and contact by
phone to support participants wishing to direct their owti care.

Participants can speak with their eeunselorcounseling entlh. 5 support coordinator or the
fiscal intermediary from 8:00 a.m. untal4 30 p.m., Monday through Friday, except for legal
holidays or during inclement weather. Aﬁer hours the participant may leave a message; the
counselorconnseling entity’s support coordinator will return the call within one working
day. Complamts are entered by the receiving party whether that is the eeunseler-counseling
entity’s support coordinator or the ﬁscal mtemlcmary

A packet of communication forms is prsvlded to each participant to report a change, to revoke
and/or change disclosure of mformatlon and to appeal adverse decisions. The esunseler
counseling entitv’s support: ‘coordinator may also verbally take information related to
changes in address or phone numher .

Health and Welfare

Each participant must have an individual back-up plan to handle situations when the
participant’s primary employee is unavailable. The participant identifies a person who is
willing to assuime the tasks of the primary employee. The participant determines the risk
‘involved and how the risk is mitigated based on their own individual needs. Inguiry of the use
of the back-up plan occurs during phone communication with the participant. Reports from
the IndependentChoices database can identify any program participant without a back-up
] personat attendant and if there is a conflict regarding a representative serving as a paid back-

| ' up personal attendant. The eeunselercounseling entity’s support coordinator initiates

communications with the participant to begin remediation.

| The Ccounseling entity’s support coordinator and fiscal entities will work closely together
to provide information necessary for each entity to perform their duties. Frequent and
thorough communication facilitates this good working relationship.

The database assists in addressing health and welfare concerns by allowing monitoring and
management of each individual file by:

» identifying a participants representative, employee, physician, back-up worker, directions
to the home, results of the aurse’s-assessmentIndependent Assessment, and updates by
the counselor-counseling entity’s support coordinator assisting the participant in the
IndependentChoices program, and,







e documenting all communications with the program participants.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 17
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved (938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

X1, Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Financial Accountability

PAAS-DPSQA assures that payments are made to Médic'aid eligible pafﬁcipants by:

accessing Medicaid eligibility data-prior to enrolling a person into IndependentChoices to
assure cligibility for Medicaid and the IndependentChoices program;

IndependentChoices program logic implemented by the Arkansas Medicaid fiscal
intermediary, interfaces with the Medicaid Management Information System (MMIS) to
edit agamst creation of an allow-a:nce for any particlpant who is no longer Medicaid
eligible or is institutionalized;

DPAAS-DPSQA malntams the MMTS 811 gibility ﬁle for IndependentChoices. The
Arkansas fiscal 1ntermed13-1y reads the D/IMIS eligibility file to create claims for the
IndependentChomes program. DAAS DPSQA queries on a weekly basis the Medicaid
data warehouse to adentlfy persons who are deceased, entered a nursing home, or have lost
Medicaid eligibility. Once identified, the IndependentChoices eligibility segment is
closed by aan-DHS Independent Choices QA staffeeunselor on a weekly basis. Through
contact wlth the participant or participant’s family or representative this information is
obtamt:d prio to the update of the MMIS;

DAA:SV—DP§Q A aléo queries the Medicaid data warehouse to identify IndependentChoices
participants who have had an acute hospitalization. Once identified, PAASDPSQA
informs the program participant, FMS provider and the counseling entity by letter that the

‘?partlclpant’_s allowance paid prospectively during the hospitalization must be returned to

the Medicaid program. The day of admission and day of discharge are allowable days;
preventing duplication of agency and consumer-directed services by informing agency
provider by fax seven days in advance the date the participant will begin directing their
own personal care services.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 18
| Revised: January 1, 20139
OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS

1915() Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

Cualified Providers

IndependentChoices counseling and fiscal providef‘é;:assist program participants in all phases
of program participation. Some of the examples of the Work by these prowders may include
but is not limited to any of the work activities below:

enrollment of new participants;

develop and implement partisipantfﬂirected budget;

coordinate with FMS provider and DPAASDPSQA;

orientation to IndependentChomes and the philosophy of participant direction;

offer skills trammg to the degree desired by the participant on how to recruit, interview,
hire, evaluate, manage or dismiss asmstants

participant-directed counselmg support semces

monitoring IndependentChmces participants/representatives;

monitor over and under expend:itures ‘of Cash Expenditure Plan;

provide quarterly reports to BAASDPSOA;

manage the individual budget on behalf of the participant;

Procéss paymll and support payment for other qualified services and supports;

report and pay state and federal income taxes, FICA, Medicare, and state and federal
unemployment taxes; -

verify citizenship status of workers;

SErve as tH;; fiscal agent of the participant per IRS rules;
“issues reports to BAASDPSQA;

comgnunicate with ecounselors counseling entity’s support coordinator on budget
changes;
¢ inform participants of their individual budget balance.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 19
Revised: January 1, 20132

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

xi. Quality Assurance and Improvement Plan (Continued)

(ualified Providers {continued)
DAASDPSOA is responsible for the following activities:

e monitor the counseling and fiscal providers to ensure comipliance with the spirit of
participant-direction and that appropnate counseling, fiscal and programmatic procedures
are maintained; o

e serve as the liaison between: eounseimg agency, fiscal provider, Medicaid Management
Information System (MMIS), and the Arkansas Medicaid fiscal intermediary;

e monitor the process to reimburse the counselmg agency and fiscal provider for services
provided to pro gram partmpants

Quality assurance measures prewously dlscussed assist PAASDPSOA in discovery and
remediation to assure Iﬂgh stahdards in the offering and management of the participant-
directed personal care program. The IndependentChoices program establishes, as its
foundation, a person-centered approach that guides not only BAASDPSQA, but counseling
and fiscal prewders as well.

xi1 Risk Management

A

The nsk assessment methods used to identify potential risks to participants are described below:

The HCBS RN or the eeuﬂsebf counseling entity’s support coordinator is the catalyst for

identifying potentlal risks. In-home visits by either party help to identify risks involved in the current

home environment as well as potential risks involved with self-direction. The eeunselor counseling
entity’s support coordinator or the HCBS RN can identify risks that may be environmental in

“nature such as throw rugs, uneven floors, etc. or the BMS-DHS-approved assessment tool may

identify potential risks such as not receiving a flu vaccine, etc. Based on the HCBS RN’s observation
and the DMS-DHS-approved assessment tool, the HCBS RN after receiving notification from the
eounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator will discuss the potential risks identified with
the individual. If the HCBS RN determines that a representative is needed, the RN will inform the
eounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator.

When the HCBS RN determines that a person is in need of a representative, the nurse will inform the
counselor counseling entity’s support coordinator and the eeunselor counseling entity’s support
coordinator will work with the participant to determine if there is someone who knows the
participant’s likes, dislikes, and preferences and is willing to accept the responsibilities to represent
the participant in the IndependentChoices program.







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 20
Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved (0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS
1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xii. Risk Management (Continued)
The eounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator is responsible for _workiné &t}ith the
participant to determine who can serve as the representative, The counselor counseling entity’s
support coordinator will then work with the representative to teach, educate and work with the

proposed representative so that the representative is fully awafé"b_;f_,q:_he responsi}éilities they are
accepting in representing a person in a participant-directed program. . -

If the HCBS RN arrives and the participant is experiencing cognitive impairment and no informal
supports are present, the participant will be discouraged from enrolling unless an informal support
system can be identified, including someone {0 act as a representative decision maker. Participation
in IndependentChoices requires the participant or their representative to be assertive in their role as
employer and accept the risks, rights and responsibilities of directing their own care. Ifa
representative is unavailable and the potential erirollee is inicapable of performing these tasks without
health and safety risks the-person will not be enroliéd. Blatant health and welfare concerns will not
be compromised if solutions cannot be identified and enacted.

In addition to the HCBS RN’s ifivolvement there is communication with other agency providers
providing home and community based services, with all parties having a vested interest in the health
and welfare of the participant. This communication assists the operating agency to respond to any
voiced concern with self:directed care:

The Participant Responsibilities and Agreement Form, which details all the requirements of self-
dircetion, identifies areas where the individual may not be able to meet their responsibilities.

B. Thetools or i;_lstrumcrﬂ_:s‘ used to mitigate identified risks are described below.

Every opportunity is afforded a participant to direct their own care, but the participant must accept
and assume employer responsibility. Counseling support is available to help the participant, but
ultimately it is the determination of the participant to succeed that determines whether participant
ditection will be a successful program for them. The IndependentChoices program requires a
participant to make good decisions in order to assure that their personal assistance needs are met,
[ oy e e an o I o a 2 1 = o O3 £ a 16 1tk

Atk =L LEL LS AManng 'a







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 21
| Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024
STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT
State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xii.  Risk Management (Continued)

When a participant needs a representative, the program allows for appomtment of a Deeision-Making
Partner (DMP) who is willing to act and assume the empl@yer role for the patticipant. The ecunseler
counseling entity’s support coordinator is the person respmble for workmg w1th the participant
or the participant’s family in the appointment of eithe it '

Representative or Pdecision-Mmaking Ppartner. Each tlme a Representatwe or DMP is appointed
the enrollment of the DMP is similar to a new participant enrollment. ‘The Reépresentative or DVP
must be at least 18 years of age and able and wﬂlmg to meet the following requirements:

Possess knowledge of the parumpant’s preferences

Be willing to meet and uphold all program Eeqmrcments

Be willing to sign tax form and verlfy tlmesheets J

Show a strong persenai comlmtment tothe partunpant

Visit the participant at least weekly S

Uphold all duties without mﬂuence by the personal assistant or paid back-up worker
Obtain approval from the’ partlclpant and a consensus from other family members of the
participant to serve as the DMP

Be willing to submit to a cr{mlnal background check

) Be avaﬂa?ole to dlSCllSS the program hours

= iei teaid fanage 154 fals artnerOnce the
parﬁcmant has apgomted a Representatlve or DMP there are spec1ﬁc forms that must be
complefed.

| If at any tlme DA:ASDPS! )A learns that the participant’s personal attendant is not providing the care
agreed upon the counselor will contact the participant/representative to ascertain the ability of the
partlmpant/representatlve to fulfill the role of employer. This discussion is to seck what types of
assistance or support the participant or representative may need. A review of recurring instances of
noncompliance could be reason for involuntary disenrollment.

When persons affiliated with the IndependentChoices program suspect abuse or neglect causing
potential for health and safety risk to the participant by the representative, family members, personal
attendant, or others, the participant will be referred to Adult Protective Services.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 22
| Revised: January 1, 20139

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)
xii.  Risk Management (Continued)

C.  The State’s process for ensuring that each service plan rgﬂé;i_ts the risks that‘ail,;_individﬁél is willing
and able to assume, and the plan for how identified risks will be mitigated, is described below.

The service plan is a result of the assessment and will list any risks‘identified in the assessment and
identify cautionary measures in relation to pergonal assistance needs with ADLs and IADLs. The
service plan will identify any other risks identified through observation that were not identified
through the assessment, or risks identified by the participant, representative or interested parties
through a participant-centered approac‘h;x;il“he HCBS RN makes the esunseler counseling entity’s
support coordinator aware of these concerns requiring a plan or actions needed to mitigate the risks
and who is responsible for each action. Thé service plan requires the signature of the participant/
representative. A -

D. The State’s process for ensuring thai the risk management plan is the result of discussion and
negotiation among the persons designated by the State to develop the service plan, the participant, the
participant’s representative, if any, and others from whom the participant may seek guidance, is
described below. ‘

| HCBS RN’s and’sousiselors. counseling entity’s support coordinators are trained to apply a
participant-centered approach in developing all plans with the participant. Participants are always
encouraged to invite friends and family members who have a personal commitment to the participant
but aré not acting as an employee to be present in all meetings or communications between the

| participant and nurse or esuaselor counseling entity’s support coordinator. Identified risks will be
discussed with the participant/representative and interested parties to determine a plan to mitigate the

| risk. The ecunsélor counseling entity’s support coordinator facilitates and guides the discussion
and identifies concerns with any discussed approaches to mitigation of risk.







Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 25

Revised: April1;-2008January 1. 2019
OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS

1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

xii.  Risk Management (Continued)

C.

The State’s process for ensuring that each service plan reﬂécts_ the risks that an individﬁal is willing
and able to assume, and the plan for how identified risks will be mitigated, is described below.

The service plan is a result of the MDS—I;IG—aﬂe!%er-Indepel_ldent'KS‘se_ssment and DMS-613a form
designated by DHS and will list the risks identified in the assessment: “Additionally,each-completed
DS HC identifie ient-Assessment Protocels{CAPRs)-and-Trigpe

R 3
. a --. .
A

¥ 3 1
- F - -

willbe-apart-of the QA-process-to-assure-health-and satety- The service plan will also require the
nurse to list any other risks identified through observation that was not identified through the MBS-
HC andlorIndependent Assessment or DMS-618 forim designated by DHS, or risks identified by
the participant, representative or interested parties through a participant-centered approach. The
service plan will identify the plan or actions needed to mitigate the risks and who is responsible for
each action. The service plan requires the signature of the participant/representative, agreeing to the
service plan and what the participant/representative is willing to do to mitigate risk.

Ao .

The State’s process for ensuring that the risk management plan is the result of discussion and
negotiation among the persons designated by the State to develop the service plan, the participant, the
participant’s representative, if any, and others from whom the participant may seek guidance, is
described below. T

Indépez;lgientChoices' nurses and esunselors-counseling entity’s support coordinator are trained to
apply a 'parﬁcipant-cenﬁered approach in developing all plans with the participant. Participants are
always encoutaged to invite friends and family members who have a personal commitment fo the

participant to be present in all meetings between the participant and nurse or eeuaseler counseling

entity’s support.coordinator. Identified risks will be discussed with the participant/representative
and interested parties to determine a plan to mitigate the risk. The nurse and ecunselor counseling

entity’s support coordinator are there to facilitate and guide the discussion and identify concerns

with any discussed approaches to mitigation of risk.

xiii. Qualifications of Providers of Personal Assistance

A,

B.

The State elects to permit participants to hire legally liable relatives, as paid providers of the
personal assistance services identified in the service plan and budget.

X__ The State elects not to permit participants to hire legally liable relatives, as paid providers of
the personal assistance services identified in the service plan and budget.






Supplement 4 to Attachment 3.1-A
Page 26
Revised: April-1;2008January 1, 2019

OMB Approved 0938-1024

STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT

State: ARKANSAS
1915(j) Self-Directed Personal Assistance Services (Continued)

xiv. Use of Representative

A. X The State elects to permit participants to appoint a representative to direct the f)foxrision of
self-directed personal assistance services on their behalf. ;

i. X The State elects to include, as a.type of represenfative, a State_:—inandéted
representative. Please indicate the criteria to be applied. =

If the participant has been diagnosed with a mental or cognitively impaired condition
such as mental retardation; dementia, Alzheimer, etc., the participant will be required
to choose a representative in order to participate or continue to participate in
IndependentChoices. If the participant has 1ot been diagnosed with a mental
condition, but the BAASDPSQA RN and counseling staff determines through the Self-
Asscssment instrument, discussions. with the participant, and sometimes a trial period
of self-direction with enhanced counseling, that the individual’s cognitive abilities are
not sufficient to self-direet, the participant will be required to choose a representative.
The counseling staff will work with the participant to establish a representative, using
all avenues to find 6ne if necessary. If the participant refuses to select a representative
or the participant cannot find anyone who can act in that capacity after all avenues
have beén exhausted, the eounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator will
coordinate with the participant to transition the participant to the traditional personal
care provider of choice.

B. The State eledts not to permit participants to appoint a representative to direct the provision of
self-directed personal assistance services on their behalf.

xv. Permissible Purchases

A. X The State elects to permit participants to use their service budgets to pay for items that
increase a participant’s independence or substitute for a participant’s dependence on human
assistance.

B. The State elects not to permit participants to use their service budgets to pay for items that

increase a participant’s independence or substitute for a participant’s dependence on human
assistance.






IndependentChoices Section |l

SECTION Il - INDEPENDENTCHOICES
CONTENTS

200.000 INDEPENDENTCHOICES GENERAL INFORMATION

200.100 IndependentChoices

200.200  Eligibility

202.000 Participation Requirements

202.100 Participants

202.200 Decision-Making-Partner Representative(s)

202.300  Enrollment

202.400 Current Medicaid Clients Not Receiving Personal Care
202.500 Perscnal Assistance Services Plan

202.600 Cash Expenditure Plan

202.700 Savings Accounts

202.800 Participant/Personal-Assistant Caregiver Agreements
202.900 Back-up Plans

203.000  Electronic Signatures

220.000 COVERED SERVICES R E C E V E D

220100 Cash Allowance

220.200 Personal Assistance (Caregiver) Services ; ¢
220.205 Personal Care NOV 15 2018
220.210  Personal Care/Hospice Policy Clarification

220.300 Attendant Care Services BUREAU OF
220.400 Exclusions from Coverage and Reimbursement LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH
230.000 BENEFIT LIMITS AND DURATION OF SERVICES

230.100 Benefit Limits

231.000 Loss of Medicaid Eligibility

231.100 Loss of Medical Eligibility for Personal Assistant Services
231.200 Temporary Absences from the Home or Workplace
231.300 Hospitalization

231.400 Long-Term Care Placement

231.500 Voluntary Disenrollment

231600 Involuntary Disenrollment

250.000 COMPLAINTS/GRIEVANCES AND APPEALS

250.100 Complaints/Grievances
250.2400 Appeal Rights
250.2300 Reason for Appeal

22D
250400 Administrative Review and Appeal of Involuntary Disenrollment
260.000 REIMBURSEMENT

260.100  Fiscal Support Services
260.200 Method of Reimbursement

260.400 CONTRACTED SERVICES

260.410 DBAAS DPSQA Responsibilities
260.420 Employer Authority

260.430 Counseling

260.440 Financial Management Services (FMS)

200.000 INDEPENDENTCHOICES GENERAL INFORMATION

200.100 IndependentChoices 1-1-16

Section li-1



IndependentChoices Section Il

The IndependentChoices program is a state plan servnce under 1915(j) of the Somal Security
Act. IndependentChoices is operated by the

Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) with support from the Division of
Aging, Adult, and Behavioral Services (DAABHS). The program offers Medicaid-eligible
individuals who are elderly and individuals with disabilities an opportunity to self-direct their
personal assistant services.

IndependentChoices seeks to increase the opportunity for consumer direction and control for
Medicaid beneficiaries receiving or needing personal assistant services. Personal Assistant
services in IndependentChoices include state plan personal care for Medicaid beneficiaries and
attendant care services for ARChoices beneficiaries in Homecare (ARChoices) beneficiaries.
IndependentChoices offers an allowance and counseling services in place of traditional agency-
provided personal assistance services and items related to personal assistance needs

The participant or designee is the employer and accepts the responsibility in directing the work of
their employee to the degree necessary to meet their individual needs for assistance with
activities of daily living and instrumental activities of daily living.

If the participant needs someone to hire and supervise the personal assistant, make decisions
about care and administer the cash expenditure plan as well as complete ali forms, a Decision-

Making-Rartner Representative wili may be appointed.

IndependentChoices participants or their Decision-Making-Partner Representative must be able
to assume the responsibilities of becoming an employer by hiring, training, supervising and firing
if necessary their directly hired workers. In doing so the program participant accepts the risks,
rights and responsibilities of directing their care and having their health care needs met.

The IndependentChoices program respects the employer authority of the participant who
chooses to direct his or her care by hiring an employee who will be trained by the employer or
Desision-MakingPartner (the participant or Representative) to provide assistance how, when,
and where the employer determines will best meet the participant's individual needs. The
Medicaid beneficiary assumes the risks, rights and responsibilities of having their health care
needs met in doing so.

NOTE: The IndependentChoices Program follows the rules and regulations of the State
Plan approved Personal Care Program, unless stated otherwise in this manual.

200.200 Eligibility 1-1-16
To be eligible for IndependentChoices, a participant must:

A, Be 18 years of age or older

B.  Be eligible for Medicaid, as determined by the DHS Division of County Operations, in a
category that covers personal care, or be eligible for Suppiemental Security Income (SSI)
through the Social Security Administration, or be eligible for ARChoices and determined in
need of attendant care services or personal care by the DAASDHS Registered Nurse (RN).

C.  Bereceiving personal assistance services or he medically eligible to receive personal
assistance services. Personal assistance services include state plan personal care and
ARChoices attendant care services.

1. Personal Care: In determining eligibility and leve! of need for personal care,
IndependentChoices follows policy found in the Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care
Frovider Manual.

Section 1I-2



IndependentChoices Section Il

2.  Attendant Care: The BAASDHS RN must determine and authorize attendant
care services based on ARChoices policy.

D.  Not be living in a home or property owned, operated or controlled by a provider of services
unless the provider is related by blood or marriage to the participant. This includes single
family homes, group homes, adult family homes, congregate settings, a living situation
sponsored or staffed by an agency provider, etc.

E. Be willing to participate in IndependentChoices and understand the rights, risks and
responsibilities of managing his or her own care with an allowance; or, if unable to make
decisions independently, have a willing representative-decision-maker Representative who
understands the rights, risks and responsibilities of managing the care of the participant
with an allowance.

202.100 Participants 11-1-09

Individuals meeting participant eligibility requirements may enroll in the program. Personal
contact will be made by telephone and in person to determine the individual’s ability to
understand the requirements for directing his or her own personal assistance services.
Individuals who are not comfortable with this responsibility or who are determined to be unable to
understand this responsibility will be asked to identify a Decision-Making-Partner Representative.
Individuals who are unable to understand the risks, rights and responsibilities of managing
personal assistance services with an allowance and who do not have anyone to serve as a

Declsion-Making-Parrer Representative will be discouraged from participating in
IndependentChoices.

If the individual has a mental or cognitive limitation that restricts him or her from voicing his or
her preferences and self-directing his or her care, the individual will not be able to participate in
IndependentChoices without a Pesision-Making-Partrer Representative. Individuals able to
voice their preferences and self-direct their care, but having limitations that hinder their ability to
keep up W|th the paperwork involved, such as sngnmg tlmesheets etc., may designatea

F F diresck If at any tlme the md:wdual s
health and safety is jeopardlzed because of the mablllty to self-direct his or her care and there is
no Becisien-Making-Parner Representative available, the individual will be disenrolled from
IndependentChoices.

202.200 Decision-Making-Partners Representative(s) 11-1-09

A BPecision-MakingPartrer Representative will be required if the individual interested in
participating has a court-appointed legal guardian, other appointed representative, i.e., power of

attorney, or an established payee of income. A Desicien-MakingPartner Representatlve will
also be required for any potential enrollee or participant who is:

A.  Unable to understand his or her own care needs
Unable to make decisions about his or her care
Unable to organize his or her life style and environment by making these choices

Unable to understand how to recruit, hire, train and supervise personal assistants

m o O @

Unable to understand the impact of his or her decisions and assume responsibility for the
results

Section lI-3



IndependentChoices Section I

F.  Noncompliant with project objectives when circumstances indicate a change of
competency or ability to self direct

The enrollee, counseling staff, or a representative of the fiscal agency may request a Decision-

Making-Rartner Representative. A Decision-Making-Rariner Representative may be a legal
guardian, other legally appointed Decision-Making-Partner Representative, an income payee,
family member, or friend. The Besisisn-MakingParner Representative may not be paid for this
service and may not be an employee of the participant. A Becision-Making-Parner
Representative must be at least 18 years of age and demonsirate a strong persenal commitment
to the participant and be knowledgeable of the participant's preferences. The individual chosen
as Decision-Making-Partner Representative must be willing and capable of complying with all
program cntena and respon3|b|I|t|es Eaeh—Deesten—Mal«ng—PaFtneF wﬂl—be—pequwed—te—eemplete

.....

202.300 Enrollment 1-1-18

The Division-of-Aging-and-Adult-Services-{BAAS} Division of Aging, Adult, Behavioral Services
{DAABHS) is the point of entry for ARChoices waiver participants who choose self-direction via
all-enroliment-activity for the IndependentChoices program. The counseling entity is the point of
entry for Personal Care participants who choose self-direction. The IndependentChoices
program is limited based on an approved number through the Medicaid State Plan.

The individual or their designee will first call
682-0044-or the Counseling Entity’s toll-free number at 866 710 0456. Informatlon about the
program is provided to the individual and verification made that the individual is currently enrolled
in a Medicaid category that covers perscnal assistance services. If the individual is currently
enrolled in an appropriate Medicaid category and has an assessed physical dependency need
for "hands on” assistance with personal care needs, BAAS DPSQA will enter the participant's
information into a BAAS DPSQA database. If the individual is not currently enrolled in an
appropriate Medicaid category, the individual will be referred to the DHS County Office for
eligibility determination.

The counseling entity’s support coordinators BHS-rurse and fiscal agent will then work with the
individual to complete the enroliment forms either by mail and {elephone contact or by a face-to-
face meeting. The individual will be provided with a program manual, which explains the
individual's responsibilities regarding enroliment and continuing participation. The individual
must complete the forms in the Enrollment Packet, which consists of the Participant
Responsibilities and Agreement, the Backup Personal Assistant (Caregiver) and the
Authorization to Disclose Health Information. The individual must alsc complete the forms in the
Empioyer Packet, which includes the Limited Power of Attorney, IRS and direct deposit forms
related to being a household employer. Each caregiver/employee persenal-assistart-must
complete the forms in the Employee Packet which include the standard tax withholding forms
normally completed by an employee, the Employment Eligibility Verification Form (1-9), a
Participant/Rerscnal-AssistantCaregiver Agreement, Employment Application,and, a
ProviderCaregiver/Employee Agreement, as well as documents pertinent to a criminal
background check including maltreatment registry requests and a consent form to release results
of a criminal history report from the Arkansas Crime Information Center (Arkansas State Police).
Each packet includes step-by-step instructions on how to complete the above forms. Assistance

is available to the individual, Pesisicn-MakingPariner/Communications Manager Representative

and the personal assistant to help complete the forms and answer any questions.

As part of the enrollment process, the DMS Rl DHS Independent Assessment contractor will

and—p;eiesamqal-judgment—DHS professmnal staff or contractor(s) de5|gnated by DHS WI|| use
the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards to determine the level of medical necessity.

Section lI-4



IndependentChoices Section |l

This determination creates the budget for self-directed services. Eligibility for personal care
services is based on the same criteria as state plan personal care services.

NOTE: For ARChoices beneficiaries, the BAASDHS RN will determine the need for personal
care and attendant care hours needed using the Task and Hour Standards, subject to the
beneficiary's ARChoices Individual Services Budget. The ARChoices plan-of-care person-
centered service plan will reﬂect that the beneflmary chooses IndependentChmces as the
prowder !

Rsetor the counseling entity’s

support coordrnators and the flscal agent WI|| process aII of the completed enroliment forms. The
assessment is sent to DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS for
authorization if the beneficiary is not authorized for services through a waiver plan-efcare
person-centered service plan for ARChoices. State and IRS tax forms will be retained by the
fiscal agent. Disbursement of funds to a beneficiary or their employee will not occur until all
required forms are accurately completed and in the possession of the fiscal agent,

- For benef iciaries under age
21 aII personal care hours must be authorlzed through the de5|gnated DHS contractor

IndependentChoices follows the rules and regulations found in the Arkansas Medicaid Personal
Care Provider Manual in determining and authorizing personal care hours. For beneficiaries
receiving services through the ARChoices waiver program, the signature of the DAASDHS RN is
sufficient to authorize personal care services. After the service pian is authorized, the actual day
services begin is dependent upon all of the following conditions:

A BAASDAABHS issues a seven-day notice to discontinue service to any agency personal
care, ARChoices provider currently providing services to the individual.

8. The date the participant/employer’s caregiver/employee is able to begin providing the
necessary care. It can be no earlier than the date DHS professional staff or contractor(s)
designated by DHS authorized the service plan for the non-waiver eligibie participant, if an
agency provider is not providing the personal care services.

C. The fiscal agent is in possession of all required employer and employee documents.

If the beneficiary is not also a beneficiary of ARChoices services, then continuation of personal
assistance services requires reauthorization prior to the end of the current service plan end date.

When-the-approval-by-Utilization Review isreceived-or the-benefisianrneeds14-75- hoursor
less-perwaek:-the The counseling entity’s support coordinator will contact the beneficiary-or
Deemen—Malqng-PaFtne#Gomnumcahe%-Mange; partlmpantlemployer to develop the cash

expenditure plan.

Ser\nces may not commence prior to the date
authorized by DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS.

202.600 Cash Expenditure Plan 1-1-13

The amount of the Cash Expenditure Plan (CEP) is determined by DHS professional staff or
contractor(s) designated by DHS using the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards to

determine the level of medical necessity. the-assessmeniperformed by the DAAS RN- For

Section lI-5




IndependentChoices Section II

ARChoices beneficianes, the CEP is subject fo the bkeneficiary's ARChoices Individual Services
Budget. The esunselor counseling entity’s support coordinator and the participant/employer or
Besision-Making-Rarrer Representative will work together to develop the CEP, which may be
updated and revised whenever a need arises. The CEP is intended to be a blueprint of how the
monthly allowance may he spent to meet the needs identified in the service plan. The CEP may
include ten percent of the amount of the participant’s plan as a discretionary expenditure not to
exceed $75.00. The discretionary expenditure is used to purchase personal hygiene items and
does not require the participant to maintain receipts for the purchases. For reporting purposes,
discretionary purchases wili be self-declared by the participant and will be part of the quarterly
reporting requirement performed by the fiscal agent.

202.800 Participant/Personal - Assistant Caregiver Agreements 1-1-15

The fiscal agent is responsible for obtaining the Worker Information and Qualification Form
PameapanfeﬁPerenal-Assastant—Ag;eemem—feFm-DA%J— The purpose of this form the

is to state the agreements to which
both the employer and the employee(s) are in agreement. The agreement is signed by both the

beneficiary or Desisien-Making-Parther Representative and the employee.

202.900 Back-up Plans 1-1-15

Having a back-up worker is required for participation in IndependeniChoices. The counseler

counseling entity will assist the Medicaid-beneficiaryas-the-employer participant/employer or
Decision-Making-Parner Representative as the employer in developing a back-up plan to outline
how the beneficiarys participant's needs will be met should the assistant caregiver/femployee be

absent from the home for any reason. The back-up plan must identify caregivers—eitherformalor

! GeRs ces a back-up caregiver. This back-up
careglver wnII need to enroII asa careglver for the IndependentChcuces program. The back-up
plan may also identify an informal back-up caregiver.

220.100 Cash Allowance 1-1-16

Section lI-6



IndependentChoices Section |l

£ ¢ ication Devi

S Discreti  ashused I L hvaione]

A. Purpose of Cash Allowance: The cash allowance allows the IndependentChoices participant
to directly purchase personal assistance services and certain other goods and services that
lessen the need for Medicaid-funded human assistance while increasing the participant's
ability to maintain independence in the community. The cash allowance is primarily used to
pay the salary or wages of the participant’'s employee. The other goods and services for
which the cash allowance may be used to purchase are not widely used but in some cases
may help further support a beneficiary’s independence and need for paid personal
assistance.

B. Permissible Uses of Cash Allowance: An IndependentChoices participant's cash allowance
may only be used for the following expenses if consistent with the individual's approved
patient-centered service plan and service budget:

1.

Self-directed Personal Assistance Services: Salary or wages of self-hired personal
assistant(s) to provide self-directed Personal Assistance Services, in lieu of State Plan
personal care services and ARChoices attendant care services. Such Personal
Assistance Services are covered for medically necessary human assistance with specific
activities of daily living (ADL) tasks, instrumental activities of daily living (IADL) tasks,
and health-related tasks to the extent covered under either the State Plan personal care
services benefit or the ARChoices attendant care services benefit {if the individual is a
ARChoices waiver participant). The ADL, IADL, and health-related tasks supported must
also be consistent with the individual's assessed needs.

Backup and Respite Personal Assistance: Purchasing Personal Assistance Services
from a licensed home health agency or a licensed personal care agency to supplement
or back up self-hired personal assistants or to provide respite care to relieve unpaid
caregivers.

Technology for Safety, Communication, and Independence: Purchase or rental of
adaptive technology used to assist the beneficiary with completing activities of daily
living, communicating with others, and residing safely and independently at home (i.e.,
augmentative and alternative communication devices, assistive listening or reading
devices, captioned telephones, other sensory adaptive equipment, visual or audible

Section II-7



IndependentChoices Section Il

alerting devices, and personal computer with accessibility technology and
accommodations for the individual's physical or sensory limitations).

4. Service Animal: Purchase and maintenance of a service animal. This includes
necessary food, veterinarian services, deg license, handling material {coliar, harness,
and leash), and training of beneficiary in proper care and handling of the service animal.
“Service animal” is as defined under federal Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
regulations at 28 CFR 35.104,

5. Cost of a complete naticnal fingerprint-based criminal background check on a self-hired
personal assistant(s).

6. Discretionary Cash used to purchase personal hygiene items for the beneficiary.

7. With the prior written approval by the Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance (DPSQA) director (or his/her designee):

(a) Environmental Accessibility Adaptations; The purchase and installation of interior or
exterior physical adaptations to the beneficiary's home necessary to ensure their
health and safety, decrease the need for paid and unpaid human assistance, and
enable the individual to function with greater independence in the community. Such
adaptations must provide direct medical or remedial benefit to the beneficiary due to
a disability(ies) and functional limitation(s). The ARChoices waiver provides similar
coverage for Environmental Accessibility Adaptations. For ARChoices waiver
participants, the Environmental Accessibility Adaptations available under
IndependentChoices, ARChoices, or the two benefits in combination may not be
used to provide Environmental Accessibility Adaptations in excess, duplication, or
circumvention of what may be covered and reimbursed through IndependentChoices
or ARChoices separately.

(b) Emergency Goods and Services: On a time-limited basis, the following goods and
services in the event of a documented emergency representing a risk to the
beneficiary’s health and welfare: food and clothing; housing for beneficiary (and their
service animal, if any); household utilities (i.e., electricity, water, heating fuel, and
telephone); and pest control.

(c) Other goods and services on a case-by-case basis provided DPSQA determines
such purchases (1) will likely increase the participant's independence and reduce the
need for Medicaid-funded paid human assistance, (2) can be economically
purchased and reliably provided, (3) will not result in funds in the individual's
IndependentChoices budget being insufficient to meet the participant’s needs, (4) are
consistent with the participant's assessed needs, and (5) are consistent with the
participant’s person-centered service plan and self-directed services budget.

220.200 Personal Assistance (Caregiver) Services 1115

AssistantsCaregivers/employees will be recruited, interviewed, hired and managed by the
Medicaid-beneficiaryparticipant as the employer or a demgnated

Representative. Family members, other than those with legal responsibility to the beneficiary,
may serve as personal assistants. A court appointed legal guardian, spouse, power of attorney
or income payee may not serve as a Rersonal-Assistanicaregiver/employee.

The beneficiarysparticipant/femployer's personal-assistantcaregiver/employee performs the
services under the agreed upon terms of the Worker Information and Qualification Form and the
Employer Responsibilities and Attestation Form-BAASIC47 IndependentChoises
ParicipariPersopaltesisieni-Agreament

Section 1I-8



IndependentChoices Section I

220.205 Personal Care 7-1-15

The Arkansas Medicaid program covers up to 14.75 hours per week (64 hours per calendar
month) of State Plan Personal Care Services for participants aged 21 and older assessed as
needing personal care. The hour limit does not apply to beneficiaries under age 21. Fer

- & -Ya atBTalal Y=

o at= P

care is allowed in the home and outside the home, such as in the workplace.
IndependentChoices follows the policy in the Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care Provider Manual
in determining eligibility and the level of assistance of personal care needed by the
IndependentChoices participant. Participants needing personal care in the workplace must meet
the requirements found at 213.540 of the Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care Provider Manual.

220.210 Personal Care/Hospice Policy Clarification 1-1-16

Medicaid beneficiaries are allowed to receive Medicaid personal care services, in addition to
hospice aide services, if the personal care services are unrelated to the terminal conditicn or the
hospice provider is using the personal care services to supplement the hospice aide and
attendant care services.

A. The hospice provider is responsible for assessing the patient's hospice-related needs and
developing the hospice plan of care to meet those needs, implementing all interventions
described in the plan of care, and developing and maintaining a system of communication
and integration fo provide for an ongoing sharing of information with other non-hospice
healthcare providers furnishing services unrelated to the terminal illness and related
conditions. The hospice provider coordinates the hospice aide with the services furnished
under the Medicaid personal care program to ensure that patients receive all the services
that they require. Coordination occurs through contact with beneficiaries or in-home
providers.

B. The hospice aide services are not meant to be a daily service, nor 24-hour daily services,
and are not expected to fulfill the caregiver role for the patient. The hospice provider can
use the services furnished by the Medicaid personal care program to the extent that the
hospice would routinely use the services of a hospice patient's family in implementing a
patient's plan of care. The hospice provider is only responsible for the hospice aide and
attendant care services necessary for the treatment of the terminai condition.

C. Medicaid payments for personal care services provided to an individual also receiving
hospice services, regardless of the payment source for hospice services, must be
supported by documentation in the individual's personal care medical chart or the
IndependentChoices Cash Expenditure Plan. Documentation must support the policy
described above in this section of the Personal Care provider manual.

NOTE: Based on audit findings, it is imperative that required documentation be recorded
by the hospice provider and available in the hospice record. Documentation must
substantiate all services provided. It is the hospice provider’s responsibility to
coordinate care and assure there is no duplication of services. While hospice
care and personal care services are not mutually exclusive, documentation must
support the inclusion of both services and the corresponding amounts on the
care plan. To avoid duplication and to support hospice care in the home that
provides the amount of services required fo meet the needs of the beneficiary, the

Section II-9



IndependentChoices Section Il

amount of personal care services needed beyond the care provided by the
hospice agency must meet the criteria detailed in this section. Most often, if
personal care services are in piace prior to hospice services starting, the amount
of personal care services will be reduced to avoid any duplication. If those
services are not reduced or discontinued, documentation in the hospice and
personal care records must explain the need for both and be supported by the
policy in this section.

220.300 Attendant Care Services 1-1-16

In-home services are designed to reduce or prevent inappropriate institutionalization by
maintaining, strengthening or restoring an eligible participant’s function in his or her own home.
IndependentChoices allows ARChoices participants the choice of se!f-directed attendant care
services rather than receiving attendant care services through a certified agency.

The BAASDHS RN will determine the number of hours of attendant care services needed by the
participant, using the Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards, as indicated on the
ARChoices Plan-6f-Gare person-centered service plan. If the participant chooses to self-direct
attendant care services, the DAASDHS RN will refer the participant to the IndependentChoices
program by sending the plar-efsare person-centered service plan to IndependentChoices,
notating that IndependentChoices was selected.

220.400 Exclusions from Coverage and Reimbursement

A. Goods and services of any kind are not available (not covered and not reimbursable)
under IndependentChoices, including through the use of the cash allowance, when and
to the extent any of the following may apply:

1. When available to the participant from another source, including without limitation
family members, a member of the participant’s household, or other unpaid
caregivers; a Medicaid State Plan covered service; the Medicare program (Medicare
Part A, Part B, or Part D); the participant's Medicare Advantage plan (including
targeted or other supplemental benefits offered by the plan); the participant's
Medicare prescription drug plan; and private medical, long-term care, disability, or
supplemental insurance coverage. This includes reasonably comparable or
substitute goods and services;

2. When not for the sole benefit of the participant or the maintenance of the
participant’s service animal;

3. When provided contrary to any Arkansas scope of practice laws and regulations
pertaining to nurses, physicians, skilled therapists, pharmacists, or other licensed
professionals;

4. When goods and services of any kind are acquired or received for re-sale, or
otherwise re-sold or gifted, whether for cash, barter or in-kind trade, or other
compensation or consideration, and regardless who may benefit; and

5. When goods and services of any kind are acquired or received to substitute, or
otherwise replace, other goods or services sold, traded, or gifted or intended to be
sold, traded, or gifted.

B. In addition, the following types of goods and services are not available (not covered and
not reimbursable) under independentChoices, including through the use of the cash
allowance:

Section 1110



IndependentChoices Section I

10.

11.

12.

. Alcohaolic beverages of any kind, inciuding distilled spirits, wine, malt beverages, and

alcoholic soft drinks;
Tobacco products of any kind;
Medical marijuana;

Any controlled substance listed under 21 CFR Part 1308 or any controlled substance
analogue as defined under 21 USC § 802(32)(A);

Prescription drugs, non-prescription (over-the-counter) drugs, vitamins, minerals, or
other dietary supplements;

lllegal goods and services of any kind;

Medical, skilled nursing, pharmacy, skilled therapy services, medical social services,
or medical technician services of any kind, including without limitation aseptic or
sterile procedures; application of dressings; medication administration; injections;
observation and assessment of health conditions; insertion, removal, or irrigation of
catheters; tube or other enteral feedings; tracheostomy care; oxygen administration;
ventilator care; drawing blood; and care and maintenance of any medical equipment;

Services within the scopes of practice of licensed cosmetologists, manicurists,
electrologists, or aestheticians, except for necessary assistance with personal
hygiene and basic grooming;

Services provided for or goods used by any person other than the participant,
including without limitation a provider, family member, household resident, or
neighbor;

Companion, socialization, entertainment, or recreational services or activities of any
kind, including without limitation game playing, television watching, arts and crafts,
hobbies, and other activities pursued for pleasure, relaxation, or fellowship;

Cleaning of any spaces of a home or place of residence (including without limitation
kitchen, bathroom, living room, dining room, family room, and utility or storage
rooms, and the floors, furnishings, and appliances therein) shared by the participant
with one or more adults who are, together or separately, physically able to perform
housekeeping of these areas; and

Habilitation services, including without limitation assistance in acquiring, retaining, or
improving self-help, socialization, and/or adaptive skills.

230.000 BENEFIT LIMITS AND DURATION OF SERVICES

230.100

Benefit Limits 11-1-09

Benefits are limited by the amount of the participant’s allowance. Each individual participant has
a maximum allowance based on his or her |nd|V|duaI ser\nce plan The DIVISIOI’] of Provider

Services and Quality Assurance Aging—Add

will authorize the allowancethFeug#ala—ehgmm%y-sereen—en—the-MMS Payment is made

Section lI-11



IndependentChoices Section |l

prospectively by the Medicaid fiscal intermediary. The participant’s aliowance will be issued
monthly directly from the Medicaid fiscal intermediary to the IndependentChoices fiscal agent as
iong as the individual remains Medicaid eligible and the individual is not receiving hospice or
nursing facility services. The IndependentChoices fiscal agent will disburse the cash allowance
in accordance with the approved cash expenditure plan and timesheets completed by the
participant or Decision-Making-Rartrer Representative and signed by the personal attendant
twice monthly in equal intervals.

231.000 Loss of Medicaid Eligibility 4-1-08

Participants must remain Medicaid eligible to continue participation in independentChoices.
Participants will be advised to report any changes in the amount of household income or
resources to the DHS county office. The-DAAS-DPSQA will notify the counseling entity, fiscal
agent, and DHS RNs provide-weekly reporis-to-contractors—saunselers-and-nurses informing
them of participants who have lost Medicaid eligibility. IndependentChoices staff will then take
action to close the IndependentChoices case within the MMIS. Internal edits within the MMIS
system prevent the Medicaid fiscal agent from adjudicating a claim for any person not Medicaid
eligible on the date(s) of service.

231.100 Loss of Medical Eligibility for Personal Assistant Services 11-1-09

If at any time the IndependentChoices nurse determines that personal assistance services are
not necessary for an IndependentChoices participant, the participant’s IndependentChoices case
will be closed afier a 10-day notice and DAASDPSQA staff will terminate the eligibility.

231.300 Hospitalization 1-1-13

An IndependentChoices participant’s aliowance paid prospectively during hospitalization must be
returned to the Medicaid Program. The day of admission and day of discharge are ailowable
days when the participant receives personal assistance services prior to admission or after
discharge from the hospital. The participant is instructed to provide supporting hospital
documentation to the counseling entity’s support cocrdinators and the theirssunselorand
Financial Management-Services-providerfiscal agent to support receipt of personal assistance
services on the day of admission. The fiscal agent BAAS Finansial-Management Service will be

responsible for calculating and collecting the refund.

231.400 Long-Term Care Placement 4-1-08

If at any time a participant requires placement in a long-term care facility, BAAS-the DHS RN
and IndependentChoices program specialist must be notified immediately by the counseler
counseling entity’'s support coordinators or fiscal previder agent. The IndependentChoices case
will be closed on the date of prior to entry info te a facility. No monthly allowance is allowed
during the time of institutionalization. The Medicaid fiscal intermediary will not disburse the cash
allowance if Medicaid is currently making payment for long-term care facility services.

231.500 Voluntary Disenrollment 1-1-13

When the participant voluntarily elects to discontinue participation in IndependentChoices, the
counselorDHS professional staff will discuss with the-ndividual-participant or their designated
Representative the reason for disenrollment and assist the participant individuakin resolving any
barriers or problems that may exist in preventing continuation. If the participant wishes to
continue with the option to disenroll, thecounseler DHS staff will assist the participant by
informing him or her of traditionat agency personal care providers in the participant's area. The
counseler DHS staff will assist with the coordination of agency services to the degree requested
by the participant. The participant or their designated Representative may also reach out to the
Aging and Disability Resource Center (866-801-3435) for assistance in identifying available

Section 1112



IndependentChoices Section Il

agency services. If the participant is an ARChoices waiver participant, the DHS RN may be
contacted to assist with transitioning waiver clients to appropriate agency services.

IndependentChoices can continue until agency services are established or the participant may
elect to use informal supports until agency services are established.

231.600

Involuntary Disenroliment 1-1-18

Participants may be disenrolled for the following reasons:

A

Health, Safety and Well-being: At any time that DHS or the counseling entity BAAS
determines that the health, safety and well-being of the participant is compromised by
continued participation in the IndependentChoices Program, the participant may be
returned to the traditional personal care program.

Change in Condition: Should the participant's cognitive ability to direct his or her own
care diminish to a point where he or she can no longer direct his or her own care and there
is no Becision-MakingPartrer Representative available to direct the care, the
IndependentChoices case will be closed. DHS and the counseling entity Fhe-ceunselor
will assist the participant with a referral to traditional services.

Misuse of Allowance: Should a participant or the Besisien-Maldrg-Rarrer
Representative who ts performing all of their payroll functions (and not using the fiscal

agent) use the allowance to purchase items unrelated to personal care needs, fail to pay
the salary of anassistanicaregiver/employee, misrepresent payment of an assistant's
caregiver/employee’s salary, or fail to pay related state and federal payroll taxes, the
participant or Pecision-Making-Parner Representative will receive a warning notice that
such exceptions to the conditions of participation are not allowed. The participant will be
permitied to remain on the program, but will be assigned to the fiscail agentfiseal
irtermediary, who will provide maxirmurm-bookkeeping-services increased oversight
coordinated with the counseling entity’s support coordinators. The participant or Desisien-
Making-RPartner Representative will be notified that further failure to follow the expenditure
plan could result in disenroliment. Should an unapproved expenditure or oversight occur a
second time, the participant or Decision-MakingRParrer Representative will be notified that
the IndependentChoices case is being closed and they are being returned to traditional
personal assistance services. The Office of Medicaid Inspector General is informed of
situations as required. DHS and the counseling entity The—counselor will assist the
participant with transition to traditional services. The preceding rules are also applicable to
participants using the fiscal agent.

Underitilization of Allowance: The fiscal agent is responsible for monitoring the use of
the Medicaid funds received on behalf of the participant. If the participant is underutilizing
the allowance and not using it according to the cash expenditure plan, the fiscal agent will
inform the counseling entitiesentity’s support coordinators and the IndependentChoices
program specialist through quarerly-reperdsweekly and monthly reports on request. The
sounseler counseling entity’s support coordinators will discuss problems that are occurring
with the participant and their support network. The ssounseler counseling entity’s support
coordinators will continue to monitor the participant’s use of their allowance through both
review of reports and personal contact with the participant. If underutilization continues to
occur, future discussions will focus on what is in the best interest of the participant in
meeting their ADL's even if the best solution is a return to agency services. Unused funds
are returned to the Arkansas Medicaid program within 45 days after disenrollment. Funds
accrued in the absence of a savings plan will be returned to Medicaid within a twelve-
month filing deadline. Involuntary disenroliment may be considered if the participant has
been hospitalized for more than 30 days and a discharge date is unknown to the
participant or Besision-Making-Partrer Representative. Participants with approval by DHS
professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS for an out-of-state visit may be
involuntarily disenrolled if their stay extends past the approval period. The participant is

Section 1113



IndependentChoices Section ll

required to provide a copy of authorizations by DHS professional staff or contractor(s)
designated by DHS to their ceunseler support coordinator for monitoring purposes.

E. Failure to Assume Employer Authority. Failure to Assume Employer Authority occurs
when a participant fails to fulfill the role of employer and does not respond to counseling
support. Disenroliment will not occur without guidance and counseling by the-counselor
counseling entity’s support coordinator or by the fiscal intermediarsagent. When this
occurs, the sounselor counseling entity’s support coordinator will coordinate agency
personal care services to the degree requested by the participant. The participant may
wish to self-advocate from a list provided by the DHS or the counseling entity-eeunseler,
ask the—seunselor DHS or the counseling entity to coordinate or may simply wish to
receive personal assistance services informally. The participant’s wishes will be
respected.

Whenever a participant is involuntarily disenrclled, the IndependentChoices program will mail a
notice to close the case. The notice will provide at least 10 days but no more than 30 days
before IndependentChoices will be discontinued, depending on the situation. During the
transition period, the—counselor DHS or the counseling entity will work with the participant or
Representative to provide services to help the individual transition to the most appropriate
services available.

250.000 APPEALS

250100 Complaints/Grievances

Grievances based on dissatisfaction with any service or level of service provided by the counseling
entity’s support coordinators, fiscal agent, or DHS staff may be made in writing to the Division of
Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA), IndependentChoices Program, P.O. Box 1437
Slot S530, Little Rock, AR 72203-1437, or by telephone to IndependentChoices at 1-866-801-
3435.

250,2400 Appeal Rights

IndependentChoices paricipants have the righi to appeal certain decisions or actions with which
they disagree. The method used to make the appeal and the time frames within which an appeal
is made depends on the basis of the appeal. The Division within the Department of Human
Services that will hear the appeal is also based on the reason for the appeal.

Appeals for hearings will ais¢ be handled in several ways based on the reasen the appeal was
made.

250.2300 Reason for Appeal 7115

If the participant loses eligibility for personal assistance services, he or she may ask for an
Administrative Reconsideration according to Section 161.200 of the Medicaid Provider Manual or
may appeal the decision according to Medicaid Provider Manual policy 161.300 through

169.000,

Section II-14



IndependentChoices Section Il

An appeal may be filed by a participant or Decisica-Making-Pardner Representative based on
actions or circumstances listed below:

A. Dissatisfaction with action taken by the counseling eniity's support coordinator fiscal agent

B. Involuntary case terminations including but not limited to:

Loss of Medicaid eligibility

Institutionalization

Dissatisfaction with number of personal care hours
Health, safety or well being of participant is compromised
Duplication of services

S T o

IndependentChoices case closure based on noncompliance with program
requirements

C.  Loss of Medicaid eligibility will result in the closure of the case. Any appeal made by the
participant must be filed with the Office of Appeals and Hearings according to Medicaid
Provider Manual Policy 161.300 through 169.000.

250.400 Administrative Review and Appeal of Involuntary Disenrollment 4-1-08

A participant may request administrative review of the involuntary closure of his/her & case by
rmay-be-appealed-in writing to e i i ;

IndependentChoices-Rrogram~the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance-P.O.
Box 1437, Slot $530, Little Rock, AR 72203-1437 or may be sent by fax (1-501-883-4180).

The participant has thirty (30} days from the date of notification of disenroliment to file an
administrative review of this decision. Administrative Review requests may be mailed or faxed to
DAASDPSQA and must be post marked or received within 30 days of the disenrcliment decision.
All notifications of Involuntary Disenrollment must be made in writing and sent by Certified Mail

Section II-15



IndependentChoices Section Il

with a receipt to assure that the date the notification was received is documented. Requests
received after the 30-day limit will not be reviewed. Reviews will be completed and decisions will
be available within 45 days of the request.

The Administrative Review decision, if unfavorable, may be appealed through the established
DHS Hearings and Appeals policy according to Medicaid Provider Manual Policy 161.300
through 169.000.

When a participant is involuntarily disenrolled from the IndependentChoices program, the
participant may be returned to the traditional personal care program. If the participant appeals
this decision, the participant will continue to receive Medicaid personal care services through a
personal care agency during the time of the appeal.

260.000 REIMBURSEMENT

260.100 Fiscal Support Services 1-1-15

Beneficiaries in IndependentChoices wilt be offered a menthly allowance in lieu of traditional
agency-provided personal assistance services. The intended use of the monthly allowance is to
purchase items or other medically necessary personal assistance services that are allowed. All
payments are by electronic funds transfer (EFT). Use of the monthly allowance is determined by
the beneficiary/representative exercising budget authority outlined on the Cash Expanditure
Plan. Requests to purchase nontraditional or unusual items over $50.00 will require the
approval of the IndependentChoices program specialist. The fiscal agent, or bockkeeper, wili
receive the beneficiary’s cash payment from the Arkansas Medicaid fiscal intermediary. The
Medicaid fiscal intermediary will make monthly prospective payments to the fiscal agent based
on actlve IndependentChmces parhmpants as mdn:ated on the MMIS. DAASisresponsiblefor

Personal assistants will complete their timesheets and obtain the authorizing signature of the
beneficiary. The timesheet will be submitted to the fiscal agent bi-weekly.

The fiscal agent will perform al! payroll functions. This will include preparation and payment
through EFT for assistants and compliance with applicable state and federal employer/fempioyee
laws.

260.410 BAAS DPSQA Responsibilities 4-1-08

IndependentChoices seeks to ensure that providers contracted by DAASDPSQA are competent
and experienced and possess the technical ability to perform all required functions. To assure
this goal is met BAASDPSQA will;

» Competitively procure a providers-and-hire-counselers-counseling entity and fiscal agent

that understand the concepts of independent living and consumer direction and have
experience providing counseling or fiscal services to participants

» Clearly identify performance standards, corrective action plans and consequences for
deviations from the standards

¢ Moenitor performance standards to assure that seunselers-support coordinators and fiscal
agents are providing the service and quality required

» Conduct on-site survey reviews of fiscal agents as needed, but no less than annually

260.420 Employer Authority 1-1-18

The IndependentChoices participant is the employer of record. and as such, hires a Personal
Assistant who meets these requirements:

Section 116



IndependentChoices Section |l

A. Is a US citizen or legal alien with approval to work in the US
Has a valid Social Security number

Signs a Work Agreement with the participant/-Besision-Making-Rartner Representative

Must be able to provide references if requested

m o O W

- o-embiovien AE-eap a¥ =T =

: : inting central reqisiry checks and national and
state criminal background checks in compliance with Ark. Code Ann. §§ 20-33-213 and 20-
38-101 et sea. Criminal backaround checks shall be repeated at least once every five
vears. Central reaistry checks shall include the Child Maltreatment Central Redistry; the
Adult and Long-Term Care Facility Resident Maltreatment Central Reaistry: and the
Certified Nursing Assistant/Emgloyment Clearance Redistry.

Submit to a-erimin

Obtains a Health Services card from the Division of Health if requested

G. May not be an individual who is considered legally responsible for the client, e.g., spouse
or guardian

H.  Must be 18 years of age or older

L. Must be able to perform the essential job functions required

260.430 Counseling 1115

Counseling is provided to beneficiaries statewide through a self-directed service budget (SDSB)
contract. The counseling entity must adhere to performance based contracting standards and
the Scope of Service established by BAASDPSQA in addition to State and Federal
requirements. The support coordinators representing the contract must have a minimum of three
years experience working with the general public with experience in teaching, mentoring or
coaching with outcome based expectations. Examples of potential support coordinators may
include but are not limited to active or retired teachers, public servants, health professionals,
social workers or non-professionals who have exceptional communication skills and pass the
self-directed service budget delivered training offered by the SDEB counseling contractor.

A counseling entity may not provide SDSB enroliment or monitoring activities to a family
member. A family member is defined as an individual currently related to the counselor by virtue
of blood, marriage, adoption or a relative of any degree.

Other job-related education and/or experience may be substituted for all or part of these basic
requirements with approval of BAASDPSQA

The current contract requires the IndependentChoices counseling entity to perform the following:

Enroliment of new beneficiaries

Develop and implement beneficiary directed budget

Coordinate with Financial Management Services (FMS) provider and DMS

Orientation to IndependentChoices and the concept of consumer direction

Skills training on how fo recruit, interview, hire, evaluate, manage or dismiss assistants
Consumer-directed counseling support services

Monitor IndependentChoices participants/-Descisien-Making-Partners Representatives

Monitor over and under expenditures of the Cash Expenditure Plan

I & m m oo W »

Section 117



independentChoices Section Il

l.
J.
K.

260.440

Provide monthly reports to DAASDPSQA
Use RNs to assess functional need for personal care

Inform BAASDPSQA of beneficiaries’ readiness to begin self-direction and when
disenrollment occurs

Financial Management Services (FMS) 1-1-15

Financial management services (FMS) will be participant-directed and provided by the
IndependentChoices fiscal agent. The FMS contractor must adhere to performance based
contracting standards and the Scope of Service established by DMS in addition to State and
Federal requirements. f FMS is provided by a Certified Public Accountant (CPA), the CPA must
be licensed in the State of Arkansas. Subcontracts with FMS direct-service providers must be
approved by BAASDPSQA. The entity providing the direct FMS service must have an IRS FEIN
(Federal Employer Identification Number) dedicated to fiscal agency services. The entity
providing this service must have at least 3 years experience providing fiscal employer agency
work to individuals with physical disabilities in Arkansas.

The FMS will provide the following supports and services:

A
B.

Collect and process timesheets of support workers

Process payroll, withholding, filing and payment of applicable federal, state and iocai
employment-related taxes and insurance

Prepare and disburse IRS Forms W-2 and W-3 annually

Receive and disburse funds for payment of participant-directed services under an
agreement with Medicaid and the Medicaid fiscal intermediary

Assuie that ali expenditures match the written budget

The current contract with the FMS requires the following:

1. Creation of systematic processes, internal controls, policies and procedures to
comply with FMS requirements

2. Receiving and reviewing ail necessary Federal and State forms required for enrolling
the participant to be a "Household Employer,” as weli as New Hire Packets from the
enrolling participant's caregiver/employee

3. Obtaining individual FEIN number enabling FMS provider to act as a Household
Employer Agent

Communicating and assisting participants in the completion of these forms if needed
Resending and monitoring receipt of forms as needed

Accepting the participant’s allowance from Medicaid's fiscal intermediary (fiscal
agent) once monthly

7. Accurately posting aliowance income and expenditures and developing and
submitting a monthiy report on carry-over balance

Disbursing the monthly allowance as directed on the Cash Expendilure Plan
Withhold and pay State and Federal payroll taxes per regulations

10. Inferming the counseling entity and IndependentChoices program specialist when a
participant has 30 days of their allowance (excluding savings directed toward a
specific purchase} remaining at the end of the month on the Cash Expenditure Plan

11, Notifying DAASDPSQA and providing a corrective action plan in the event any
participant’s allowance aver becomes less than zero

Section lI-18



IndependentChoices Section I

12.  Making refunds to Arkansas Medicaid within 45 days post disenroliment or sooner if
no outstanding obligations are present upon disenrollment

13.  Providing monthly management reports to participants and BAASDPSQA
14. Respond to requests for income verification

15.  Providing to BAASDPSQA, by the end of February, an annual report of the previous
years' activity. The report will inform by participant, by month, the amount of the
allowance received, the wages paid to participant’s caregiver/employee, taxes
withheld, and, in descriptive terms, how the allowance was spent.

16. Mail W-2s in January of each year if the caregiver/femployee’s wages meet the
earnings threshold per IRS Publication 926—-Household Employer's Tax Guide

Section 1I-19






Personal Care

Section |l

SECTION I -

CONTENTS

PERSONAL CARE

200.000

200.100
200.110
200.120
200.130
200.140
200.141
200.142
290.—143

PERSONAL CARE GENERAL INFORMATION

Arkansas Medicaid Participation Requirements for Personal Care Providers
Class A Home Health Agencies

Class B Home Health Agencies

Private Care Agencies

Assisted Living Facilities

Residential Care Facilities

Level | Assisted Living Facilities

200 160
201.000
201.100
201.110
201.130
201.131
201.132
20422

School Dlstncts and Educatlon Service Cooperatlves
Reserved

Provider Enroliment Procedures

Class A and Class B Home Health Agencies
Assisted Living Facilities

Residential Care Facilities

Level | Assisted Living Facilities

202.000

202.100
202.110
202.210
203.000
204.000
205.000

210.000

211.000
213.100
213.110
213.120
213.300
213.310
213.500

a

Routlne Servnces Prowders and lelted Services Prowders Not Llcensed in
Arkansas
Routine Services Providers

Personal Care Providers in Arkansas -

Out-of-State Limited Services Persaonal Care Providers R & C E !VE D
IndependentChoices

Record Maintenance and Availability -

Electronic Signatures NOV 15 2018
PROGRAM COVERAGE

Program Authority BUREAU OF

Individuals Etigible for Personal Care LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH

Categorically Needy Medicaid Eligibility

Non-Inpatient, Non-Institutionalized Status

Beneficiary's Consent and Freedom of Choice
IndependentChoices Program, Title XIX State Plan Program
Personal Care Serwce Locations

213.520
213.530
213.600
213.610
214.300

214.310
e
214.330

215.000
215.200
215.210
215.350

216.100

Personal Care in Public Schools - Beneficiaries under Age 21

Personal Care in Residential Care Facilities (RCFs)

In-State and Out-of-State Limited Services Secondary Personal Care Providers
Personal Care/Hospice Policy Clarification

Authorization of ARChoices Plap-ofCare Person-Centered Service Plan and
Personal Care Individualized Service Plan

Development of ARChoices Plan-cof Care Person-Centered Service Plan
Medicaid Audit Requirements for the ARChoices Plan-ofGare Person-Centered
Service Plan

Personal Care Assessment and Individualized Service Plan

Personal Care Frovider's Assessment Proposed Service Plan

Alternative Resources for Assistance

Service Plan Requirements for a Single Provider and a Single Beneficiary at Multiple
Service Locations

Definitions of Terms

Section lI-1



_Personal Care Section i

216.110 Routines and Activities of Daily Living

216.120 Instrumental Activities of Daily Living

216.130 Tasks

216.140  Service

216.200 Tasks Associated with Covered Routines

216.201  Simultaneous Services and Congregate Settings

216.210 Eating {see Section 216.212, Consuming Meals, below)
216.211  Meal Preparation

216.250 Bladder and Bowel Requirements

216.260 Medication

218.270  Mobility and Ambuilation

216.300 Tasks Associated with Covered Activities of Daily Living
216.310  Incidental Housekeeping

216.320  Laundry

216.330  Shopping

216,400 Personal Care Aide Service and Documentation Responsibility
217.000 Benefit Limits

220.000 Service Administration

220.100  Service Supervision

220.110  Service Log

220111 Service L.og for Multiple Beneficiaries

220112  Service Log for Multiple Aides with One Beneficiary
220.113  Service Logging by Electronic Media

222.000 Personal Care Aide Qualifications and Certification

222,100 Personal Care Aide Selection, Training and Continuing Education
222110  Conduct of Training

222120 Personal Care Aide Training Subject Areas

222 130 Personal Care Aide Certification

222 140  In-Service Training

240.000 PRIOCR AUTHORIZATION

245.000 Provider Process for Reconsideration of PA Determination
246.000 Beneficiary Process for Appeal of PA Determination

250.000 REIMBURSEMENT
250.100 Reimbursement Methods
250.200 RCF and ALF Personal Care Reimbursement Methodology
250.210  Payment Levels kevel-ef-Gare
250211  LevelofCare Payment Level Determination
250.212 Rate Development
251100 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and Beneficiary Free Choice

A B acrmom a -

251120 IDEA Responsibilities of School Districts and Education Service Cooperatives
251.121  Fee Schedules
252.000 Rate Appeal Process

260.000 BILLING PROCEDURES
261.000 Introduction to Billing
262.000 CMS-1500 Billing Procedures
262100  Personal Care Billing
262,101  Personal Care for a Beneficiary Aged 21 or Older (Non-RCF)
262,102 Personal Care for a Beneficiary Under 21 (Non-RCF)
262,103  Personal Care in a Public School
262104 Personal Care in an RCF or ALF
262.105 Employment-Related Personal Care Outside the Home
262106  Billing RCF and ALF Personal Care Services

Section II-2



Personal Care Sectionﬂ

262.110 Coding Home and DDS Facility Places of Service

262.300 Calculating Individual Service Times for Services Delivered in a Congregate Setting
262.310  Unit Billing

262.311  Calculating Units

262.312 Rounding

262.400 Billing Instructions—Paper Only

262.410 Completing a CMS8-1500 Claim Form for Personal Care

262.500 Special Billing Procedures

200.100 Arkansas Medicaid Participation Requirements for Personal Care 1-1-18
Providers

Numerous agencies, organizations and other entities may qualify for enrollment in the Arkansas
Medicaid Personal Care Program. Participation requirements vary among these different types
of providers. Sections 200.110 through 200.160 outline the participation requirements specific to
each type of personal care provider. Section 201.000 describes the procedures required to
enroll in the Medicaid Program. Sections 201.010 through 201.050 set forth the licensing,
certification and other requirements specific to each type of personal care provider.

All owners, principals, employees, and contract staff of a personal care provider must have
comply-with national and state criminal background checks according to Arkansas State-Law-at
Code Annotated §§ 20-33-213 and 20-38-101 et seq. Criminal background checks shall be
repeated at least once every five years. Central registry checks shall include the Child
Maltreatment Central Registry; the Adult and Long-Term Care Facility Resident Maltreatment
Central Registry; and the Certified Nursing Assistant/Employment Clearance Registry.

200.140 Assisted Living Facilities

A.  Only one type of assisted living facility, a Level 1 Assisted Living Facility (ALF), may enroll
as a personal care prowder %em;e—ﬂ%e—types—ef—as&ste@%}g—faeme—%klls)—

I LALES) and 4 Assi LivingFacifities 1 III=I -
B. The Arkansas-Office-of LongTerm-Care {OLTC) Division of Provider Services and Quality

Assurance {(DPSQA) certifies, licenses and regulates certain institutions, including ALFs.

C. Each ALF has a separate license, regardless of which type it is and regardless of its
location or proprietorship.

D. Each ALF that provides personal care for Medicaid beneficiaries and that desires Medicaid
reimbursement for those services must enroll separately in the Arkansas Medicaid
Personal Care Program, effective for dates of service on and after March 1, 2003.

1. Some providers operate multiple ALF facilities, sometimes on the same property or in
the same complex and sometimes in multiple locations.

a. Effective for dates of service before March 1, 2005, Medicaid covers personal
care services provided by enrolled RCFs for residents of Level | ALFs and-evel
H-ALFEs under the same proprietorship as the enrolled RCF.

b. Level | andlevalll ALFs that are not under the same proprietorship as a
Medicaid-enrolled RCF may not contract for Medicaid-covered personal care
with an enrolled RCF owned by ancther entity.

c. Except under the conditions described in part a above, personal care in any
assisted living facility may be provided only by the facility itself, if it is enrolled in
the Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care Program, or by

Section II-3



Personal Care Section Il

(1). A private care agency that is enrolied as a Personal Care provider or

(2). AClass A or Class B home health agency that 1s enrolled as a Personal
Care provider.

2. Several provider files may share the same Federal Employer Identification Number
{FEIN). For example: A corporate entity that has one FEIN owns an RCF and a
Leve! | ALF and enrolls them as Personal Care Program providers.

a. Etach facility is assigned a unique Arkansas Medicaid provider number,

b.  Each facility's Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care provider number is linked to its
unigue license number.

c.  Each facility's Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care provider number is linked to
the corporate entity’s single FEIN.

EE. Sections 200.141; and 200.142 and-200143 outline Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care
Program participation requirements for RCFs; and Level | ALFs. ard-Level H-ALEs.

GF. In-additionto-the-Personal Care-Program; Level Il ALFs may participate in the Living

Choices Assisted Living Program.

1. Living Choices is a home- and community-based program established for certain
nursing home-eligible individuals who, without a program like Living Choices, would
not be able to live in a dwelling of their own or would be able to do so only with great
difficulty and with significant risk to their health and safety.

2. Providers may obtain Living Choices Program participation requirements by
downloading the Living Choices Assisted Living Provider Manual from the Arkansas
Medicaid website, www-medicaid-state-ar-us. https://medicaid. mmis.arkansas.gov.

3. Living Choices services are not covered for beneficiaries receiving services through
the Personal Care Program, and Perscnal Care Program services are not covered
for benefisiarys beneficiaries in the Living Choices Program.

200.141 Residential Care Facilities 3-1-08

A residential care facility applying for enrollment as a personal care provider must be licensed as
a residential care facility by the SEFE Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
{DPSQA).

200.142 Level | Assisted Living Facilities 3-1-05

A Level | ALF applying for enroliment as a perscnal care provider must be licensed as a Level |

ALF by the Arkansas-Office-of-Long-Ferm-Care<{OLTC) Division of Provider Services and Quality
Assurance (DPSQA).

Section li-4



Personal Care Section I

201110 Class A and Class B Home Health Agencies 3-1-05

Class A and Class B Home Health Agencies must ensure that there is on file with the Medicaid
Provider Enrcliment Unit a copy of their current Class A or Class B license. In addition,
certification by DPSQA is required for Medicaid provider enrollment.

201.120 Private Care Agencies 1-1-18

A.  Private care agencies must ensure that there is on file with the Medicaid Provider
Enrollment Unit a copy of their current license from the Arkansas Department of Health. In
addition, certification by DPSQA is required for Medicaid provider enrollment.

B. Private care agencies must ensure that there is on file with the Provider Enroliment Unit
proof of liability insurance coverage of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00),
covering their employees and independent contractors while those individuals and entities
are engaged in providing covered Medicaid services.

C.  Annually, private care agency providers must ensure that there is on file with the Provider
Enroliment Unit proof that the agency's required liability insurance remains in force and
has remained in force at a level of coverage no less than the required minimum since the
provider's previous report.

201.131 Residential Care Facilities 3-1-05

A residential care facility applying for enroliment as a personal care provider must ensure that

there is on file with the Medicaid Provider Enrolliment Unit a copy of its current license from the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

{DPSQA). In addition, certification by DPSQA is required for Medicaid provider enrollment.

201.132 Level | Assisted Living Facilities 3-1-05

A Level | Assisted Living Facility (ALF) applying to enroll as a personal care provider must

ensure that there is on file with the Provider Enrollment Unit a copy of its current license from the
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance

(DPSQA). In addition, certification by DPSQA is required for Medicaid provider enroliment.

Section II-5



Personal Care Section Il

202.210 Out-of-State Limited Services Personal Care Providers 3111

A, Out-of-state providers may enroll in Arkansas Medicaid as limited services providers only
after they have provided services to an Arkansas Medicaid eligible beneficiary and they
have a claim or ciaims to file with Arkansas Medicaid.

1. To enroll, providers must download an Arkansas Medicaid application and contract
from the Arkansas Medicaid website and submit the application, contract and claim
to Arkansas Medicaid Provider Enroliment. A provider number will be assigned upon
approval of the provider application and Medicaid contract. View or print the
provider enroliment and contract package (Application Packet). View Medicaid
Provider Enrollment Unit contact information.

Out of state providers must also be certified by DPSQA.

Enroliment as a limited services provider automatically expires after a year unless
the provider provides and hills for subsequent services for Arkansas Medicaid
beneficiaries during the year. See part B below.

B. Out-of-state limited services providers remain enrolled for one year.

1. If an out-of-state limited services provider provides services to another Arkansas
Medicaid beneficiary during the year of enroliment and bills Medicaid, the enrollment
may continue for one year past the most recent claim's last date of service, if the
enrcliment file is kept current.

2, During the enroliment period, the provider may file any subsequent claims directly to
the Medicaid fiscal agent.

3.  Limited services providers are strongly encouraged fo file subsequent claims through
the Arkansas Medicaid website because the front-end processing of web-based
claims ensures prompt adjudication and facilitates reimbursement.

213.000 Scope of the Program 1-1-18

A, Personal care services are primarily based on the assessed physical dependency need for
"hands-on” services with the following activities of daily living (ADL): eating, bathing,
dressing, persconal hygiene, toileting and ambulating. Hands-on assistance in at least one
of these areas, based on the ARIA assessment resulis, is required. This type of assistance
is provided by a personal care aide based on a beneficiary's physical dependency needs
(as opposed to purely housekeeping services). A-An individualized plan of care is
developed based on the ARIA assessment results and information in the form designated
by DHS that is submitted by the provider, i
and is based on a beneficiary’s assessed dependency in at least one of the above-listed
activities of daily living. While not a part of the eligibility criteria, the need for assistance
with other tasks and IADLs (Instrumental Activities of Daily Living) are considered in the
assessment. - Both types of assistance are considered when determining the amount of
overall personal care assistance authorized. Routines or IADLs include meal preparation,
incidental housekeeping, laundry, medication assistance, etc. These tasks are also
defined and described in this section of this provider manual and are defined in the
Arkansas State Board of Nursing Position Statement 7-2.

B. The tasks the aide performs are similar to those that a nurse's aide would normally perform
if the beneficiary were in a hospital or nursing facility.

C. Personal care services may be similar to or overlap some services that home health aides
furnish

Section lI-6



Personal Care

Section ll

213.120
A

213.200
A

1. Home health aides may provide personai care services in the home under the home
health benefit.

2. Skilled services that only a health professional may perform are not considered
personal care services.

Personal care services, as described in this manual, are furnished to an individual who is
not an inpatient or resident of a hospital, nursing facility, Level || assisted living facility,
intermediate care facility for persons with intellectual disabilities, or institution for mental
disease that are:

1. Authorized for the individual by DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by
DHS in accordance with a service plan approved by the State, e.g., ARChoices,
IndependentChoices;

2. Furnished in the beneficiary's home, and at the State’s option, in another location.

Provided by an individual qualified fo provide such services and who is not a member
of the beneficiary's family. See Section 222.100, part A, for the definition of "a
member of the beneficiary's family".

Personal care for Medicaid-eligible individuals requires prior authorization. See Sections
240.000 through 246.000.

Only Class-A Home Health agencies, Class-B Home Health agencies and Private Care
agencies may provide personal care in all State-approved locations. Residential care
facilities, public schools, and education service cooperatives and-BDS-facilities may
provide personal care only within their own facilities. School districts and education
service cooperatives may not provide personal care in the beneficiary's home unless the
home is deemed a public school in accordance with the Arkansas Department of
Education guidelines set forth in Section 213.520.

Non-Inpatient, Non-Institutionalized Status 10-13-03

Personal care services are services furnished to an individual who is not an inpatient or a
resident of:

1 A hospital,

2 A nursing facility,

3. A Level ll assisted living facility

4. Anintermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID) or
5. Aninstitution for mental diseases (IMD).

Individuals who are inpatients or residents of the foregoing institutions or facilities are
ineligible for Personal Care Program services.

1. Under applicable federal statutory and regulatory provisions, the institutional status of
an individual controls the individual's exclusion from service eligibility.

2.  The location of the personal care service delivery site is not a determinant of the
institutionalized individual's ineligibility for services.

Physical Dependency Need Criteria for Service Eligibility 11-18

The terms "routines," "activities of daily living" and "service” have particular definitions that
apply to the Personal Care Program. See Sections 216.100 through 216.140 for
definitions of these and other terms employed in this manual.

Section II-7



Personal Care Section Il

B.  Personal care services, described in Sections 216.000 through 216.330, must be medically
necessary services authorized by DHS professional staff or contractor{s) designated by
DHS.

C. Personal care services are individually designed to assist with a beneficiary's assessed
physical dependency needs related to the following routine activities of daily living and
instrumental activities of daily living:

Bathing

Bladder and bowel requirements
Dressing

Eating

Incidental housekeeping

Laundry

Personal hygiene

Shopping for personal maintenance items
Taking medications*

0. Mobility and Ambulation

* Assistance with medications is a personal care service only to the extent that it is
permitted by the Arkansas Nurse Practice Act, and implementing regulations permit a
personal care aide to perform the service, and Arkansas State Board of Nursing
Position Statement 97-2.

= © @ N ook whd =

D. A number of conditions may cause "physical dependency needs."

1. Particular disabilities or conditions may or may not be pertinent to specific needs for
individual assistance.

2. Inassessing an individual's need for personal care, the guestion to pursue is whether
the individual is unable to perform tasks covered by this program without assistance
from someone else.

3.  The need for individual assistance indicates whether to consider personal care.

243.310 independentChoices Program, Title XIX State Plan Program 1113

IndependentChoices is operated by the Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA) Agingana-Adult Sepdces{DAAS) and operates under the authority of the Title XIX
State Plan with the Division of Medical Services responsible for administrative and financial
authority.

IndependentCheices offers an opportunity to Medicaid-eligible adults with disabkilities (age 18
and older) and the elderly (age 65 and older) o direct their personal care. The beneficiary
chooses a cash allowance in lieu of agency perscnal care services. IndependentChoices
provides qualifying beneficiaries with counseling and training to assist them with information to
fulfill their role as an employer. The beneficiary as the employer will hire, train, supervise and if
necessary, terminate the services of their employee. In addition to hiring an employee, the
beneficiary may use parl of their budget to purchase goods and services that lessen their
physical dependency needs. In addition o counseling support services, beneficiarys
beneficiaries may receive Financial Management Services {FMS) from a DMS contracted
provider. The FMS provider wili assist the beneficiary by processing timesheets, withholding and
reporting State and Federal taxes, issuing a W-2 to all employees who meet the tax threshold
and refunding taxes to the beneficiary and the employee when the threshold was not met. The

Section 11-8



Personal Care

Section Il

FMS provider also coordinates the accuracy and coordination of the forms used to establish the
Medicaid beneficiary as an employer and to employ a worker. The FMS provider representing
the Medicaid beneficiary will obtain permissions and execute an IRS Form 2678 to act as the
beneficiary’s agent.

NOTE: The IndependentChoices Program is required to follow the rules and

213.500

regulations of the State Plan approved Personal Care Program, unless
stated otherwise in this manual.

Personal Care Service Locations 3-1-05

A.  Arkansas Medicaid covers personal care in a beneficiary's home and, at the state’s option,
in another location, for beneficiaries of all ages.

1.

A beneficiary's home is the beneficiary’s residence, subject to the exclusions in part
B, below.

Service locations outside the beneficiary’'s home must be included in the service
plan. {If shopping or assistance with shopping is included in the service plan, it is
understood that the actual activity occurs at a store. The place of service—for billing
purposes—remains the beneficiary’s home.)

The beneficiary’s assessment and service plan must justify the medical necessity for
personal care in a location other than the beneficiary's residence. For example: A
beneficiary’s service plan includes assistance with dressing. This particular
beneficiary regularly (by PCP referral or a physician’s order) goes to a clinic or other
site for a therapy, such as aqua therapy, that involves changing clothes. If, at the
therapy site, assistance with dressing and/or changing is not included with the
therapy service, the personal care service plan may include an aide’s assistance.
However, in such a situation, only the time the aide spends performing the service is
covered.

B. Medicaid does not cover personal care services in the following locations:

1

2.
3
4
5

A hospital,

A nursing facility,

A Level Il assisted living facility,

An intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID) or
An institution for mental diseases (IMD).

C. Allindividuals residing in locations listed above in part B are ineligible for Medicaid-covered
personal care.

D. Individuals who are inpatients or residents of the facilities and institutions listed in part B
are not eligible for Medicaid-covered personal care services in any location.

Section II-9



Personal Care

Section I

213.540

Employment-related Personal Care Cutside the Home 1-1-18

No condition of this section alters or adversely affects the status of individuals who are furnished
personal care in sheltered workshops or similarly authorized habilitative environments. There
may be a few beneficiaries working in sheitered workshops solely or primarily because they have
access to personal care in that setiing. This expansion of personal care outside the home may
enable some of those individuals to move or attempt to move into an integrated work setiing.

A.  Personal care may be provided outside the home when the requirements in subparts A1
through A5 are met and the services are necessary to assist an individual with a disability
to obtain or retain employment.

1.

The beneficiary must have an authorized. individualized personal care service plan
that includes the covered personal care services necessary to and appropriate for an
employed individual or for an individual seeking employment.

The beneficiary must be aged 16 or older.

The beneficiary’s disability must meet the Social Security/SS| disability definition.

a A beneficiary’s disability may be confirmed by verifying his or her eligibility for
581, Social Security disability benefits or a Medicaid disability aid category.
such as Working Disabled or DDS Alternative Community Services waiver.

b.  If uncertain whether a beneficiary qualifies under this disability provision,
contact the Department of Human Services local office in the county in which
the beneficiary resides.

One of the following two cenditions must be met.

a.  The beneficiary must work at least 40 hours per month in an integrated setting
(1.e., a workplace that is not a sheltered workshop and where individuals
without disabilities are employed or are eligible for employment on parity with
applicants with a disability).

b. Alternatively, the beneficiary must be actively seeking employment that
requires a minimum of 40 hours of work per month in an integrated setting.

The beneficiary must earn at least minimum wage or be actively seeking employment
that pays at least minimum wage

B. Personal care aides may assist beneficiaries with personal care needs in a beneficiary's
workplace and at employment-related locations, such as human resource offices,
employment agencies or job interview sites.

C. Employment-related perscnal care associated with transportation is covered as follows.

1.

Aides may assist beneficiaries with transportation to and from work or job-seeking
and during transportation to and from work or for job-seeking.

All employment-related services. including those associated with transportation, must
be included in detail {i.e., at the individual task performance level, see Section
215.300, part F) in the service plan and all pertinent service documentation.

Section 1110



Personal Care

Section |l

213.600

Medicaid does not cover mileage associated with any personal care service.

Authorized, necessary and documented assistance with transportation to and from
work for job-seeklng and dunng transportatlon to and from work or for Job-seeklng is

eaFe-I%ems—but—rt—l&mcluded in the 64 hour per month personal care beneflt limit for
beneficiaries aged 21 and older.

All personal care for beneficiaries requires prior authorization.

Providers furnishing both employment-related personal care outside the home and non-
employment related personal care at home or elsewhere for the same beneficiary must
comply with the applicable rules at Sections 215.350, 215.351 and 262.100.

In-State and Out-of-State Limited Services Secondary Personal 1-1-18
Care Providers

On rare occasions, a personal care beneficiary might have urgent cause to travel to a locality
outside his or her personal care provider's service area. If DHS professional staff or
contractor(s) designated by DHS authorizes personal care during the beneficiary's stay in that
locality, the beneficiary may choose a personal care provider agency in the service area to which

he or
A.

she is traveling.

In-State and Out-of-State Limited Services Secondary Personal Care Provider

If the selected provider is an in-state provider, the selected provider's services may be
covered if all the following requirements are met:

1. The beneficiary's personal care provider (the "primary" provider) must request in
writing that the selected provider (the "secondary” provider) assume the beneficiary's
service for the specified duration of the beneficiary's stay.

2. The primary provider must forward to the secondary provider a copy of the
beneficiary's current service plan and service documentation, including logs, for a
minimum service-period of sixty days prior to the request.

3. iIfthe secondary provider requests additional information or documentation, the
primary provider must forward the requested materials immediately.

4. The secondary provider must execute a written agreement to assume the
beneficiary's care on behalf of the primary provider.

5. The secondary provider must submit its service documentation to the primary
provider within ten working days of the beneficiary's departure from the temporary
locality.

Out-of-State Limited Services Secondary Personal Care Provider

If the provider is an out-of-state provider, the provider must also download an Arkansas
Medicaid application and contract from the Arkansas Medicaid website and submit the
application and contract to Arkansas Medicaid Provider Enroliment. A provider number will
be assigned upon approval of the provider application and Medicaid contract. View or
print the provider enroliment and contract package {Application Packet|.

The selected provider must also submit to the Madical Serdces Utilization Review
Seetien; contractor designated by DHS, or if there is no contractor designated by DHS, to
DHS professional staff a written request for prior authorization accompanied with copies of
the prowders license, Medicare certification, beneficiary’s identifying information and the

beneficiary’s service plan. View orprintDivision-of-Medical Services, Utilization
Bedenw-Seslioncortactinfermalion.

Section 11111



Personal Care Section i

C. All documentation exchanged between the primary and secondary providers must satisfy
all Medicaid requirements.

213.610 Personal Care/Hospice Policy Clarification 1-1-13

Medicaid beneficiaries are allowed to receive Medicaid personal care services, in addition to
hospice aide services, if the personal care services are unrelated to the terminal condition or the
hospice provider is using the personal care services to supplement the hospice and homemaker
services.

A.  The hospice provider is responsible for assessing the patient’s hospice-related needs and
developing the hospice plan of care to meet these needs, implementing all interventions
described in the plan of care, and developing and maintaining a system of communication
and integration to provide for an cngoing sharing of information with other non-hospice
healthcare providers furnishing services unrelated to the terminal illness and related
conditions. The hospice provider coordinates the hospice aide with the services furnished
under the Medicaid personal care program to ensure that patients receive all the services
that they require. Coordinaticn occurs through contact with beneficiaries or in home
oroviders.

B. The hospice aide services are not meant {o be a daily service, nor 24-hour daily services,
and are not expected to fulfill the caregiver role for the patient. The hospice provider can
use the services furnished by the Medicaid personal care program to the extent that the
hospice would routinely use the services of a hospice patient’s family in implementing a
patient's plan of care. The hospice provider is only responsible for the hospice aid and
homemaker services necessary for the treatment of the terminal condition.

C. Medicaid payments for personal care services provided to an individual also receiving
hospice services. regardless of the payment source for hospice services, must be
supported by documentation in the individual's personal care medical chart or the
IndependentChoices Cash Expenditure Plan. Documentation must support the policy
described above in this section of the Personal Care provider manual.

NOTE: Based on audit findings, it is imperative that required documentation be
recorded by the hospice provider and avaitable in the hospice record,
Documentation must substantiate all services provided. It is the hospice
provider’'s responsibility to coordinate care and assure there is no
duplication of services. While hospice care and personal care services are
not mutually exclusive, documentation must support the inclusion of both
services and the corresponding amounts on the care plan. To avoid
duplication and to support hospice-care in the home that provides the
amount of services required to meet the needs of the beneficiary, the
amount of personal care services needed beyond the care provided by the
hospice agency must meet the criteria detailed in this section. Most often, if
personal care services are in place prior to hospice services starting, the
amount of personal care services will be reduced to avoid any duplication.
If those services are not reduced or discontinued, documentation in the
hospice and personal care records must explain the need for both and be
supported by the policy in this section,

214.200 Service Plan Review and Renewal 1-1-18

A. A personal care service plan terminates one (1) year after its initial or revised beginning
date of service, unless described otherwise in this section. See-NOTE below-

Section 11-12



Personal Care Section |l

4——DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS must review the service
plan no less often than once per year, unless described otherwise in this section.
See NOTE below.

B. Personal care services may not continue past the one-year anniversary of an initial or
revised beginning date of service until DHS professional staff or contractor(s} designated
by DHS authorizes a revised service plan or renews the authorization of an existing service
plan.

214.300 Authorization of ARChoices Rlah-of Care Person-Centered Service 1-1-18
Plan and Personal Care Individualized Service Plan

The BAASDHS RN is responsible for developing an ARChoices Rlar-ofCare Person-Centered
Service Plan (PCSP)_that includes both waiver and non-waiver services. Once developed, the
Plan-eofCare PCSP is signed by the BAASDHS RN authorizing the services listed.

The signed ARChoices Plan-sfCare PCSP will suffice as the "Personal Care Authorization” for
serwces reqwred in the Personai Care Program Ihe—ergnat-u*e—ef—t-he—DAAS—R-N—en—the

sepvices: The personal care rndl\nduallzed service plan developed by the Personal Care
provider, is stili required.

As the ARChoices RPlanofCare PCSP is effective for one year, once signed by the DAASDHS
RN; the authorization for personal care services, when included on the ARChoices Planof Care
PCSP, will be for one year from the date of the BAASDHS RN's signature, unless revised by the
BAASDHS RN or the personal care lndlwduahzed service plan needs fo be revised, whlchever
occurs first. :

NOTE: For ARChoices beneficiarys beneficiaries who receive personal care through
traditional agency services or have chosen to receive their personal care services
through the IndependentChoices Program, the ARChoices plan-efcare PCSP,
signed by a BAASDHS RN, will serve as the authorization for personal care
services for one year from the date of the DAASDHS RN’s sighature, as described
above.

The responsibility of developing a personal care individualized_service plan is not placed with the
BAASDHS RN. The personal care provider is still required to complete a service plan, as
described in the Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care Provider Manual.

The Arkansas Medicaid Program waives no other Personal Care Program requirements with
regard to personal care individualized service plan authorizations obtained by DAASDHS RNs.

214.310 Development of ARChoices Plan-of Care Person-Centered Service 1-1-16
Plan

If personal care services are not currently being provided when the DAASDHS RN develops the
ARChoices Plan-ef Care Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP), the BAASDHS RN will
determine if personal care services are needed. If so, the service, amount, frequency, duration
and the beneficiary’s provider of choice will be included on the ARChoices Rlan-efCare PCSP
A copy of the ARChoices Plan-ofCare PCSP and a Start of Care form (AAS-8510) will be
forwarded to the personal care provider, as is current practice for waiver services. The Start of
Care form must be returned to the BAASDHS RN within 10 working days from mailing or action
may be taken by the BAASDHS RN to secure another personal care provider or modify the
ARChoices Rlar-ei-Care PCSP. {The ARChoices Plar-ef-Gare PCSP is dated the date it is
mailed.) Before taking action to secure another provider or modifying the PlarefCare PCSP,

Section li-13



Personal Care Section ||

the appllcant andlor family members wm be contacted to dISCUSS possmle alternatlves

This Rlan-sfCare PCSP supersedes any other Rlar-efCare care plan that may have been
previously developed by another Medicaid provider for the applicant. The ARChoices Plan-of
Gare PCSP rmust include all appropriate ARChoices services and certain non-waiver services
appropriate for the applicant, such as Perscnal Care.

An agency providing services to an ARChoices beneficiary must report these services to the
BAASDHS RN. The services being provided to the ARChoices beneficiary must be included on
the ARChoices Rlan-efCare PCSP. Prior to beginning services or revising services provided to
an ARChoices beneficiary, contact the BAASDHS RN so the RPlanefCare PCSP is properly
revised and approved. Please report all changes in services and changes in the ARChgcices
beneficiary's circumstances to the BAASDHS RN immediately upon learning of the change.
Certain services provided to an ARChoices beneficiary that are not included on the ARChoices
Plar-of-Care PCSP may be subject to recoupment by the Medicaid Program.

NOTE: Itis the IndependentChoices employer or personal care provider's responsibility
to place information regarding their presence in the home in a prominent location
so that the BAASDHS RN will be aware that they are serving the beneficiary.
Preferably, the provider will place the information on the refrigerator or under the
phone the applicant uses, unless the applicant objects. If so, the provider will
place the information in a location satisfactory to the applicant, as long as it is
readily available and easily accessible by the DAASDHS RN,

The personail care individualized service plan developed by the perscnal care provider must
meet all requirements as detailed in the persenal care provider manual. This includes, but is not
limited to, the amount of personal care services, personal care tasks frequency and duratlon

mamng-any—Fewsaens- The ARChmces Rlan—ef—GaFe PCSP and the requ1red Justlf catlon for each
service remains the responsibility of the DAASDHS RN. Therefore, final decisions regarding
services included on the ARChoices Plan-cfCare PCSP rest with the BAASDHS RN.

NOTE: For ARChoices waiver beneficiaries participating in the IndependentChoices
program, services are effective on the date of the DAAS DHS RN’s signature on
assesement-tool-or-the ARChoices waiver PCSP plan-of-care;- whicheveris-the

Section II-14



Personal Care Section

214.330 Medicaid Audit Requirements for the ARChoices Plan-of Care 1-1-16
Person-Centered Service Plan

When the Medicaid Program, as authorized by the ARChoices Plan-efGCare Person-Centered
Service Plan (PCSP), reimburses for Personal Care services, all Medicaid audits will be
performed based on that authorization. Therefore, all documentation by the Personal Care
provider must tie services rendered to services authorized as reflected on the ARChoices Rlan-of

GCare PCSP
215.000 Personal Care Assessment and Individualized Service Plan
215.100 IndependentChoices Assessment and Service Plan Formats 1118

For IndependentChoices beneficiaries who are also active waiver beneficiaries in the
ARChoices Program, the assessment tool used for waiver level of care determination and
the waiver plan-ofcare Person-Centered Service Plan (PCSP) will suffice to support
authorization for personal care services, if signed by the BAASDHS RN. Eligibility for
personal care services is based on the same criteria as state plan personal care services.

Services are effective on the date of the BAAS-RN-ssigaature-on-the-waiverassessment
tostorthe waiver PCSP plan-ofcare-whicheveristhelatter of the-twe. Personal care

services provided prior to that date are not eligible for Medicaid reimbursement. The
waiver assessment tool and the waiver plan-ofcare PCSP must include, at least, the
information included on the form BMS-648 designated by DHS that is utilized to support
the medical necessity, eligibility and amount of personal care services provided through
IndependentChoices or agency personal care services. This information is required in

Section I1-15



Personal Care Section Il

documentation whetheror-not-an-extension-of-benefits-is-requested for each beneficiary.

As with all required documentation, this information must be available in the beneficiary's
chart or electronic record and available for audit and Quaiity Management Strategy

reviews.
215.200 Personal Care Provider's Assessment Proposed Individualized 10-13-03
Service Plan

A.  As part of each prior authorization request, each provider shall submit a complete and
accurate form designated by DHS. The form must be prepared, certified, and signed by an
Arkansas licensed registered nurse.

B. The completed form designated by DHS shall include all information required on the form
applicable to the individual beneficiary, including:

1. Beneficiary and provider information,

2. Detailed information concerning physician-diagnosed physical and Behavioral Health
Services conditions, identified physical dependency needs, and mental/cognitive
status; and

3. For each physical dependency need identified, written descriptions including:

a. The extent to which the beneficiary can personally perform individual task
components of routines and activities of daily living,

b. The type and amount of assistance the beneficiary may need with each task thus
identified, including the frequency (per day, week, or month, as applicable) of each
task with which the beneficiary needs assistance and for which other sources of
assistance are not available; and

c. The extent beyond which the beneficiary cannot personally perform individual task
components of routines and activities of daily living;

4, Detailed information on all personal assistance available to the beneficiary through other
sources, including informal caregivers {(e.g., family, friends), community organizations
(e.g., Meals on Wheels), Medicare (e.g., Medicare home health aide services), or the
beneficiary’s Medicare Advantage health plan;

Section l1-16



Personal Care Section |l

5. A proposed service plan, with proposed hours/minutes and frequency of needed tasks
consistent with the Task and Hour Standards (as described in Section 240.100); and

6. The signed approval of the beneficiary or the beneficiary's legal representative.

EC.

215.210
A

When a beneficiary has two or more personal care providers, the providers should cooperate

in the assessment—and—semee—p#an—dewelepment-ppeeesses-reqwred nursing evaluation and

the preparation and submission of the prior authorization request and completed form
designated by DHS on behalf of the beneficiary,

When an individual will receive some or all of his or her services in a congregate setting, the
assessment must reflect the RN's determination that the individual is an appropriate
candidate for services delivered in that setting. See Section 216.201 and Sections 220.110
through 220.112.

Alternative Resources for Assistance 10-13-03

The following requirements regarding alternative resources for assistance do not apply, or
apply only insofar as they are legal, practical and practicable when the identifiable
resources are prohibited from assisting the beneficiary by law or by a facility's or
organization's rules or bylaws. For example, a relative of the beneficiary is an alternative
resource in the beneficiary's home or the relative's home but not in the public school.

The form designated by DHS that is submitted by the provider to DHS or the contractor
designated by DHS persenal-care-assessment must include written evidence that the
beneficiary or the beneficiary's representative and the provider have considered alternative
resources avaiiable to assist or partially assist the beneficiary with physical dependency
needs identified in the assessment.

1.  The provider must determine whether voluntary third-party resources are available
and if so, the extent of the third party's willingness to devote time to the benefit of the
beneficiary. The provider must:

a.  Consider other members of the beneficiary's household as well as nearby
relatives and friends,

b. Indicate the usual times of their availability to assist the beneficiary and the
frequency and duration of their assistance, and

c. Explain the circumstances of any individual household member's inability to
provide any assistance or to provide less than complete assistance with the
beneficiary's physical dependency needs.

2. The provider must also consider such alternative community resources as public and
private community agencies and organizations, whether secular or religious, paid or
volunteer.

a. Consider entities that provide not only in-home services, but also such services
as adult day care or caregiver respite.

b. List the approximate number of hours per week the beneficiary receives (or will
receive) services from each such community resource.

1
The provider must make reasonabie efforts to determine the nature, scope, frequency and
duration of other services the individual receives, particularly in-home services.

The provider's case record documentation must include the certification that the
beneficiary's individualized service plan does not duplicate any other in-home services of
which the provider is aware.

Section i1-17



Personai Care

215.300

Section |I_

Individualized Service Plan 1118

A beneficiary must receive services in accordance with an individualized service plan.

A
B.

The plan must be acceptable to the beneficiary or the beneficiary's representative.

A registered nurse and other appropriate personnel of the personal care provider agency,
in concert with the beneficiary or the beneficiary's representative, must design the
individualized service plan to correlate with the physical dependency needs identified in the
assessment.

The individualized service plan must be limited to assistance with the beneficiary's
individual physical dependency needs.

The service plan must clearly identify which of the beneficiary’s physical dependency
needs will be met by each task performed by a perscnal care aide.

1. This requirement does not necessarily mandate wriling a unique statement for each
task or task component. Indexing the assessment may expedite documentation by
permitting one to reference the relevant section of the assessment for the
explanatory detail. For example:

a. "Task 1 (corresponds to) Physical Dependency 2."
b. "Task 6 {corresponds to) Physical Dependency 3."

2. In addition tc establishing its correspondence to the assessment (e.g., designing
individualized services for a beneficiary's physical dependency needs); the service
plan must describe for each routine or activity listed:

a.  The individual tasks the aide is to perform for the beneficiary,
b.  The individual tasks with which the aide is to assist the beneficiary and
c. The frequency and duration of service of each routine and activity, including:

{1). The number of days per week each routine or activity will be accomplished
and

(2). The maximum and minimum estimated aggregate #ime-minutes the aide
should spend on all authorized tasks each service day.

The service plan must include written instructions for the personal care aide specifying how
and when to execute or assist with the beneficiary's routines or activities including:

1. The number of days per week to accomplish each routine or activity (as well as
which days when relevant) and

2. The time of day to accomplish the routine or activity when the time is pertinent, such
as when lo prepare meals.

The service plan must include written instructions describing whether and to what extent
the aide's function in individual task components of each routine or achivity is:

1.  To assist the beneficiary to perform the task,
2. To perform the task for the beneficiary or

3.  To observe the beneficiary perform the task.

The service plan must require the beneficiary to perform all tasks within the beneficiary's
capability. Medicaid does not cover assisiance with any task a beneficiary can perform
unless DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS have authorized the
assistance. For example:

1. A beneficiary can manage his own laundry but he cannot extract wet items from the
washer while leaning over the machine.

Section [I-18



Personal Care

215.310
A

Section Il

a. The assessment notes that he needs assistance with the task of removing wet
items from the washing machine.

b.  The service plan describes the assistance designed for his individual physical
dependency need with his laundry.

c. The registered nurse instructs the aide to perform the task(s) constituting the
service.

2.  Loading the washer, emptying the dryer, folding and ironing clothing and linens are
not covered tasks for this particular beneficiary.

3. Removing laundry from the washer and loading it in the dryer are covered tasks for
this beneficiary if those tasks are described in his service plan and authorized by
DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS.

The form designated by DHS that is submitted by the provider must support the service
plan and the provider's RN's instructions to the aide(s) regarding the delivery of services.
The plan must reflect whether the individual is receiving services in more than one setting.
If a beneficiary is receiving services in more than one setting, it must be clear in which
setting a beneficiary receives a particular service or assistance. See part G of Section
215.200, Section 216.201 and Sections 220.110 through 220.112.

See Section 215.330 for information about mere service plan revision requirements.

Identifying Individual Physical Dependency Needs 1118

A personal care provider must identify and describe (assess) a beneficiary's need for
assistance (physical dependency need) with individual task components of routines and
activities of daily living in the form designated by DHS.

The provider must describe the type, amount, frequency and duration of assistance
required for each task thus identified (individualized service plan) in the form designated by
DHS

A personal care aide furnishes assistance (service) with the individual task components of
routines and activities of daily living, in accordance with the individualized service plan
authorized by DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS.

The following examples illustrate how to facilitate service plan development and service
documentation by assessing the beneficiary at the level of individual task performance:

A beneficiary is unable to pick up siender items, such as spoons and toothbrushes, and
sometimes loses his grip on those objects.

1.  This condition causes similar physical dependency needs in different routines.

Sample Assessment Entry

Eating: The beneficiary needs someane to place eating utensils in his
grasp and to retrieve them when he drops them.

Oral hygiene: The beneficiary needs someone to place his toothbrush in his
grasp and to refrieve it when he drops it.

Section 1119



Personal Care

Section Il

215.330

2. The service plan will contain instructions to the aide similar to this Sample Service
Plan Entry.

Sample Service Plan Entry

Eating: Place the (object) in (beneficiary’s name)'s grasp.

Oral hygiene: Retrieve the (object) when (beneficiary’s name) drops it and
replace the (object) in his grasp.

Medicaid Program staff reviewing a personal care provider's records must be able to
readily observe that the service plan logically follows the assessment, which is possible
only if the provider assesses the beneficiary at the individual task performance level.

1. Additionally, the aide's daily service documentation and the registered nurse's case
notes must address the requirements and objectives of the service plan.

2. There must be a clear and logical relationship of each component of this
documentation to each other component and to the service continuum.

Service Plan Revisions 11-18

NOTE: Subsections (A) (3) and (B) are not applicable to IndependentChoices
program.

DHS professicnal staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS must authorize permanent
service plan changes before the provider amends service delivery.

1. For purposes of this requirement, a permanent service plan change is cne expected
to last 30 days or more,

2. Service plan revisions must be made if a beneficiary's condition changes to the
extent that the personal care provider must modify, add or delete tasks.

3. Service plan revisions must be made if the provider identifies a need to increase or
decrease the amount, frequency or duration of service.

a.  While-Changes in the amount, frequency or duration of a service must be
documented in the medlcal record—an—maease—er—a—sed-uehen—ef—‘l-@%}-epless-m

b.  The reasons for the service variances must be written daily in the service
documentation.

4. All Service plan revisions require the provider to submit an amended prior
authorization request. DHS professional staff or the DHS contractor will review the
request and determine, based on application of the Task and Hour Standards
described in Section 240.100, the amount of adjustment to make in prior authorized
minutes. DHS professional staff or the DHS contractor will revise the number of
minutes in Interchange.

Providers may not reduce a beneficiary's services without prior authorization by DHS
professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS

The personal care provider must document medical reasons for service pian revisions.

Section i1-20



Personal Care Section |l

D. The new beginning date of service is the date authorized by DHS professional staff or
contractor(s) designated by DHS.

F.  Service plan revisions and updates since the previous assessment must remain with the
service plan. Updates since the previous assessment must include documentation of
when and why the change occurred.

216.000 Coverage 1-1-18

A. Personal care services, as described in this manual, are furnished to an individual who is
not an inpatient or resident of a hospital, nursing facility, Level |l assisted living facility,
intermediate care facility for persons with intellectua! disabilities, or institution for mental
disease that are:

1.  Authorized for the individual by DHS professional staff or coniractor(s) designated by
DHS in accordance with a service plan approved by the State

2. Provided by an individual qualified to provide such services and who is not a member
of the beneficiary's family. See Section 222.100, part A, for the definition of "a
member of the beneficiary's family"

3. Prior authorized by DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS
4,  Provided by an individual who is

a. Qualified to provide the services,

b.  Supervised by a registered nurse (RN) or (when applicable) a Qualified
Intellectual Disabilities Mental-Retardation Professional (QMRRPQIDP) and

C. Not a member of the beneficiary's family OR

d.  Qualified to provide the service according to approved policy in the
IndependentChoices Program.

5. Furnished in the beneficiary’s home or, at the State’s option, in another location

B. Medicaid restricts coverage of personal care to services directly helping a heneficiary with
certain specified routines and activities, regardless of the beneficiary’s ability or inability to
execute other non-covered routines and activities. Personal care services may be provided
in a beneficiary’s home or while accompanying the beneficiary to other locations, including
without limitation for medical appointments or community activities, subject to the
restrictions on travel time in this section

C Travel Time of Personal Care Aide Accompanying Beneficiary:

1, Personal care only covers personal care aide travel time when all of the following
apply

I The personal care aide accompanies the benefictary in the same vehicle as
the beneficiary travels to and returns from a community location for medical
appointment or community activity,

i The travel time billed is solely for necessary time in transit from the
beneficiary’s home to the community location and the return travel from the
community location to the beneficiary’s home;

it The beneficiary’s participation in the local community activity is for the benefit
of the beneficiary and to meet the beneficiary’'s goals for independent living in

Section I1-21



Personal Care

Section |l

216.140
A.

B.

the community, and the travel, including stops, is not for the benefit or
convenience of any other person {including the personat care aide. a family
member, the driver, or cther passengers),

Iv. The traveling activity itself is for practical transit within the community and not
for diversional or recreational purposes of any kind

v The beneficiary’'s individualized Service Plan includes Personal Care service
hours for one or both of the following activities of daily living {ADLs). toileting
and mobdity / ambulating,

ut While in transit to and from the community location, the beneficiary requires,
or s likely to need given assessed functional imitations, hands-on assistance
with the ADL task of toileting or the ADL task of mobility / ambulating, and

vii. The travel time is reasonable given driving distances, traffic conditions, and
weather, with time and locations documenied.

Travel ime is not reimbursable if any other adult person accompanying (or driving)
the beneficiary 1s a family member and 1s reasonably able to assist the beneficiary in
fransit if needed

Travel fime accompanying a beneficiary will count against the total number of
Personal Care hours per month authornized in the participant’s Individuaiized Senvice
Plan and prior authorization,

Reguesting Hours for Travel Time of Attendant Accompanying Participant.

Beneficiaries vary in their medical apsoiniments, participation in communrity activities,
the availability of family or other assistance they may need while traveling, and the
time invoived when {raveling to medical appointments and local community activities.
When covered, travel time of 2 personal care aide accompanying & beneficiary is
incident to but itself ot the ADL task of toilsting or the ADL task of mobiiity /
ambulating. Therefore, the Task and Hour Standards are not currently used to help
datermine the number of Personal Care tiours. if any, associated solety with travel
time of a personal care aide accompanying a beneficiary io a medical visit or
community activity

For an ARChoices beneficiary, the number of hours aliowed for traved tlime of a
personal care ade wili be determined by the DHS nurse in the beneficiary’s Person-
Centered Service Plan

For other beneficianies, the provider may include in the prior authorization request
Justification for travel time, based on the beneficiary’s community activities, need for
a personal care aide to accompany them, and the distances and roundtrip travel
times typically involved. Based on this information and consistent with the above
requirements, the contractor designated by DHS to process prior authorization
requests, or If there s no contracior designated by DHS, DHS professionai staff, may
increase the number of Perscnal Care hours per month covered in the Individuatized
Service Plan and prior authorization to reasonably accommaodate the travel time of a
personal care aide accompanying the beneficiary

Service 10-13-03

A “personal care service" is a covered task or a related group of covered tasks.

A "personal care aide service" is a personal care service,

"Personal care services” and "personal care aide services" are interchangeable
expressions that mean "covered tasks."

Section II-22



Personal Care Section Il

2. Only a certified personal care aide, or an individual who meets or exceeds the
qualifications of a personal care aide, as defined in Section 222.100, who is alsc in
the employ of a Medicaid-enrolled personal care provider, may provide covered
personal care services or personal care aide services as defined in this manual.

C. As a condition of coverage and reimbursement, all personal care services must be:

1. Reasonable and medically necessary, supported by the individual's latest nursing
evaluation, and consistent with the individual’s service plan;

2. Expressly authorized in the individual's approved personal care services prior
authorization;

3. Not available from another source (including, but not limited to, family members, a
member of the beneficiary’s household, or other unpaid caregivers; another Medicaid
State Plan covered service; the Medicare program; the beneficiary’s Medicare
Advantage plan or Medicare prescription drug plan; or the beneficiary’s private long-term
care, disability, or supplemental insurance coverage);

4. Not in excess of or otherwise inconsistent with limits on the amount, frequency, or
duration of services, including without limitation the aggregate weekly or monthiy limits
calculated by DHS for the beneficiary in accordance with the Arkansas Medicaid Task
and Hour Standards,

5. Provided by qualified, Medicaid-enrolled, DPSQA-certified providers and in compliance
with all applicable Arkansas Medicaid program regulations and provider manuals; and

6. Provided in compliance with all applicable Arkansas scope of practice laws and
regulations pertaining to nurses, physicians, skilled therapists, and other professionals.

D. Personal care services exclude all of the following:

1. Medical, skilled nursing, pharmacy, skilled therapy services, medical social services, or
medical technician services of any kind, including, but not limited to, aseptic or sterile
procedures, application of dressings, medications administration, injections, observation
and assessment of health conditions, insertion, removal, or irrigation of catheters, tube or
other enteral feedings, tracheostomy care, axygen administration, ventilator care,
drawing blood, and care and maintenance of any medical equipment;

2. Services within the scopes of practice of licensed cosmetologists, manicurists,
electrologists, or aestheticians, except for necessary assistance with personal hygiene
and basic grooming;

3. Services provided for a person other than the beneficiary, including but fimited to a
provider, family member, household resident, or neighbor;

4. Companion, socialization, entertainment, or recreational services or activities of any kind
(including, but not limited to, game playing, television watching, arts and crafts, hobbies,
and other activities pursued for pleasure, relaxation, or fellowship);

5. Habilitation services, including assistance in acquiring, retaining, or improving self-help,
socialization, and/or adaptive skills; and

6. Mental health counseling or services.

216.210 Eating {see Section 216.212, Consuming Meals, below)

Section 11-23



Personal Care Section |l

216.212 Consuming Meals 1-1-18

A.  The service reiated to this routine includes the tasks invoived in giving the beneficiary
hands-on assistance to consume a meal and fluids. It does not include meal preparation.

B. To receive personai care assistance with this routine. a beneficiary's physical dependency
needs must prevent or substantially impair his or her ability to execute tasks such as
cutting food in bite-size pieces or negotiating food from plate to mouth.

C. The related service is hands-on assistance with the beneficiary's physical dependency
needs to accomplish eating. The aide may only assist with or perform functional tasks the
beneficiary cannct physically perform, in accordance with the beneficiary's physical
dependency needs described in the assessment.

D.  The service plan must correlate each required task with its corresponding physical
dependency need. See Sections 215.300 and 215.310 and the following examples.

1.  An assessment states, "Beneficiary's arthritis prevents him from gripping slender
objects such as eating utensils with either hand.” The related task in the service plan
is for the aide to "cut items into bite-size pieces and deliver them from plate to mouth
for the beneficiary.”

2. The same assessment also states. "Effects of a recent stroke cause the beneficiary
to choke or to risk choking unless food is pureed.”

a.  The related task in the service plan is for the aide to "puree foed items for the
beneficiary."

b. A separate statement, "The aide will deliver spoonfuls from plate to mouth for
' the beneficiary." addresses the arthritic condition

E. Observing a beneficiary eat is not a covered service unless DHS professional staff or
contractor(s) designated by DHS certifies in the service plan that failure to cbserve the
beneficiary's eating places the beneficiary at risk of injury or harm.

216.240 Personal Hygiene 1-1-18

A.  The tasks constituting this service are those involved in hands-on assistance with the
beneficiary's personal hygiene. “Personal hygiene” means grooming, shampooing,
shaving, skin care, oral care, brushing or combing of hair, and menstrual hygiene.

1.  An aide's time spent reminding a beneficiary to perform personal hygiene tasks is not
a covered service unless the beneficiary's service plan includes hands-on assistance
with personal hygiene.

2. An aide's time spent observing a beneficiary perform personal hygiene tasks is not a
covered service unless DHS professional staff or contracter(s) designated by DHS
certifies in the service plan that failure to observe the activity places the beneficiary
at risk of injury or harm.

B. Beneficiaries eligible for this service must have a physical dependency preventing or
substantially impairing their ability to perform hair and skin care and groeming, oral
hygiene, shaving and nail care.

Section 1I-24



Personal Care Section

C. The aide's service in regard to this routine is hands-on assistance with personal hygiene
tasks the beneficiary cannot physically perform, according to the detailed physical
dependency needs described in the assessment.

D. The service plan must correlate each required task with its corresponding physical
dependency need. See Sections 215.300 and 215.310.

216.260 Medication 10-13-03

A.  Personal care aide services regarding medication routines are covered only to the extent
that they are permitted by the Arkansas Nurse Practice Act and implementing rules and
regulations.

B. The tasks constituting this service are those involved in hands-on assistance with the
beneficiary’s medications.

C. Beneficiaries eligible for this service must have a physical dependency need preventing or
substantially impairing their ability to safely and correctly dispense and ingest orally
administered prescription medications.

D.  The aide's service in regard to the beneficiary's medication routines is hands-on assistance
with tasks the beneficiary cannot physically perform, according to the detailed physical
dependency needs described in the assessment, as described in the Arkansas State
Board of Nursing Position Statement 97.2.

E. The service plan must correlate each required task with its corresponding physical
dependency need. See Sections 215.300 and 215.310.

216.270 Mobility and Ambulation 10-13-03

A.  The tasks constituting this service are those involved in hands-on assistance with the
beneficiary's mobility and ambulation. “Mobility and ambulation” mean functional mobility
(moving from seated to standing, getting in and out of bed) and mastering the use of
adaptive equipment.

B.  Beneficiaries eligible for this service must have a physical dependency need preventing or
substantially impairing their ability:

1. Toturn themselves in bed,

2. To move from bed to chair {including wheelchair or motorized chair),
3. Towalk (alone or with a device) or

4.  To operate a push wheelchair or a motorized chair.

C. The aide's service in this routine is hands-on assistance with ambulation and mobility tasks
the beneficiary cannot physically perform alone, according to the detailed physical
dependency needs described in the assessment.

D. The service plan must correlate each required task with its corresponding physical
dependency need. See Sections 215.300 and 215.310.

216.310 Incidental Housekeeping 10-13-03

A, "Incidental housekeeping” means cleaning of the floor, and-furniture, and areas that are

directly used by the beneficiary. enJy—m—me—aFea-ef—the-semee-deiweﬁLleeahen-eeeupled

Section I[-25



Personal Care Section

B. The aide's service in regard to incidental housekeeping is hands-on assistance with
covered tasks the beneficiary cannot physically perform, according to the detailed physical
dependency needs described in the assessment.

C. The assessment must describe the impairments that prevent or impede the beneficiary's
ability to move freely and safely about their living area and clean the floor and furniture in
the area they occupy.

D. The service plan must correlate each required task with its corresponding physical
dependency need. See Sections 215.300 and 215.310.

216.330 Shopping 10-13-03

"Shopping” means services to address the beneficiary's physical dependency need by assisting
the beneficiary with shopping or by shopping for the beneficiary.

A.  Assisting a beneficiary with shopping is a covered service only when the beneficiary is
purchasing items that are necessary for the beneficiary's health and maintenance in the
home (such as food, clothing, and other essential items) and that are used primarily by the
beneficiary or, are used primarily by the beneficiary and other Personal Care Program
beneficiaries who reside in the same service delivery location, and whose service plans
include assistance with shopping.

1. The aide's service in regard to shopping is hands-on assistance with covered
shopping tasks the beneficiary cannot physically perform, according to the
beneficiary's physical dependency needs detailed in the assessment

2. The assessment must describe the impairment(s) that prevent or impede the
beneficiary's ability to move freely and safely in stores and perform some or ali of the
shopping tasks necessary to maintain his or her health and comfort.

3. The service pian must correlate each required task with the beneficiary's
corresponding physical dependency need. See Sections 215.300 and 215.310

B. if the service plan requires the aide to shop for the beneficiary:

1. The beneficiary. or the beneficiary's representative, has freedom of choice to
describe the items to be purchased {within the constrainis stated herein) for the
beneficiary's maintenance in the home.

2 The beneficiary has freedom of choice to designate the individual stores at which to
purchase the items.

a.  If the designated stores are within the beneficiary's normal retail service area
the service pian need not identify the specific stores.

b. If the designated stores are cutside the normal retail service area for residents
of the beneficiary's locale, the service plan must include the stores' names and
locations.

C. Ifthere are other members of the beneficiary's household, the service plan must not
include shopping, or assistance with shopping, unless the assessment fully documents all
reasons each household member can neither:

1. Assist with or do the beneficiary's shopping, nor

Section l1-26



Personal Care - Section Il
2. Arrange for someone else to assist with or to do the beneficiary's shopping.
D.  Medicaid provides no additional coverage for an aide's mileage incurred performing
shopping tasks.
216.400 Personal Care Aide Service and Documentation Responsibility 1-1-13

NOTE: This section is not applicable to the IndependentChoices program.

It is the responsibility of the personal care aide to accomplish the following:

A
B.

C.

D.

E.

217.000

Perform authorized tasks as instructed by the supervising RN or QIDPQMRER

Maintain a service log.

1. The service log must be completed at the time services are delivered. In the service
log, it is not necessary to itemize the time spent on each individual ADL or JADL task
for a given beneficiary, provided these tasks were performed by the same personal
care aide in the same visit on the same day and at the same location.

2. Ifthe service log is not completed concurrently with service delivery, coverage may
be denied.

3. Refer to Sections 220.110 through 220.112 for service log requirements.

Provide necessary documentation showing the date, time, location, nature and scope of
authorized services delivered.

Provide necessary documentation showing the date, time, location, nature and scope of
emergency services delivered.

1. If an emergency requires the personal care aide to perform a personal care service
task not included on the personal care service plan, the personal care aide must
receive when possible, prior approval from the supervising registered nurse or
QIDPQMERR to perform the task.

2. When prior approval is not possible, the personal care aide may perform the
emergency service task, but she or he must receive post-service approval from the
supervising registered nurse or QIDPQMER,

3.  Document the circumstances in detail, describing:
a. The nature of the emergency,
b. The action or task required to resolve the emergency and
c.  The justification for the unscheduled service,

If a personal care aide does not perform a particular task scheduled on the service plan,
the personal care aide must document why she or he did not perform the task that day.

Benefit Limits 10-1-12

B.

C.

Medicaid imposes a 64-hour benefit limit, per month, per beneficiary, on personal care aide
services for beneficiaries aged 21 and older.

The 64-hour limitation applies to the monthly aggregated hours of personal care aide

services. atallauthorized locations-except RCFsand ALFs-

This 64-hour limit on personal care services for beneficiaries aged 21 and older is a firm

cap for which there wiil be no extensions or exceptions. Providers-mayrequestextensions

Section 1I-27



Personal Care Section Il

D. The hour limit does not apply to beneficiaries under age 21.

Section [1-28



Personal Care

Section |l

220.100

Service Supervision 10-1-12

Effective for dates of service on and after March 1, 2008, RNs supervising RCF and ALF |
Personal Care providers' personal care aides shall write, in a designated area on form DMS-873,
instructions to aides and comments regarding the beneficiary and/or the aide.

A.  The provider must assure that the delivery of personal care services by personal care
aides is supervised.

Supervision must be performed by a registered nurse (RN).

Alternatively, a Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Mental-Retardation Professional
(QMERQIDP) may fulfill the RN supervision requirement for personal care services
to beneficiaries residing in alternative living situations or alternative family homes,

authorized-or licensed by-the Division-of Developmental Disabilities-Services and

certified by DPSQA as personal care providers

B.  The superviscr has the foliowing responsibilities.

1.

The supervisor must instruct the personal care aide in

a.  Which routines, activities and tasks to perform in executing a beneficiary's
service plan,

The minimum frequency of each routine or activity and

¢.  The maximum number of hours per month of personal care service delivery, as
authorized in the service plan.

At least once a month, the supervisor must
a. Review the aide's records,
b. Document the record review and

¢.  If necessary, further instruct the aide and document the nature of and the
reasons for further instructions.

At least three times every 183 days (six months) at intervals no greater than 62 days,
the supervisor must visit the beneficiary at the service delivery location to conduct
on-site evaluation.

a. Medicaid requires that at least one of these supervisory visits must be when the
aide is not present.

b. Atleast one visit must be while the aide is present and furnishing services.
When the aide is present during the visit the supervising RN or QIDPQMRR must
a. Observe and document

(1) The condition of the beneficiary,

(2) The type and quality of the personal care aide's service provision and

(3) The interaction and relationship between the beneficiary and the aide;

b. Modify the service plan, if necessary, based on the observations and findings
from the visit and

c.  Ifnecessary, further instruct the aide and document the nature of and the
reasons for further instructions.

Section 11-29



Personal Care Section Il

5. When the aide is not present during the visit, the supervising RN or QIDPQMER
miust

a. Observe and document the condition of the beneficiary,

k. Observe and document, from available evidence, the type and quality of the
personal care aide’s service provision, and

c.  Query the beneficiary or the beneficiary’s representative and document
pertinent information regarding the beneficiary's opinicn of

{1) The type and quality of the aide’s service,
{2} The aide’s conduct and
{3) The adequacy of the working relationship of the beneficiary and the aide;

d. Modify the service plan, if necessary. based on observations and findings from
the visit. and

e Further instruct the aide, if necessary. and document the nature of and the
reasons for further instructions.

C. The provider must review the service plan and the aide's records as necessary. but no less
often than every 62 days. The review will ensure that the daily aggregate time estimate in
the service plan accurately reflects the actual average time the aide spends delivering
personal care aide services to a beneficiary.

220.111 Service Log for Multiple Beneficiaries 10-1-12

Effective for dates of service on and after March 1, 2008, the rules in this section do not
apply to RCF and ALF Personal Care providers.

An aide delivering services to two or more beneficiaries at the same service location, during the
same period (discontinuing or interrupting a beneficiary's service plan required tasks to begin or
resume service plan required tasks for another beneficiary, or performing an authorized service
simultaneously for two or more beneficiaries (for example, cleaning a living space used by more
than one beneficiary or preparing a meal that will be eaten by more than one beneficiary), must
comply with the applicable instructions in parts A or B below:

A If providing services for only two beneficiaries, the aide must record in each beneficiary's
service log

1.  The name of each individual for whom they are simultaneously performing personal
care service, and

2. The beginning and ending times of service for each beneficiary and the beginning
and ending times of each interruption and of each resumption of service —and

3. Which services or services were performed simultaneously for more than one
beneficiary.

B. If services are performed in a congregate setting (more than two beneficiaries) the service
fog must state

1. The actual ime of day (clock-time) that the congregate services begin and end; ard

2. The number of individuals, and the name of each individual. both Medicaid-gligible
and non-Medicaid eligible, who received the documented congregate services during
that period;- and

3. Which services or services were performed simultaneously for more than one
beneficiary.

C. For services performed simultaneously for more than one beneficiary, the provider must
split the time among the beneficiaries (for example, if the aide cleaned a bathroom shared

Section 11-30



Personal Care

Section |l

221.000

by two beneficiaries and it took 20 minutes, the aide would document only half of that time
- 10 minutes - for each beneficiary for the task).

If the beneficiaries have different providers and different aides, both providers may not bill
for cleaning a shared living space (e.g., a bathroom) or performing another task that
benefits both beneficiaries (e.g., preparing a meal for both). The providers must determine
which of their aides will be responsible for performing the task. The provider whose aide
did not perform the task may not bill for it.

A provider who knowingly bills twice for the same service or for a service that has been
billed by another provider is committing a fraudulent act and may be referred by DHS to
the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit.

Documentation 1-1-18

NOTE: This section is not applicable to the IndependentChoices program.

Rule D in this section is effective for dates of service on and after March 1, 2008.

The personal care provider must keep and make available to authorized representatives of the
Arkansas Division of Medical Services, the State Medicaid Fraud Control Unit and
representatives of the Department of Health and Human Services and its authorized agents or
officials; records including:

A

If applicable, certification by the Home Health State Survey Agency as a beneficiary in the
Title XVIIl Program. Agencies that provided Medicaid personal care services before July 1,
1986 are exempt from this requirement.

When applicable, copies of pertinent residential care facility license(s) issued by the Office
of Long Term Care.

Medicaid contract.

Effective for dates of service on and after March 1, 2008, RCF Personal Care providers will
be required, when requested by DHS, to provide payroll records to validate service plans
and service logs.

Documents signed by the supervising RN or GIDPQMRER, including:

1. The initial and all subsequent assessments.

2. Instructions to the personal care aide regarding:
a.  The tasks the aide is to perform,
b. The frequency of each task and

c. The maximum number of hours and minutes per month of aide service
authorized by DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS.

3.  Notes arising from the supervisor's visits to the service delivery location, regarding:
a. The condition of the beneficiary,
b. Evaluation of the aide's service performance,
¢.  The beneficiary's evaluation of the aide's service performance and
d.  Difficulties the aide encounters performing any tasks.
4.  The service plan and service plan revisions:
a. The justifications for service plan revisions,

Section 11-31



Personal Care Section Il

b. Justification for emergency, unscheduled tasks and
c. Documentation of prior or post approval of unscheduled tasks.

F Any additional or special documentation required to satisfy or to resolve questions arising
during. from or out of an investigation or audit. "Additionai or special documentation.” refers
to notes, correspondence, written or transcribed consultations with or by other healthcare
professionais (i.e., material in the beneficiary's or provider's records relevant to the
beneficiary's personal care services. but not necessarily specifically mentioned in the
foregoing requirements). "Additional or special documentation,” is not a generic
designation for inadvertent omissions from program palicy. It does not imply and one
should not infer from it that, the State may arbitrarily demand media, material, records or
documentation irrelevant or unrelated to Medicaid Program policy as stated in this manual
and in official program correspondence.

G.  The personal care aide's training records, including:
1. Examination results,
2. SKills test results and
3. Personal care aide cerfification.
H.  The personal care aide's daily service notes for each beneficiary, reflecting:
1. The date of service,

2. The routines performed on that date of service, noted to affirm completion of each
task.

3.  Thetime of day the aide began performing the first service-plan-required task for the
beneficiary;

4.  The time of day the aide stopped performing any service-plan-required task to
perform any non-service-plan-required function;

5. Thetime of day the aide stopped performing any non-service-plan-required function
to resume service-plan-required tasks and

6.  The time of day the aide completed the last service-plan-required task for the day for
that beneficiary.

L Notes, orders and records reflecting the activities of the physician, the supervising RN or
QIDPQMRR, the aide and the beneficiary or the beneficiary's representative; as those
activities affect delivering personal care services.

222100 Personal Care Aide Selection, Training and Continuing Education 1-1-13

NOTE: This section is not applicable to the IndependentChoices program.

A.  The benefictary must receive Medicaid Personal Care services from a certified personal
care aide who is not a member of the beneficiary's family. The Medicatd agency defines,
“a member of the beneficiary's family"” as

1 A spouse.

2 A minor's parent. stepparent, foster parent or anyone acting as a minor's parent.
3. Legal guardian of the person;

4 Attorney-in-fact granted authority to direct the beneficiary's care.

B. Personal care aides must be selected on the basis of such factors as:

Section 11-32



Personal Care

222120

Section I!

1. A sympathetic attitude toward the care of the sick,
2. An ability to read, write and carry out directions and
3. Maturity and ability to deal effectively with the demands of the job.

The personal care provider is responsible for ensuring that personal care aides in its
employ are:

Certified as personal care aides,
Participate in all required in-service training and

3. Maintain at least "satisfactory" competency evaluations from their supervisors in all
personal care tasks they perform.

DMS will deem valid the Certified Personal Care Aide status of an individual with

Personal Care Aide Certification conferred before April 1, 1998, and

2. Documentation of ongoing compliance with Personal Care Program policies in effect
before April 1, 1998, regarding continuing education and competency requirements.

3.  The deemed status will be effective for dates of service on and after April 1, 1998,
conditional upon the certified aide's continuing compliance with program policies.

A qualified training program (see Section 222.110) may waive the training component of
personal care aide certification requirements for individuals who can document previous
experience as personal care aides, nurse's aides or similar occupations requiring the same
skills needed by personal care aides.

1. The qualified training program must verify the individual's previous experience.
2. The individual must pass the personal care aide examinations and skills tests.

Certified Nursing Assistants with current valid credentials are deemed qualified personal
care aides.

Certified Home Health Aides with current valid credentials are deemed qualified personal
care aides.

Personal Care Aide Training Subject Areas 1-1-13
NOTE: This section is not applicable to the IndependentChoices program.

Correct conduct toward beneficiaries, including respect for the beneficiary, the beneficiary's
privacy and the beneficiary's property.

Understanding and following spoken and written instructions.

Communications skills, especially the skills needed to:

1. Interact with beneficiaries,
2. Report relevant and required information to supervisors and

3. Report events accurately to public safety personnel and to emergency and medical
personnel.

Record-keeping, including:

1. The role and importance of record keeping and documentation.

Section 1I-33



Personal Care

Sectio_n I[

z r X

222.140

2. Service documentation requirements and procedures, especially all documentation
Medicaid requires of personal care aides, as described in Medicaid Personal Care
Program policy statements current at the time of the aide's training.

3. Reporting and documenting non-medical observations of beneficiary status.

Reporting and documenting, when pertinent, the beneficiary's observations regarding
their own status.

Recognizing and reporting, to the supervising RN or QIDPQRME, when changes in the
beneficiary's condition or status require the aide to perform tasks differently than
instructed.

State law regarding delegation of nursing tasks to uniicensed personnel as designated by
the Arkansas State Board of Nursing.

Basic elements of body functioning, and the types of changes in body function, easily
recognizable by a layperson, that an aide must report to a supervisor.

Safe transfer techniques and ambulation.

Normal range of motion and positioning.

Recognizing emergencies and knowledge of emergency procedures.
Basic household safety and fire prevention.

Maintaining a clean, safe and healthy environmenit.

Instruction in appropriate and safe techniques in personal hygiene and grooming that
include how to assist the beneficiary with:

Bed bath

Sponge. tub or shower bath
Shampoo; sink, tub or bed
Nail and skin care

Oral hygiene

Toileting and elimination
Shaving

®» N OO s WD

Assistance with eating

[{s]

Assistance with dressing

-
o

Efficient, safe and sanitary meal preparation

—_
—

Dishwashing

—t
N

Basic housekeeping procedures

w

Laundry skills

In-Service Training 11413

NOTE: This section is not applicable to the IndependentChoices program.

Medicaid requires personal care aides to participate in at least twelve (12) hours of in-service
training every twelive (12) months after achieving Personal Care Aide certification.

A

Each in-service training session must be at least 1 hour in length.

Section 11-34



Personal Care

Section I

B.

240.000
A.

D.

240.100

1. When appropriate, in-service training may occur at a personal care service delivery
location when the aide is furnishing personal care services.

2. In-service training at a service delivery site may occur only if the beneficiary or the
beneficiary's representative has given prior written consent for training activities to
occur concurrently with the beneficiary's care.

The Personal Care Program provider agency and the personal care aide must maintain
documentation that they are meeting the in-service training requirement.

PRIOR AUTHORIZATION 1-1-18

The Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care Program requires prior authorization of services in
the home and other locations for all beneficiaries, including beneficiaries participating in
the IndependentChoices Program.

Prior authorization does not guarantee payment for the service.

1. The beneficiary must be Medicaid-eligible on the dates of service and must have
available benefits.

2. The provider must follow the billing procedures in this manual.

The Arkansas Independent Assessment (ARIA) is the assessment instrument used by
registered nurses of the DHS Independent Assessment Contractor to collect information
used in determining the beneficiary’s physical dependency needs for "hands-on” services
with activities of daily living (ADL), and in calculating the number of personal care hours
that can be authorized for the beneficiary. The ARIA system assigns tiers designed to help
further differentiate individuals by need. Each beneficiary is assigned a tier level (0, 1, 2,
or 3} following each assessment or re-assessment.

1. Tier O (zero) indicates the individual's assessed needs, if any, do not support the
need for personal care services.

2. Tiers 1 (one), 2 (two), or 3 (three) indicate the individual’'s assessed needs do
support the need for personal care services.

The Task and Hour Standards will be used by DHS RNs and DHS contractors to calculate
the number of personal care hours that can be authorized for the beneficiary.

Task and Hour Standards (THS)
1. Background on THS

The Arkansas Medicaid Task and Hour Standards (THS) is the written methodology
used by the DHS RNs and DHS contractor RNs to calculate the number of personal
care hours that are reasonable and medically necessary to perform needed ADL and
IADL tasks.

The current DAABHS approved THS is located on the web at [insert website
address]

The THS includes the following four components, described in a grid format:
a. The beneficiary’s Needs Intensity Score (0, 1, 2, or 3) for each task;

b. The number of minutes within the minute range for the Needs Intensity Score that
are reasonable to perform the particular task at the respective Needs Intensity Score;

The frequency with which a task is necessary and reasonably performed; and

The amount of assistance with ADLs and [ADLs provided by other sources, such as
(A) informal caregivers (e.g., relatives, neighbors, and friends), (B) community-based
agencies such as Meals on Wheels, and (C) Medicare or a Medicare Advantage
health plan.

Section II-35



Personal Care Section |l

The THS provides a standardized process for calculating the amount of reasonable,
medically necessary personal care services hours, with the minute ranges and
frequencies, providing the ability to adjust service plans based on unique factors related to
a given beneficiary’s needs, preferences, and risks.

The number of personal care hours/minutes that are authorized for each necessary task by
week/month are calculated by the DHS RN or by the contractor(s} designated by DHS
consistent with the THS grid and based on:

a. Responses by the beneficiary and their representatives to certain relevant questions in
the ARIA assessment instrument, and

b. As appropriate, information obtained by the provider RN during their individualized
service plan meeting with the beneficiary and beneficiary’s representatives or from the
beneficiary’s physician, and submitted by the provider to DHS or to the contractor(s)
designated by DHS.

The Arkansas THS methodology has been reviewed and approved by DHS nurse
leadership and is based on Texas Form 2060 Task/Hour Guide, which has been used to
determine personal attendant service hours in Texas Medicaid home and community-
based services programs for over 20 years.

DAABHS will periodically review the THS grid and may revise it based on, for example,
experience; information from the ARIA assessments and electronic visit verification
systermn; DPSQA audits of providers; and beneficiary and provider feedback. These
revisions could result in different, broader, or narrower minute ranges, frequencies per task
type, and Needs Intensity Scores.

2. Needs Intensity Score:

For each task, the DHS RN or the contractor(s) designated by DHS will assign a Needs
Intensity Score to the beneficiary based on the beneficiary's and/or representative’s
responses to questions during the ARIA assessment and information obtained by the
provider RN during their individualized service plan meeting with the beneficiary and
beneficiary's representative or from the beneficiary’s physician, and submitted by the
provider to DHS or to the contractor(s) designated by DHS. The four Needs Intensity
Scores are defined as follows:

Impairment Score 0 — The beneficiary has no functicnal impairment with regard to
the task and can perform it without assistance.

Impairment Score 1 (Mild): Minimal/mild functional impairment. The beneficiary is
able to conduct activities with minimal difficulty and needs minimal assistance.

Impairment Score 2 (Severe): Extensive/severe functional impairment. The
beneficiary has extensive difficuity carrying out activities and needs extensive
assistance.

Impairment Score 3 {Total): The beneficiary is completely unable to carry out any
part of the activity.

A Needs Intensity Score is separate and distinct from a Tier Level under the ARIA system.
3. Number of minutes allowed for each Needs Intensity Score for each task

The THS grid specifies a minute range for each Needs Intensity Score for each task. For
example, for the bathing task, at Needs Intensity Score 2 the minute range is 15-20 minutes,
and the minute range for the grooming task at Needs Intensity Score 1 is 10-20 minutes. The
DHS RN or contractor(s) designated by DHS will determine the number of minutes within the
range that are appropriate for the beneficiary based on conditions specific to the beneficiary.
For example, if a beneficiary has cognitive or behavioral issues, the maximum number of
minutes in the range for bathing may be warranted. On the other hand, assigning the
maximum number of minutes for grooming might not be appropriate for a beneficiary who is
bald.

Section 11-36



Personal Care Section ll

If the beneficiary has extenuating circumstances and reguires time outside the range (either
more or less) for the task, the DHS RN or designated contractor RN must obtain supervisory
approval. For supervisory approval, the RN must document the participant’s extenuating
circumstances and justify the need for minutes outside the range. The justification of need
must be based solely on the participant’s assessed or observed medical needs, and may not
be for the convenience of a service provider or attendant. The request must be in writing
{written or email) and the supervisor's approval or disapproval must be in writing. If the
extenuating circumstances are expected to be temporary, the personal care prior
authorization or ARChoices PCSP must identify a date by which the deviation from the
minute range will cease. Documentation of the request and the approval/disapproval must be
filed with the personal care prior authorization or PCSP.

4. The frequency with which a task is performed

The THS methodology takes into account the frequency with which each ADL and IADL is
performed and reascnably necessary. The frequency with which a given task is performed
for a beneficiary will be determined based on the ARIA assessment results and information
obtained by the provider RN during their individualized service plan meeting with the
beneficiary and beneficiary's representative or from the beneficiary’s physician, and
submitted by the provider to DHS or to the contractor(s} designated by DHS.

5. The amount of assistance with ADLs and IADLs provided by other sources

Personal care services are not available for assistance that is needed but provided by other
sources. Therefore, the THS grid includes fields, by task, for the number of minutes of
support provided by other sources.

If instances of a needed assistance with an ADL or IADL are generally provided through
another source, then personal care services are not necessary and no time for that task is
included. When another source is available to provide some instances of a needed ADL or
IADL task, the freguency and time associated with these other sources are adjusted to
correspond with the remaining assessed needs.

The amount of support with ADLs and IADLs provided by other sources is informed by the
ARIA assessment results and information obtained by the provider RN during their
individualized service plan meeting with the beneficiary and beneficiary’s representative or
from the beneficiary’s physician, and submitted by the provider to DHS or to the contractor(s)
designated by DHS.

Other sources include informal caregivers (e.g., daughter or neighbor), community-based
services such as Meals on Wheels, and services available through Medicare (e.q., Medicare
home health aide services) or a Medicare Advantage health plan (e.g., supplemental
services). Other support is calculated for each task based on how much support is provided
with the task (e.g., the beneficiary’s daughter bathes her mother once a week and prepares
all meals on weekends). For example, where a needed meal is supplied by Meals on
Wheels, minutes for meal preparation may not be necessary and should be adjusted.

6. Calculation of total hours of personal care per month

The final step in the methodology is to add up the total minutes per week for each task. That
total is converted to hours per week by dividing the number of minutes by 60. Monthly total
hours can be calculated by multiplying the {otal weekly hour amount by 4.334. This monthly
hourly value is the maximum number of personal care hours approved for the beneficiary for
a month.

241.000 Personal Care Program Prior Authorization (PA) Responsibility 1-1-18

A

DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS are responsible for prior
authorization of personal care services for beneficiaries.

DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS reviews the personal care
provider's completed form designated by DHS-request—and submitted documentation for

Section II-37



Personal Care Section Il

personal care services, Based on the information in the ARIA assessment and the form
designated by DHS, Ferapproved-services; they authorize a set amount of service time
per month (expressed in service-time increments, four per hour) and issue a prior
authorization control number (PA Number) for the approved service.

C. DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS have a right to review the
beneficiary’s medical information.

242.000 Personal Care PA Request Procedure 11418

A.  Providers must use pages—tHthrough-8-of form-BMS-618-the form designated by DHS to
request PA. View or print the form DMS-618 (English) form designated by DHS. View
or print form DMS-618 the form designated by DHS (Spanish).

B. Requests for prior authorization must be submitted within thirty calendar days of the start
of care. Approvals for beneficiaries who are assessed at Tier 1, 2, or 3 wilt be retroactive
to the beginning date of service if the request is received within the 30-day time frame.
There will be no prior authorization, including any retroactive prior authorization, if the
beneficiary is assessed at Tier 0.

C. Mailorfaxthe-required-desuments-Providers should submit prior authorization forms to

PHS-prefessieral-staff-or the contractor(s) designated by DHS, or if there is no contractor
designated by DHS, to DHS professional staff.

243.000 Provider Notification Procedure 1-1-18

Reviews will be completed by DHS professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS within
fifteen (15) working days of receipt of a complete PA request.

A.  Forapproved cases. an approval letter will be mailed to the requesting provider, detailing
the procedure codes approved, total number of service time increments, beginning and
ending dates and the authorization number

B.  Fordenied or partially denied cases, a denial letter with reason for denial will be mailed to
the beneficiary and the requesting provider. The letter shall specify why the prior
authorization request was denied or partially denied and shall give the beneficiary notice of
the right to file a request for a fair hearing and where to file the request. Reconsideration of
the denial may be requested within thirty calendar days of the denial date. Requests for
reconsideration must be made in writing and include additional documentation.

244.000 Duration of PA 1118

A, Personal Care PAs are generally assigned for 12 six months or for the life of the service
plan, whichever is shorter, unless the beneficiary has a change in condition.

B

245.000 Provider Process for Reconsideration of PA Determination 7-1-16

Section 11-38



Personal Care Section Il

Reconsideration of a denial may be requested within thirty calendar days of the denial date.
Reconsideration requests must be made in writing to

Organization DHS professional staff or the contractor(s) designated by DHS and must include
additional documentation to substantiate the medical necessity of the requested services.

If the decision is reversed during the reconsideration review, an approval is forwarded to all
relevant parties specifying the approved units and services. If the denial is upheld, the- Q10 DHS
professional staff or the contractor(s) designated by DHS issues a written notification of the
decision to the beneficiary and provider. View or print contractor contact information.

246.000 Beneficiary Process for Appeal of PA Determination 10-1-08

When the beneficiary receives an adverse decision concerning a request for PA determination is

recelved-from-the-reviewing-QIO, the beneficiary may request a fair hearing of the

reconsideration decision of the denial of services from the Department of Human Services.

The appeal request must be in writing and received by the Appeals and Hearings Section of the
Department of Human Services within thirty days of the date on the letter from the-QI0 DHS
professional staff or contractor(s) designated by DHS explaining the denial. Appeal requests
must be submitted to the Department of Human Services, Appeals and Hearings Section. View
or print the Department of Human Services, Appeals and Hearings Section contact

information.
250.000 REIMBURSEMENT
250.100 Reimbursement Methods 10-1-12

A. Reimbursement for personal care services is the lesser of the billed amount per unit of
service or Medicaid’'s maximum allowable fee (herein also referred to as “rate” or "the
rate”) per unit.

B. Reimbursement for Arkansas Medicaid Personal Care services is based on a 15-minute
unit of service.

C.  Effectivefordates-of service-on-and-afterMareh-1,2008. RCF Personal Care provider
reimbursement is in accordance with a muiti-hour daily service rate system, employing
Medicaid maximum allowable fees (Daily Service Rates) determined by individual
beneficiaries’ Levelsof Care Payment Levels

D. Effective-fordates-of serdce-on-or-afterOctober1-2012. ALF Personal Care provider
reimbursement is in accordance with a multi-hour daily service rate system, employing
Medicaid maximum allowable fees (Daily Service Rates) determined by individual
beneficiaries’ Levelsef Care Payment Levels. This excludes the Living Choices Assisted
Living waiver beneficiaries.

250.200 RCF and ALF Personal Care Reimbursement Methodology 10-1-12

A The RCF and ALF Personal Care reimbursement methodology is designed with the intent
that reimbursement under the multi-hour Daily Service Rate system closely approximates
what reimbursement would have been if the providers were to have billed by units of
service furnished.

B.  Whenever the unit rate (i.e., the maximum allowable amount per fifteen minutes service)
for personal care services changes, Daily Service Rates under the RCF and ALF
methodology are correspondingly adjusted in accordance with the initial methodology by
which they were established and which is described in detail in the following sections.

Section 11-39



I_°ersona| Care Section III

C. The Daily Service Rate paid for personal care services is based on a Level-ofCare
Payment Level determined from the resident's service plan.
250.210 Level-of-Care Payment Level 10-1-12

There are 10 Levels-of Care Payment Levels, each based on the average number of 15-minute
units of service per month required to fulfill a beneficiary’s service plan.

A. Level 1 includes RCF and ALF Personal Care beneficiaries whose service plans comprise
100 units or less per month of medically necessary personal care.

B. Level 10 includes RCF and ALF Personal Care beneficiaries whose service plans
comprise 256 or more units per month of medically necessary personal care.

C. Level 2 through Level 9 were established in equal increments between 101 and 255 units
per month,

250.211 Level-of Care Payment Level Determination 10-1-12

A.  The average of a service plan's monthly units of service is used to determine each
beneficiary’'s Level-ef-Care Payment Level.

B. Calculate a beneficiary’s average number of monthly units of personai care as follows.

1 Add the mirimum-and-maxmum-heurly Weekly Minute Totals from the prior
authorization approved by DHS using the Task and Hour Standards. a—eempleted

22. Divide the minutes by 15 {15 minutes equals one unit of service) to calculate weekly
average units of service. '

34. Multiply the weekly average units from step 23 by 52 (Weeks in a year) and divide
the product by 12 (Months in a year) to calculate monthly average units of service.

45. Consult the “RCF and ALF Persona! Care Service Rate Schedule” on the Arkansas
Medicaid Personal Care Fee Schedule to find the applicable Daily Multi-Hour Service
Rate for each Levelof Care Payment Level. Procedure code 71020 is the appiicable
code for RCF and ALF Personal Care providers.

250.212 Rate Development 3-1-08
A.  The Level 1 Daily Service Rate was calculated as follows.

Multiplied 100 { 15-minute units) by 12 (Months in a year)

2. Divided units per year calcuiated in step 1 by 365 (The average number of days in a
year) to calculate average units per day

3. Multiplied average units {Unrounded) per day cobtained in step 2 by the current
Personal Care maximum allowable fee per unit and rounded the produci to the
nearest 100" to calculate the Level | Daily Service Rate

B. The Level 10 Daily Service Rate was calculaied as follows.

1. Multiplied 256 {Maximum monthly units) by 12 (Months per year)

Section 11-40



Personal Care Section Il

2, Divided the product calculated in step 1 by 365 (The average number of days in a
year) to calculate average maximum units per day

3. Multiplied average maximum units per day from step 2 by the current Personal Care
maximum allowable fee per unit and rounded the product to the nearest 100" to
calculate the Level 10 Daily Service Rate

C.  The Daily Service Rates for Level 2 through Level 9 were calculated as follows.

1. The difference between 255 and 101 (154) was divided into eight equal increments
that then were designated Levelsof Care Payment Levels (“Levels”) 2 through 9.

2. The sum of the beginning and ending values within each LevelstCare Payment
Level was divided by 2 to calculate the Level's average units per month.

3. The average units per month was multiplied by 12 (Months per year) to caiculate
average annual units.

4.  The average annual units calculated in step 3 was divided by 365 (The average
number of days in a year) to arrive at average units per day.

5. The average units per day calculated in step 4 was multiplied by the current Personal
Care maximum allowable fee per unit and the product was rounded to the nearest
100t

Section I1-41



Personal Care

Secti_on III

251121 Fee Schedules

Arkansas Medicaid provides fee schedules on the Arkansas Medicaid website. The fee

schedule link is located at https://medicaid.mmis.arkansas.gov

fee-for-semce relmbursement methodology

12112

under the provider manual section. The fees represent the

Fee schedules do not address coverage limitations or special instructions applied by Arkansas

Medicaid before final payment is determined.

Procedure codes and/or fee schedules do not guarantee payment, coverage or amount allowed.
Information may be changed or updated at any time to correct a discrepancy and/or error.
Arkansas Medicaid always reimburses the lesser of the amount billed or the Medicaid maximum.

262101 Personal Care for a Beneficiary Aged 21 or Older (Non-RCF) 3-1-08

Procedure Code Modifier

Service Description

T1019 us Personal Care for a non-RCF Beneficiary Aged 21 or
Older, per 15 minutes (requires prior authorization)
262104 Personal Care in an RCF or ALF 10-1-12

A. Tobill for RCF or ALF Personai Care, use HCPCS procedure code T1020 and the modifier
corresponding to the beneficiary's Levelof Care Payment Level in effect for the date(s) of

service being billed

B. The LevelefCare Payment Level that a provider bills must be consistent with the
beneficiary’s service plan in effect on the day that the provider furnished the personal care

services billed.

Level of Care Payment Level Specifications and Modifiers for Procedure

Code T1020
Payment Levels  Minimum Maximum Modifier
Levreleof Capn Service Units Service Units
Level 1 Less than 100 100 U1
Level 2 101 119 u2
Level 3 120 139 U3
Level 4 140 168 U4
Level 5 159 177 us
Level 6 178 196 Us
- Level 7 197 216 u7
Level 8 217 235 us
Level 9 236 255 ue
Level 10 256 256 UA

Section 11-42



Personal Care

Section ll

262.108

Employment-Related Personal Care Qutside the Home 10-1-07

Procedure Code Modifier

Service Description

Employment-related personal care outside the home,

T1019 us
beneficiary aged 16 or older, per 15 minutes. Fhis
wnaderage-21-All personal care services reguire prior
authorization
262.410 Completing a CMS-1500 Claim Form for Personal Care 1-118

When a provider must bill on a paper claim, the fiscal agent accepts only red-lined, sensor-coded
CMS-1500 claim forms. Claim photocopies and claim forms that are not sensor-coded cannot be
processed.

Field Name and Number

Instructions for Completion

1.

1a.

(type of coverage)

INSURED’S I.D. NUMBER
{For Program in Item 1)

Not required.

Beneficiary's 10-digit Medicaid or ARKids First-A
identification number.

PATIENT'S NAME (Last
Name, First Name, Middle
Initial}

Beneficiary’s last name and first name.

PATIENT'S BIRTH DATE

SEX

Beneficiary’s date of birth as given on the individual's
Medicaid or ARKids First-A identification card.
Format: MM/DD/YY.

Check M for male or F for female.

INSURED'S NAME (Last
Name, First Name, Middle
initial)

Required if insurance affects this claim. Insured’s last
name, first name and middle initial.

PATIENT'S ADDRESS (No.,
Street)

CITY
STATE

ZIP CODE

TELEPHONE (Include Area
Code)

Optional. Beneficiary's complete mailing address
(street address or post office box).

iName of the city in which the beneficiary resides.

Two-letter postal code for the state in which the
beneficiary resides.

Five-digif ZIP code; nine digits for post office box.

The beneficiary’s telephone number or the number of
a reliable message/contact/ emergency telephone

PATIENT RELATIONSHIP TO
INSURED

If insurance affects this claim, check the box
indicating the patient’s relationship to the insured.

INSURED'S ADDRESS (No.,
Street)

CITY
STATE

Required if the insured’'s address is different from the
patient's address.

" Section 11-43



Personal Care

Section li

Field Name and Number

Instructions for Completion

ZIP CODE

TELEPHONE ({Include Area
Code)

8. RESERVED Reserved for NUCC use.

9. OTHER INSURED'S NAME If patient has other insurance coverage as indicated
(Last name, First Name, in Field 11d, the other insured’s last name, first name
Middle Initial) and middle initial.

a. OTHER INSURED'S Policy and/or group number of the insured individual.
POLICY OR GROUP
NUMBER

b. RESERVED Reserved for NUCC use.
SEX Not required.

c. EMPLOYER'S NAME OR Required when items 9a and d are required. Name of
SCHOOL NAME the insured individual's empioyer andfor school.

d. INSURANCE PLAN Name of the insurance company.
NAME OR PROGRAM
NAME

10. IS PATIENT'S CONDITION
RELATED TO:

a. EMPLOYMENT? (Current
or Previous)

b AUTO ACCIDENT?
PLACE (State)

¢. OTHER ACCIDENT?

d. CLAIM CODES

Check YES or NO.

Required when an auto accident is related to the
services. Check YES or NO.

If 10b is YES, the two-letter postal abbreviation for
the state in which the automobile accident took place.

Required when an accident other than automaobile is
related to the services. Check YES or NO.

The “Claim Codes” identify additional information
about the beneficiary's condition or the claim. When
applicable, use the Claim Code to report appropriate
claim codes as designated by the NUCC. When
required to provide the subset of Condition Codes,
enter the condition code in this field. The subset of
approved Condition codes is found at www.nucc.org
under Code Sets.

11.

INSURED'S POLICY GRQUP
OR FECA NUMBER

a. INSURED’S DATE OF
BIRTH

SEX

b. OTHER CLAIMID
NUMBER

Gc. INSURANCE PLAN
NAME OR PROGRAM
NAME

Not required when Medicaid is the only payer.
Not required.

Not required.
Not required.

Not required.

Section ll-44



Personal Care

Section Il

Field Name and Number

Instructions for Completion

d. IS THERE ANOTHER
HEALTH BENEFIT

When private or other insurance may or will cover
any of the services, check YES and complete items

PLAN? 9, 9a, 9¢ and 9d.0nly one box can be marked.
12. PATIENT'S OR AUTHORIZED Enter “Signature on File,” “SOF” or legal signature.
PERSON'S SIGNATURE
13. INSURED’'S OR Enter “Signature on File,” "SOF” or legal signature.

AUTHORIZED PERSON’S
SIGNATURE

14.

DATE OF CURRENT:

ILLNESS {First symptom) OR
INJURY (Accident) OR
PREGNANCY (LMP)

Required when services furnished are related to an
accident, whether the accident is recent or in the
past. Date of the accident.

Enter the qualifier to the right of the vertical dotted
line. Use Qualifier 431 Onset of Current Symptoms or
lliness ; 484 Last Menstrual Period.

15. OTHER DATE Enter another date related to the beneficiary’s
condition or treatment. Enter the qualifier between the
left-hand set of vertical, dotted lines.

The “Other Date" identifies additional date information
about the beneficiary’s condition or treatment. Use
qualifiers:
454 |nitial Treatment
304 Latest Visit or Consultation
453 Acute Manifestation of a Chronic Condition
439 Accident
455 Last X-Ray
471 Prescription
090 Report Start (Assumed Care Date)
091 Report End (Relinquished Care Date)
444 First Visit or Consultation
16. DATES PATIENT UNABLE TO Noft required.

WORK IN CURRENT
OCCUPATION

17.

NAME OF REFERRING
PROVIDER OR OTHER
SOURCE

Name and title of the referral source.

Enter NPI of the referring physician.

17a. {blank) Not required.
17b. NPI
18. HOSPITALIZATION DATES Nof applicable.

RELATED TO CURRENT
SERVICES

| OCAL EDUCATIONAL
AGENCY (LEA) NUMBER

Insert LEA number.

OUTSIDE LAB?

Not required.

Section I1-45



Personal Care

Section Il

Field Name and Number

Instructions for Completion

$ CHARGES

Not required.

21. DIAGNOSIS OR NATURE OF
ILLNESS OR INJURY

Enter the applicable ICD indicator to identify which
version of ICD codes is being reported.

Use “@” for ICD-9-CM.
Use “0” for ICD-10-CM.

Enter the indicator between the vartical, dotted lines
in the upper right-hand portion of the field.

Diagnosis code for the primary medical condition for
which services are being billed. Use the appropriate
International Classification of Diseases (ICD). List no
more than 12 diagnosis codes. Relate lines A-L to the
lines of service in 24E by the letter of the line. Use
the highest level of specificity.

22. RESUBMISSION CODE

ORIGINAL REF. NO.

Reserved for future use.

Any data or other information listed in this field does
not/will not adjust, void or otherwise modify any
previous payment or denial of a claim. Claim payment
adjustments, voids and refunds must follow
previously established processes in policy.

23. PRIOR AUTHORIZATION
NUMBER

The prior authorization erbenefit-exdension-control
number wher-applicable.

24A. DATE(S) OF SERVICE

B. PLACE OF SERVICE
C. EMG

D. PROCEDURES.
SERVICES, OR
SUPPLIES

CPT/HCPCS
MODIFIER

The "from” and “to” dates of service for each billed
service. Format: MM/DD/YY,

1. On a single claim detail {one charge on one line),
bill only for services provided within a single
calendar month.

2. A provider may bili on the same claim detail for
two or more sequential dates of service within the
same calendar month when the provider
furnished equal amounts of service on each day
of the date sequence.

3. RCFs may bill for a date span of any length within
the same calendar month, provided the
beneficiary was present every day of the date
span and all services provided within the date
span were at the same Levelof Care Payment
Level

Two-digit national standard place of service code.

Enter “Y” for "Yes” or leave blank if “No.” EMG
identifies if the service was an emergency.

One CPT or HCPCS procedure code for each detail.
Modifier(s) when applicable.

Section I1-48



Personal Care

Section Il

Field Name and Number

Instructions for Completion

E. DIAGNOSIS POINTER

F. $CHARGES

G. DAYS ORUNITS

H. EPSDT/Family Plan

. IDQUAL

J.  RENDERING PROVIDER
ID#

NPI

Enter the diagnosis code reference letter (pointer) as
shown in ltem Number 21 to relate to the date of
service and the procedures performed to the primary
diagnosis. When multiple services are performed, the
primary reference letter for each service should be
listed first; other applicable services shouid follow.
The reference letter(s) should be A-L or multiple
letters as applicable. The “Diagnosis Pointer” is the
line letter from Itern Number 21 that relates to the
reason the service(s) was performed.

The full charge for the services totaled in the detail.
This charge must be the usual charge to any
beneficiary patient, or other recipient of the provider's
services.

RCFs' charges should equal no less than the product
of the number of units (days) times the beneficiary's
Daily Service Rate. If the charge is less, Medicaid will
pay the billed charge.

The units (in whole numbers) of service provided
during the period indicated in Field 24A of the detail.

Enter E if the services resulted from a Child Health
Services (EPSDT) screening and referral.

Not required.

Enter the 9-digit Arkansas Medicaid provider ID
number of the individual who furnished the services
billed for in the detail or

Enter NPI of the individual who furnished the services
billed for in the detail.

25.

FEDERAL TAX |.D. NUMBER

Not required. This information is carried in the
provider's Medicaid file. If it changes, advise Provider
Enrollment so that the year-end 1099 will be correct
and reported correctly.

26.

PATIENT'S ACCOUNT NO.

Optional entry for providers’ accounting and account-
retrieval purposes. Enter up to 16 numeric, alphabetic
or alpha-numeric characters. This character set
appears on the Remittance Advice as "MRN.”

27.

ACCEPT ASSIGNMENT?

Not required. Assignment is automatically accepted
by the provider when billing Medicaid.

28.

TOTAL CHARGE

Total of Column 24F—the sum of all charges on the
claim.

29.

AMOUNT PAID

Enter the total of payments received from other
sources on this claim. Do not include amounts
previously paid by Medicaid.

30.

RESERVED

Reserved for NUCC use.

Section H-47



Personal Care

Section Il_

Field Name and Number

Instructions for Completion

31. SIGNATURE OF PROVIDER

The performing provider or an individua! authorized
by the performing provider or by an institutional,
corporate, business or other provider organization,
must sign and date the claim. certifying that the
services were furnished by the provider, under {when
applicable) the direction of the individual provider or
other qualified individual, and in strict and verifiable
accordance with all applicable rules of the Medicaid
program in which the provider participates. A
“provider’s signature” is the provider’s or authorized
individual’s personally written signature, a rubber
stamp of the signature, an automated signature or a
typed signafure. The name of a group practice. a
facility or institution, a corporation, a business or any
other organization will prevent the claim from being
processed.

32. SERVICE FACILITY
LOCATION INFORMATION

If services were not performed at the beneficiary’s
home or at the provider's facility (e.g., school, DDS
faciity etc.) enter the name, street address, city, state
and zip code of the facility, workplace etc. where
services were performed. If services were furnished
at multiple sites (for instance, when job-seeking),
indicate “multiple locations™ or leave blank.

a. (blank) Not required.
b. {blank) Not required.

33. BILLING PROVIDER INFO & Billing previder's name and compliete address.
PH # Telephone number is requested but not required.
a. (blank) Enter NP! of the killing provider or
b. (blank) Enter the 9-digit Arkansas Medicaid provider ID

number of the billing provider.

Section 11-48



STATE PLAN UNDER TITLE XIX OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT ATTACHMENT 3.1-A
MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM Page 10aa
STATE: ARKANSAS

AMOUNT, DURATION AND SCOPE OF
SERVICES PROVIDED Revised: January 1, 20482019

CATEGORICALLY NEEDY

26. Personal Care

A.

B

Personal care services are provided by a personal care aide to assist with a client's physical dependency
needs. The personal care aide must have at least 24 hours classroom training and a minimum of supervised
practical training of 16 hours provided by or under the supervision of a registered nurse for a total of no less
than 40 hours.

Personal care services furnished to an individual who is not an inpatient or resident of a hospital, nursing
facility, intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities, or institution for mental discase
that are —

1. Authorized for the individual in accordance with a service plan approved by the State;

2. Provided by an individual who is qualified to provide such services and who is not a member of the
individual’s family, and

3. Furnished in a home, and at the State’s option, in another location, including licensed residential care
facilities and licensed assisted living facilities.

The State defines “a member of the individual’s family™ as:

A spouse,

A nunor’s parent, stepparent, foster parent or anvone acting as a minor’s parent,

A minor’s “guardian ofthe person” or anyone acting as a minor’s “*guardian of the person” or
An adult’s “guardian of the person™ or anyvone acting as an adult’s “guardian of the person™.

TR

Under no circumstances may Medicaid reimbursement be made for personal care services rendered by the
client’s:

1. Legal suardian; or
2. Attorney-in-fact granted authority o direct the client’s care

Personal care services are covered for categorically needy individuals only.

Personal care services are medically necessary, prescribed services to assist clients with their physical
dependency needs.

1. Personal care services involve “hands-on™ assistance, by a personal care aide, with a client’s physical
dependency needs {(as opposed to purely housekeeping services). Personal care services also include
emulovment-related personal care associated with transportation,

2. The tasks the aide performs are similar to those that a nurse’s aide would normally perform if the client
were in a hospital or nursing facility.

Prior authorization is required for personal care pursuant to the Independent Assessment for all
beneficiaries. Personal care services for adults 21 vears of age or older are limited to a maximum
of 64 hours per calendar month.

NOV 15 2018

=45U OF
LE 7. A VIVE RESEARCH







Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE} Section Il

SECTION Il -PROGRAM OF ALL-INCLUSIVE CARE FOR THE
ELDERLY (PACE)

CONTENTS

200.000 PROGRAM OF ALL-INCLUSIVE CARE FOR THE ELDERLY (PACE) GENERAL

INFORMATION

201.000 Arkansas Medicaid Participation Requirements for Providers of the Program of All-
Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE)

201.100 PACE Provider Enrollment Requirements

202.000 Staff Requirements (42 CFR §460.64)

202.100  Staff Training (42 CFR §460.66) RE C E gv E Q

202,200 Staff Oversight Responsibility (42 CFR §460.71) :

203.000 Office of Medicaid Inspector General

203.100 Infection Control (42 CFR §460.74) OCT 09 2013

203.200 Transportation Services (42 CFR §460.76)

203.300 Dietary Services (42 CFR §460.78) BUREAU CF
204.000  Participant Eligibility LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH

204.100 Non-Medical Criteria

204.200 Medical Criteria

205.000 Records PACE Providers Are Required to Keep (42 CFR §460.210)
205.100 Retention of Records

205.200 Documentation Requirements (42 CFR §460.210)

205.300  Medicaid Field Audit Review of Records

210.000 PROGRAM COVERAGE

211.000 Scope (42 CFR §460.92)

211100 Emergency Care

211.200  Exclusions

212.000 Participant Enrollment/Disenroliment
212.100  PACE Enroliment

212.200 Disenrollment

215.000 Interdisciplinary Teams

215100 Composition of the PACE Interdisciplinary Team (42 CFR §460.102)
215200 Assessment/Treatment Plan

215.300 PACE Participant Appeal Process

220.000 Quality Assurance and Monitoring Activities
220.100  Monitoring by the Office of Long Term Care
220.200 Reserved

220200 Mosledag e R Euasedear
220.400 Monitoring by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and the State
Administering Agency (SAA)
221.000  Electronic Signatures
230.000 PRIOR AUTHORIZATION
240.000 REIMBURSEMENT

241.000 Method of Reimbursement
242,000 Rate Appeal Process

201.100 PACE Provider Enroliment Requirements 5-1-08

To ensure quality and continuity of care, all PACE providers approved to receive Medicaid
reimbursement for services provided must meet specific qualifications. PACE providers must
meet the Provider Participation and enrollment requirements contained within Section 140.000 of

Section lI-1



Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) Section Il

this manual as well as the following criteria to be eligible to participate in the Arkansas Medicaid
Pragram:

A

204.200

PACE providers musl be cerlilied by the Bivisien-of-Aging-and-Adult Sepvices{DAAS)
Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance (DPSQA) as having met all Centers
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved provider criteria for the service(s)
they wish fo enroll to provide.

Certification by the Divisien-cf Aging-ahd-Adult-ServicesDivision-of-Agingand-Adult
Services{DAAS} Division of Provider Services and Quality Assurance {DPSQA) does
not guarantee enroliment in the Medicaid program.

All providers must maintain their provider files at the Provider Enroliment-Unit by submitting
current certification, licensure, etc., all PAASDPSQA-issued certifitation I‘EﬂEwaIs and any
other renewals affecting their status as a Medicaid-eligible prowder :

Copies of certifications and renewals required by BMSDPSQA m“ust be malntamed by
BAASDPSCA to avoid foss of provider certification. HE, %5

A PACE provider application must be approved by the Centers for Medlcare and Medicaid
Services (CMS) and BAAS-the Division of Aging, Adulf, and Behavmral Health Sarvices
(DAABHS). Failure to submit a PACE provider application to DAABHS:at the same time or
prior to submitting the application to CMS shall constituts. u.ounds fo; {}AABHS denying or
delaying approval of the application. L £

A three-way Provider Agreement must be 31gned by %he—BMS—DAABH‘% CMS, and the
provider. . .

The PACE Organization must be Ilcensed by the Arkansas Department of Human
Services, Division of Provider Sewlces and Quality Assurance Leng Temm-Care-Section,
as an Adult Day Health Care =,

= Medical Criteria 1-113

PACE partlcmants must meet one of the following criteria:

The mdmduai is unab!e to perform either of the following:

A.

‘At Ieas’t one (1) of the three (3) activities of daily living (ADL) of transferring and/or

Iocom_otlon eating or toileting without extensive assistance from or total dependence upon
another person; er;

At least two (2) of the three (3) activities of daily living (ADL) of transferring and/or
locomotion, eating or toileting without limited assistance from another person;

Medical-acsessment resulis-in-a-score of three-ormerc or-Gegnitive Peformance Seals
The individual has a primary or secondary diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease or related
dementia and is cognitively impaired so as to require substantizl supervision from another
individual because he or she engages in inappropriate behaviors which pose serious
health or safsty hazards to himself or others; or

Medical-assessmentresulis-in-a-Changes-in-Health- Erd-Stage Disease end-Symptoms
and-Signs{CHESS) score-of thres-ormere—The individual has & diagnosed medical

Section -2



Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) Section Il

condition which requires monitoring or assessment at least once a day by a licensed
medical professional and the condition, if untroatod, would be life-threatening.;

E. Individuals diagnosed with a serious mental illness or mental retardation are not eligible for
the Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly unless they have medical needs unrelated
{o the diagnosis of mental illness or mental retardation and meet the other qualifying
criteria. A diagnosis of severe mental illness or mental retardation must not bar eligibility
for individuals having medical needs unrelated to the diagnosis of serious mental illness or
mental retardation when they meet the other qualifying criteria.

212.100 PACE Enroliment b ) 5-1-08

Participant enrolliment into the PACE Program is voluntary Prospective F’ACE benef ciaries may
apply for PACE services through their local DHS county offices, Apphcants may apply by referral
from the PACE provider, by referral from a DHS RN, or without & referral from any source.
Regardless of the origin of the inquiry, the prosyectlve part|0|pan1 must meet the medical and
financial eligibility criteria.

If the prospective PACE beneficiary makes the: ml_tlal inquiry with the PACE provider or the DHS-
RN, the provider or RN will instruct the appllcant_tn ‘make application at the local DHS county
office for a determination of flnancial ehglblhiy §1e local DHS county office will make the proper

: Ofﬁce of Long Term Care, Division of Provider
Services and Quality Assurance, of the ﬁepartment of Human Services must determine, based
on the functional assessment eenducted by the‘independent Assessment Contractor, that
assess the potential enrollee andag#ee—ﬂaat—heer—she meets the requirements for nursing facility
care prior to enrollment: The Department of Human Services (DHS)-RN must certify that an
assessment has been compieted and that it is safe for the participant to live in the community.
The DHS-RN will notify the focal DHS county office and the Provider Organization (PO) that all
requnremeﬁts have been met

The PACE pmwder musf explaln to the potential enrollee that enrollment in PACE results in

disenroliment in any other Medicare or Medicaid plan and the provider is required to complete an

intensive assessmeni that includes a minimum of one home visit and one visit by the potential
nrqijge to the F’ACE center unless otherwise approved by CMS.

212.200 “Disenrollment 5-1-08
Participantsumay voluntarily disenroll from the PACE program at any time for any reason.

Participants may be involuntarily disenrolled due to:

A. Participant’s failure to pay if he or she has a payment responsibility
B Participant’s disruptive or threatening behavior

C. Participant moves out of the PACE service delivery area

D

Participant no longer meets the nursing facility level of care requirement

Section 11-3



Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) Section Il

E. The PACE program agreement with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(CMS) and the state is not renewed

F.  The PACE organization cannot provide the required services due to loss of licensure or
contracts with outside providers

To involuntarily disenroll a participant, the PACE Organization must obtain the prior review and
approval of the Department of Human Services. The request to disenroll a participant and
documentation to support the request must be sent to the DHS-RN. The DHS- RN will review
the request and corresponding documentation and will make a recommendation to the DHS- RN
Supervisor and DHS PACE Program Manager regarding whether the PACE Organization should
proceed with the involuntary disenroliment. The DHS-RN Supetvisor, in consultation with PACE
Program management will make a fina! determination regarding the appropnateness of the
involuntary disenrollment and will notify the PACE Organization and the DHS- RN

The PACE Organization may request an administrative recon5|derat|on pursuant tc Section
190.003. A request for administrative reconsideration must be directed to the. Erisionof-Aging
and-Adult-Servses-(BAAS) Division for Aging, Adult, and Behaworal Health Services
(BAASDAABHS).

215.000 Interdisciplinary Teams B 4-1-08

The PACE interdisciplinary team must meet regularly as lndlcated in the meder Agreement
between the PO, CMS, and BAASDAABHS to provide overall assessment of care needs and
subseqguent management, supervision and provismn of care for eligible individuals.

215.200 Assessment/Treatment Plan 1-1-13

An interdisciplinary team is responmble for assessment treatment pianning and care defivery
after the Independent Assessment Cortractor has completed an initial assessment using the
ARIA assessment instrumentio de*ermme the individual's functional needs and eligibility for

nursing facility level of care DH%-ﬁN—ha&eemple{ed%he-ﬁmaLehg@htyassessmth—fepmmng
faemty—level-ef—ses«:- The team must meet the following assessment requirements:

A.  Aninitial in- person comprehenswe assessment must be completed promptly following
enroument by the e

_ F’ru'nary care physman
Registéred nurse,
Maéter’sJéyel social worker,

* Physical therapist,
chﬁpia'tional therapist,

Recreational therapist or activity coordinator,

e IR S R N N

Dietitian and

8. Home care coordinator.

B.  Atleast semi-annually, an in-person assessment and treatment plan must be completed by

the:

1. Primary care physician,

2. Registered nurse,

3. Master's-level social worker and

4.  Recreational therapist/activity coordinator.

Section li4



Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) Section |l

C. Annually, an in-person assessment and treatment plan must be completed by the:
Physical therapist,

Occupational therapist

Dietitian and

Cal

Home care coordinator.

PACE organizations consolidate discipline specific plans into a single plan of care semi-annually
through discussion and consensus of the interdisciplinary team. The consolidated plan is then
discussed and finalized with the PACE participant and/or his or her significant others.

Reassessments and treatment plan changes are completed when the heal_t’hé‘f‘r‘ér psychosocial
situation of the participant changes. e ' %

220.100 Monitoring by the Office of Long Term Care:._ e S 1-1-13

Due to the requirement that PACE Organizations be Iicehééc%as Arkansaé:.,gﬁgjult Day Health
Care Centers, the Office-of LongTerm-CareDivision of Provider Services and Quality Assurance
(DPSQA)} will be conducting monitoring and oversight of the PACE _Q_ggggﬁ-ti’perations.

220.400 Monitoring by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 1-1-13
(CMS)"‘féj-"_iﬁ:t;bg,§tate Adininistering Agency {SAA)

In compliance with federal requitements, each PACE Organization will enter required information
for nine (@) key indicatérs into the Health Plan Management System (HPMS), or any successor
data elemants or data system on a quarterly basis. Both CMS and the State Administering
Agency (SAA) will use the data entered into HPMS or its successor system to monitor the
angoing operations of the PACE Organization and identify potential problems or unusual events
thaf may be the first indication of problems in patient care, site operations or financial solvency.
These reviews will also be used to determine if further onsite monitoring will be necessary.

A. The nihé "(.9':3ff(ey indicators are as follows:

| Routine Pneumococcal Immunizations
érievances & Appeals

Enroliments

Disenrollments

Prospective Enrollees

Unscheduled Hospitalizations

Emergency (Unscheduled) Care

= A R o e

Unusual Incidents for participants and the PACE site (such as falls, attempted
suicides, staff criminal records, infectious diseases, food poisoning, participant injury,
Medication errors, lawsuits, any type of restraint use, etc.)

Section U-5



Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Eiderly (PACE) Section Il

9.  Participant Deaths
2——Other Required-BHS-Monitoring Reporis:
+—-A6-day-report—tracke-all-applicatione-pending-mere-than45-days
2r——Monthly Reports—tracks-all-assessments, reassessmenis moni lorirng-contacts;
mileage-assesiated-with-home-visils,-and pending-applications
length-oftime betweenreceiving referral and-completing-home visit.

Section li-6



